
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
October 05, 2016 1:30 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

Agendas are subject to amendment through 

5:00pm on the day prior to City Council Meetings 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION - Reverend Laura Viau of First Presbyterian Church of Apopka 
PLEDGE 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council Workshop July 26, 2016 
2. City Council Workshop August 16, 2016 
3. City Council Special meeting August 23, 2016 
4. City Council meeting September 21, 2016. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Employee Recognition: 
 Five Year Service Award – Elmer Baker III – Police/Support Services 
 Ten Year Service Award – Elizabeth Hyatt – Public Services/Director’s Office 
 Ten Year Service Award – Stephen Tapscott – Police/Field Services 
 Fifteen Year Service Award – Carolyn Rogers – Community Development/Building 
 Twenty Year Service Award – Jerome Miller – Police/Field Services 
 Twenty Year Service Award – Matt Roney – Fire/Suppression 

 
Presentations: 

1. Presentation of a check to Apopka High School to promote & support the Academic Consortium of Scholars.    Chief McKinley 
2. Apopka Police Department Promotions to Lieutenant.  Chief McKinley 
3. Apopka Police Department Promotions to Sergeant.  Chief McKinley 

 
Public Comment Period:  
The Public Comment Period is for City-related issues that may or may not be on today’s Agenda. If you are here for a matter that 
requires a public hearing, please wait for that item to come up on the agenda. If you wish to address the Council, you must fill out an 
Intent to Speak form and provide it to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. If you wish to speak during the Public Comment 
Period, please fill out a green-colored Intent-to-Speak form. If you wish to speak on a matter that requires a public hearing, please fill 
out a white-colored Intent-to-Speak form. Speaker forms may be completed up to 48 hours in advance of the Council meeting. Each 
speaker  will  have  four minutes to  give  remarks,  regardless  of  the  number  of  items  addressed.  Please refer to Resolution No. 
2016-16 for further information regarding our Public Participation Policy & Procedures for addressing the City Council. 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Approve the Disbursement Report for the month of August, 2016. 
2. Approve an annual maintenance agreement with Motorola. 
3. Authorize a contract with the Department of Corrections for an inmate work squad. 
4. Award a contract for lobbyist services to Gray Robinson.  
5. Approval to extend an agreement with Shepherd and Wolfe Marketing Associates for event coordination.  
6. Approval to enter into an event service agreement with Roar Music, LLC.  
7. Approval to enter into an event service agreement with Birchmore Group, Inc.  

 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Preliminary Development Plan – Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park – Quasi-Judicial David Moon 
2. Mass Grading Plan/Developers Agreement – Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park – Quasi-Judicial David Moon 
3. Approve the second amendment to the Marden Road Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement.  Glenn A. Irby 
4. Approve the use of property for the purpose of a charity dove hunt.  Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

 
 

1



  
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 
1. Ordinance No. 2510 – Second Reading – Code of Ordinances, “Business Tax Receipts” – Legislative Postpone 
2. Ordinance No. 2511 – Second Reading – Code of Ordinances, “Vehicles for Hire.” – Legislative    Postpone 

3. Ordinance No. 2518 – Second Reading – Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan – Quasi-Judicial David Moon 
4. Ordinance No. 2519 – First Reading – Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan – Quasi-Judicial David Moon 
5. Ordinance No. 2520 – First Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Legislative Kyle Wilkes 
6. Ordinance No. 2521 – First Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial Kyle Wilkes  
7. Ordinance No. 2522 – First Reading – Vacate – Right-of-Way - Quasi-Judicial Rogers Beckett 
8. Ordinance No. 2523 – First Reading – Vacate – Right-of-Way - Quasi-Judicial Rogers Beckett 
9. Resolution 2016-31 – Amend Capital Improvement Plan reflecting improvements to Apopka Athletic Complex. David Burgoon 

 
MAYOR’S REPORT 

1. Letter from the Family of Mayor John H. Land regarding the proposed statue for City Hall.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

October 6, 2016 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up 

October 11, 2016 5:30pm – 6:00pm Planning Commission Meeting 

October 19, 2016          7:00pm –  Council Meeting 

October 24, 2016 10:00am – 11:00am Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

October 29, 2016 5:00pm – 9:00pm Halloween in the Park with Movie – Kit Land Nelson Park 

November 2, 2016          1:30pm –  Council Meeting 

November 3, 2016 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up 

November 8, 2016 5:30pm – 6:00pm Council Meeting 

November 10, 2016 5:00pm – 10:00pm Fall Festival – Edwards Field 

November 11, 2016 5:00pm – 11:00pm Fall Festival – Edwards Field 

November 12, 2016 10:00am – 11:00pm Fall Festival – Edwards Field 

November 13, 2016  12:00pm – 8:00pm Fall Festival – Edwards Field 

November 12, 2016 5:00pm – 9:00pm Gospel Fest – Northwest Recreation Complex 

November 16, 2016          7:00pm –  Council Meeting 

November 18, 2016 7:00pm – 9:00pm Movie in the Park [TBD] – Northwest Recreation Complex  

November 28, 2016 10:00am – 11:00am Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

2



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. City Council Workshop July 26, 2016 
  

3



CITY OF APOPKA 
 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 26, 2016, at 1:00 p.m., in the City 

of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

   Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

  Commissioner Kyle Becker 

  Commissioner Doug Bankson 

  Glenn Irby, City Administrator 

  Pam Barclay, Finance Director 

  

PRESS PRESENT:    John Peery - The Apopka Chief 

    Bethany Rodgers, Orlando Sentinel 

    Dale Fenwick, The Apopka Voice 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mayor Kilsheimer called the Budget 

Workshop to order at 1:00 p.m. and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Pam Barclay, Finance Director, provided a recap of the budget review, advising they have made 

it through approximately 40% of the General Fund.  They still have Outreach, Human Resources, 

Community Development, Recreation, Fleet, Facilities, and Public Services to review. She 

provided a worksheet with regards to what has been added or cut from the budget through the 

second workshop. She advised this came up with an excess of expenditures of $1,323,600.  

 

Mr. Irby advised state statute requires that the tentative millage rate be set prior to August 1, 

2016. This is required to be submitted to the Property Appraiser’s office on or before that date. 

He stated the penalty is automatically going back to the roll back rate if not meeting that date. He 

affirmed it is a tentative millage rate, advising you can lower the rate, but it is very difficult to 

raise the rate after August 1, 2016. There will be two public hearings on the budget in September 

and if they choose to reduce the rate, it would be at the first public hearing in September. It 

becomes law after the second public hearing in September.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer affirmed that if they would attempt to raise the millage rate after August 1, 

2016, the city would be required to mail out TRIM notices to every property owner by first class 

mail and this would be very expensive. He advised last year they set the millage rate .5 mills 

higher and at the end of the process it was lowered back to the same millage rate as the previous 

year.  

 

In response to Commissioner Dean regarding if raising the tentative millage rate .5 mills would 

cover the expense for five new police officers, Ms. Barclay referred to page 8 of the budget 

workbook that shows a chart regarding millage rates and .5 mills would provide an additional 

$1.263 million.  

 

4



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 26, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

Commissioner Bankson said his concern at where we are with the ratio for reserves at just above 

21% and the GFOA recommended 16.5%. In the same paragraph it states each must consider 

unique circumstances. He reiterated that he did not see a means for putting funds back in 

reserves for the future. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said there are critical needs that we cannot avoid, those being the Fire Station, 

Police Officers, and the Communications Tower. He explained the reason for the increase in the 

budget which was due to an $11,000,000 project having been left out of previous budgets.  

 

Community Outreach 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said Robert Sargent and Shakenya Harris-Jackson are under Community 

Outreach and are present to discuss their areas. The Community Events Manager position was 

moved to Recreation.  

 

Discussion was held regarding events. Mayor Kilsheimer said they were looking at holding four 

major events each year, Old Florida Outdoor Festival, (OFOF), Farm to Feast, Fourth of July 

event, and Gospel Fest. He stated this provides for more use of the amphitheater and promotes it 

and Apopka. He stated this would be too much for staff to accomplish and they were looking at 

hiring a company to run three of these events, with the city running the Fourth of July. He 

explained there will be a Request for Proposal (RFP) for the purpose of hiring an outside 

company for the production of events. He advised the prior budget had $350,000 for OFOF, 

stating this could be utilized for all events with a company running the events. He further pointed 

out that most cities consider this an expense.  

 

Discussion was held regarding the possibility of recuperating some of the expense. David 

Burgoon, Recreation Director, advised he has 20 years plus experience with events, and 

government agencies typically do not recuperate all of the amount back. He affirmed that cities 

put on events for a service to the community.  

 

It was determined the City will hold Fourth of July, Food Trucks, and Public Safety Day.  

 

Mr. Irby advised there was another issue, stating the Gospel Fest is scheduled in October and, the 

Food and Wine event is in November. We would not be able to get a company for Gospel Fest 

for this year with such short notice.  

 

It was the consensus to make OFOF $300,000 rather than $450,425 and target that money for an 

RFP for a company to run three events.  

 

Discussion was held regarding Apopka Begins and Ends with A. Mayor Kilsheimer advised an 

email was received by council providing a final report of the program. He stated the start of this 

program was focused at Rock Springs Elementary and Lovell Elementary and was very 

successful, and they are hoping to add another five schools. Commissioner Dean said he was 

against the $70,000 for this when this could be done by volunteers. Commissioner Becker said 

this was important to our community. It was pointed out that Duke Energy contributed a grant in 

the amount of $9,500 to Apopka Begins and Ends with A.  

5



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 26, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

Dr. Jackson said the most recent meeting was held at Rock Springs Elementary. She said the 

program is an amazing program and makes sure we are placing value on our children and 

investing in education. She stated Lovell and Rock Springs Elementary schools will not require 

the same level of support this coming school year. She also advised she spoke with Career 

Source and they have been granted additional funds to put toward youth programs. She said 

cutting Apopka Youth Works down to $50,000 will still allow us to reach our 75 plus youth. She 

has a goal to reach 100 youth for next year and they should be able to reach this goal.  

 

It was the consensus that Apopka Begins and Ends with A be budgeted at $35,000 and Apopka 

Youth Works at $50,000.  Commissioner Dean reiterated he could not support Apopka Begins 

and Ends with A.  

 

Discussion was held regarding Account 4900 for WBZW Airtime & Promotions. Mayor 

Kilsheimer advised this started under the previous administration and has continued. He stated 

they do live broadcasts from events such as the Apopka Fair, the Christmas Parade, political 

forums, and other events.  Commissioner Bankson said this does have potential to help create 

revenue to overcome the deficit. He inquired if there was an overall budget in mind totally on 

that type of investment. Mayor Kilsheimer advised that media expenditures have not been 

aggregated in one place.  

 

Robert Sargent said from the prior budget, we were pulling funds from the Mayor’s office to 

accomplish this and community outreach. He stated it was not collectively put in the budget. 

Spending on media advertising and display ads has been cut back. He suggested advertising be 

focused outside of Apopka, stating people within the city know what Apopka is all about.  

 

Discussion was held regarding the barbeque contest and the exposure we receive from this.  

 

Dr. Jackson advised that the ECIVIS subscription can be pulled from this budget as it does not 

expire until October 2017.  

 

The Council recessed at 2:58 p.m. and reconvened at 3:07 p.m. 

 

Recreation 

 

Athletic Complexes:  

Discussion was held regarding the request for additional staff. Mr. Burgoon stated he has eight 

employees that maintain the fields and as a result they only get to AAC every other week just to 

mow. Other parks are being neglected as there is not enough staff to properly maintain. In 

response to Commissioner Velazquez, he stated the fees being charged are only for the purpose 

of purchasing required items to maintain the fields and will not help with staffing.  In response to 

Commissioner Bankson, he advised that they do receive people for community service, but this 

is not consistent.  He stated that when they know of an event coming to a particular area, then 

they concentrate on that area to make it look its best.  

 

Commissioner Becker suggested earmarking pages 322 and 323 to revisit, stating the parks and 

recreation are a selling point of Apopka. Following this discussion was held regarding areas that 

6



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 26, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

Page 4 of 6 

 

could be cut, such as money spent on events, in order to put two maintenance workers back in. 

Mayor Kilsheimer pointed out each department has this same issue.  

 

Mr. Burgoon pointed out there was an adjustment to the 5200 account in the amount of $70,000 

and this brings them under current fiscal year budget. Mr. Irby advised a lot of the adjustments 

were due to trend. 

 

Recreation Athletics: reviewed and discussed. 

 

Recreation Programs – reviewed and discussed. 

It was the consensus to put $2,280 back in for the Easter Egg Hunt.  

 

In response to Commissioner Bankson, Ms. Barclay explained the splash pad funds was a special 

revenue fund and not in the general revenue fund.  

 

Council recessed at 4:10 p.m. and reconvened at 4:15 p.m. 

 

Public Services 

 

Facilities Maintenance:  reviewed and discussed. 

 

Under the 3400 account Airport will be moved back under the Airport fund. 

 

Fleet Maintenance:  reviewed and discussed. 

 

Cemetery: reviewed and discussed.  

 

In response to Commissioner Dean, City Clerk Goff advised the cemetery spaces are $800 for 

resident and $1,200 for nonresident. Mayor Kilsheimer asked the Clerk to do a survey of area 

fees for cemetery spaces.  

 

Grounds Maintenance:  reviewed and discussed. 

 

In response to Commissioner Bankson regarding the Tree Bank Expenditures, Mr. Irby advised 

there were an offsetting revenue for this expense.  

 

It was the consensus to cut $27,850 for new Christmas decorations from the 5200 account. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding the Tree Bank Ordinance.  

 

Community Development   

 

Planning: reviewed and discussed. 

Mr. Reggentin said he had an opportunity to review adopted documents such as the Vision Plan 

and the Comprehensive Plan for guidance, as well as meeting with his staff, when preparing the 

budget for Community Development. He expressed concern regarding the Economic 

Development/CRA Coordinator position with focus on development of the downtown area and 

7



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 26, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

Page 5 of 6 

 

construction of the Wekiva Parkway. He has a task of rebuilding a CRA that has been inactive 

for the last twenty years and he reviewed the various projects that are coming forward in the 

budget. He provided background on the requested positions such as the GIS Analyst and stated 

with the redevelopment of the hospital, development coming with Station Street and City Center, 

as well as the North Shore and Ecotourism aspects, staff is needed to take advantage of these and 

move them forward.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding GIS and data management with regards to coordinating efforts and 

having this area evaluated by a consultant prior to hiring this position.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding CRA and how the funds are built through tax increment financing, 

and reinvested into the district. The need for updating the CRA Plan, as well as extending the 

district was discussed.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said the position of Economic Development/CRA Coordinator is a position 

that most cities have and is needed to generate jobs and bring businesses to Apopka.  

 

Commissioner Bankson said he would support this position as it was a revenue generator and we 

will miss out on opportunity.  

 

Mr. Reggentin spoke about working with other agencies such as Orange County Economic 

Development Commission staff and MPO becoming involved with partnerships.  

 

It was the consensus to put the position of Economic/CRA Coordinator back in the budget. 

 

Mr. Reggentin said there were some redundancies in the 3100 account. Item number 5, Land Use 

Sustainability Study for $30,000 can be eliminated and placed under Item number 2, Market 

Demand Study. He stated Item number 8, Urban Designer Engineer is a reimbursable cost. This 

would be a consultant brought in to do the design review and this would be a pass through cost. 

He further stated this could possibly be postponed for one year. He stated that Item #11 is 

required to be done.  

 

It was the consensus to keep Item number 1 at $125,000, Item number 2 at $65,000, Item number 

3 at $135,000, Item number 9 at $50,000, Item number 11 at $100,000, and Item number 12 at 

$50,000. Item numbers 4, 5, 8 and 10 will be dropped, and Item numbers 6 and 7 are moved 

under CRA.  

 

Ms. Barclay provided an overview for all areas to include items added and reductions advising 

they were at $1.391 million over.  

 

Building Inspections: reviewed and discussed with no change. 

 

 

Human Resources:  reviewed and discussed with no change.  

 

Ms. Thornton said her current staffing is two staff members and this is a 400 to 1 ratio based on 

the fulltime employees. Normal staffing ratio is 100 to 1 and she pointed out that prior to a staff 

8



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 26, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

Page 6 of 6 

 

member being transferred they were at a 200 to 1 ratio and the one position added to her budget 

brings the department back to that ratio.  

 

Ms. Barclay provided a recap of the proposed budget advising it was currently out of balance 

$1,391,123.  This amount is in addition to the $2.6 in reserves that was utilized to balance the 

budget. She stated the vehicles requested by the police department could be financed and this 

would offset that amount.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding the proposed changes to the budget and how to balance the budget.  

 

Ms. Barclay said by financing vehicles, this would bring the amount over to $952,000. She 

advised that if they raise the millage rate .5 mills, this would bring the millage rate to 3.7876 and 

provide $1.263 million.  

 

ADJOURNMENT - There being no further discussion, the workshop adjourned at 7:16 p.m. 

p.m. 

 

 

 

ATTEST:       ____________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

__________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, CMC, City Clerk 

9



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. City Council Workshop August 16, 2016 
  

10



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on August 16, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

Page 1 of 4 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 
 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on August 16, 2016, at 1:00 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 

 

PRESENT: Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Kyle Becker 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Glenn Irby, City Administrator 

Pam Barclay, Finance Director 

 

PRESS PRESENT: Teresa Sargeant - The Apopka Chief 

Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mayor Kilsheimer called the Budget 

Workshop to order at 1:00 p.m. and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said they would be reviewing the Special Revenue Funds and Enterprise 

Funds in today’s workshop. 

 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

 

Street Improvement Fund: reviewed and discussed. 
 

Jay Davoll, Public Services Director, reviewed a map of all the streets maintained by the 

City. He reviewed the resurfacing for the past ten years, showing that this is falling behind. 

He also reviewed the signalization maintained by the City. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding mowing of medians and rights-of-way. The use of the inmate 

crews was discussed and Mr. Davoll advised there are times that we do not have the inmate 

crews, such as if the guard is on vacation. 

 

Mr. Davoll advised the costs associated with the 4400 account are set by DOT. He went on 

to discuss the 4600 and 4607 accounts. He stated with regards to the traffic signals that 

conflict monitors were very important. He said there were three older signals that need to be 

completely rebuilt. He went over the resurfacing spreadsheet and requested $50,000 be 

transferred from the 4607 account into the 4600 account. 

 

Discussion was held regarding cold patch asphalt and Mr. Davoll pointed out they were 

requesting an Asphalt Truck under the 6400 account. He said with this truck heating the 

asphalt it will speed up the repair, last longer, and eliminate waste. 

 

11



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on August 16, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

Page 2 of 4 

 

Mr. Irby advised there were errors in the workbook for the 4300 and 4310 accounts. The 

4300 account should be $45,000 and the 4310 account should be $1,269,787. Between 

these two accounts there is a net savings of $46,113 between these two account lines. He 

advised the Street Improvement Fund is a restricted fund that is funded by the six cent gas tax 

at the state level and the funds can only be expended on these line items. He stated there was 

a total of $295,000 cut and those could be put back in. He stated they could also have the 

option to pay cash for the heavy equipment. 

 

Mr. Davoll said if raising the resurfacing back to the $600,000, then all of the roads on the 

spreadsheet, except for items 15 and 16 would be able to be repaved. 

 

It was the consensus to add money back into the resurfacing program and pay cash for the heavy 

equipment. 

 

Inmate Program: reviewed and discussed. 
 

Law Enforcement Trust Fund: reviewed and discussed. 
 

Transportation/Traffic Impact Fee Fund:  reviewed and discussed. 

Discussion was held regarding roundabouts Mr. Davoll said roundabouts were safer for vehicles 

as they remove conflict points and all turns are right. They do take up more space and do not fit 

for all intersections. They are being evaluated as an option. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding areas traffic signals are to be installed. Mr. Irby advised Council 

should set the priorities. Staff can only advise where signalization is needed based upon the 

analysis studies. 

 

It was the consensus to allocate $350,000 for the Bradshaw/Old Dixie intersection, $250,000 for 

the Vick Road/Martin Road intersection, and $750,000 for Old Dixie Highway from Hawthorn 

to Scholpke Lester Road. Marden Road from Keene to 437A will remain at $500,000, and new 

sidewalks will remain at $50,000. 

Council recessed at 2:47 p.m. and reconvened at 2:58 p.m. 

Stormwater Fund: reviewed and discussed. 

Discussion ensued regarding the 6300 account and stormwater improvements. It was noted that a 

Stormwater Master Plan was done five years ago and should be re-evaluated. 

 

Recreation Impact Fees: reviewed and discussed. 

Ms. Barclay advised there was a current contract for an impact fee study of Recreation, Police, 

and Fire. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding the splashpad and skatepark and whether the skate park will be 

revenue generating. 

 

Mr. Irby reiterated the recreation impact fees are under review and stated the current impact fee 

of $241.05 for a single family residential unit will not go down and during the year this fund will 

grow, unless Council turns them down. 

12



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on August 16, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 

Commissioner Bankson expressed concerns of tying up funds from the reserves, understanding it 

will be reimbursed in time. He felt the skatepark would not be revenue producing. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer pointed out the youth that attended visioning meetings and spoke passionately 

about a skatepark. Commissioner Bankson stated he was not against the idea, but he was against 

taking or borrowing funds from the reserves. 

 

Commissioner Bankson expressed concerns regarding future expenses with regards to the need 

to build another fire station, as well as additional expense of funding the required personnel. 

 

Mr. Irby discussed the two in/two out rule for firefighters and the fact that this puts Apopka 

below the number of required firefighters, stating we will be in need of 36 additional firefighters 

next year in order to fully staff new stations and back staff current stations. He further stated 

without the proper number of firefighters at a station, it could slow the response time and this 

would affect the ISO rating. He went on to discuss the additional expense for building the new 

station. 

 

Discussion came back to the splashpad and skatepark. Commissioner Becker said the $399,000 

was not going to close the gap. He stated during the visioning strategy, the community was in 

favor of these types of things, but the top rank way of paying for these was through 

public/private partnerships. He said he would lean on staff to make sure partnering comes to 

fruition. 

 

Commissioner Velazquez stated it has been pointed out to her that there are several grants 

available for skateparks that could be looked into. 

 

It was the consensus to move forward with splashpad and delay the skatepark. 

 

Mr. Irby said there was a meeting last Thursday with the architect from CPH regarding a site 

plan for Edwards Field. He advised the site plan will encompass several things including a 

gymnasium with an Olympic indoor pool, splashpad, and skatepark, as well as a parking lot, 

lights, and picnic pavilions. He said the splashpad or amenities for it will not affect the Apopka 

Fair or the Apopka Foliage Festival. He stated a presentation will be made to City Council.  

 

Grants Fund:  reviewed and discussed. 
 

Special Assessment Fund:  reviewed and discussed. 
 

Community Redevelopment Fund: reviewed and discussed. 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer said the UCF Incubator has previously been funded out of the CRA account 

and as a  result  of  the  discussion  with  UCF  at  a  prior  workshop  meeting,  Mr.  Hogan has 

called requesting to extend the lease of the Incubator by one year at no cost to the City of 

Apopka. The City will continue to provide the building as currently provided with services. 

There was no objection to extending the lease. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding amending and adoption of the CRA Plan. 

13



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on August 16, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

Page 4 of 4 

 

 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS: 
 

Public Utilities Fund: reviewed and discussed. 

Mr. Irby advised that all monies in the Enterprise Funds are self-generated from utility rates, and 

sale of fuel for the Airport fund. 

 

Ms. Barclay explained with regards to fund balance to expenditures, they recommend three 

months of expenditures in the fund balance. She said we were at 90.5% and the rate study 

recommended bringing that down. 

 

Utility Administration: 

It was the consensus to put back $1,475 in the 5500 account. 

 

Water Plant: 

Mr. Burgess explained that in 2011 there were specific conditions placed and 2017 is the 

deadline for these conditions.  This was in the rate study with regards to replacement of wells. 

 

Mr. Davoll explained in the 5220 account they are receiving a grant and the $15,000 removed is 

a match to the grant. The consensus was that this be added back into the 5220 account. 

 

Wastewater Plant: reviewed and discussed. 

 

Utility Construction: reviewed and discussed. Mr. Davoll pointed out that there was a boring 

machine  in  the  CIP  and  they missed  placing  it  under  the  6400  account  in  the  amount  of 

$250,000. He stated this was vital for the replacement of lines. 

 

It was the consensus that the $189,500 for the Cat excavator 48’ bucket and $250,000 for the 

boring machine be placed in the 6400 account. 

 

The next scheduled Budget Workshop is Monday, August 23, 2016 at 3:00 p.m. Mr. Irby advised 

they also need to have a special meeting on the same day for the purpose of the donation of right- 

of-way on Marden Road. Ms. Barclay announced the TRIM and Budget Hearings will be held on 

September 14, 2016, and September 28, 2016, at 5:05 p.m. 

 

ADJOURNMENT - There being no further discussion, the workshop adjourned at 5:05 p.m. 

p.m. 
 
 

       __________________________ 
   

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
 

 

Linda F. Goff, CMC, City Clerk 

14



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. City Council Special meeting August 23, 2016 
  

15



CITY OF APOPKA 
 

Minutes of a City Council Special meeting held on August 23, 2016, 3:30 p.m. in the City of 

Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

  Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

  Commissioner Kyle Becker 

  Commissioner Doug Bankson 

  Andrew Hand, City Attorney 

  

PRESS PRESENT:    Teresa Sargeant - The Apopka Chief 

    Bethany Rodgers, Orlando Sentinel 

    Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Kilsheimer called the Special Council meeting to order at 3:34 

p.m. 

 

SPECIAL REPORTS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Conditionally accept the donations of rights-of-way along Marden Road by acceptance of the 

following three resolutions: 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said this meeting of the City Council is to consider three resolutions with 

regards to the acceptance of donation of rights-of-way along Marden Road and for the 

specific purpose of roundabouts they would like to see built. 

 

a. Resolution No. 2016-21: Centex Deed – The title was read by the City Clerk as follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-2021 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
APOPKA, FLORIDA, ACCEPTING A SPECIAL WARRANTY 
DEED FROM CENTEX HOMES FOR REAL PROPERTY; 
DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK OR DESIGNEE TO RECORD 
THE EXECUTED DEED IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
ORANGE COUNTY, AND PAY ALL FEES NECESSARY TO 
EFFECTUATE SUCH RECORDATION; PROVIDING 
SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mr. Irby advised the three resolutions being considered have to do with the dedication of 

rights-of-way along Marden Road for the Marden Road interchange connections to the 

414. MMI has indicated they will build the roundabouts and agreements will be brought 

before Council later on. He stated without this dedication of right-of-way, these 

roundabouts can’t be put in place. Michael Wright is here from MMI to answer any 

questions. He advised that CFX meets tomorrow and a dedication is needed from them as 

well, which is the purpose of this special meeting.  

16



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a special City Council meeting held on August 23, 2016, at 3:34 p.m. 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

Michael Wright, President, MMI Development, said it would be best to show actions that 

need to be done by MMI, Centex, Pulte, and the City with regards to the rights-of-way.  

 

City Attorney Hand advised the approval of the resolutions are subject to the correct legal 

descriptions being inserted.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to public comment. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public comment. 

 

MOTION Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson to 

approve Resolution No. 2016-21 subject to the correct legal descriptions being 

inserted. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners 

Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

b. Resolution No. 2016-22: Emerson Point Phase II Deed -  The title was read by the City 

Clerk as follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-22 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
APOPKA, FLORIDA, CONDITIONALLY ACCEPTING A 
SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED FROM EMERSON POINT PHASE 
II, LLC, FOR REAL PROPERTY; DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK 
OR DESIGNEE TO RECORD THE EXECUTED DEED IN THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY ONCE ALL 
CONDITIONS ARE SATISFIED, AND PAY ALL FEES 
NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE SUCH RECORDATION; 
PROVIDING SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to public comment. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public comment. 

 

MOTION Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson to 

approve Resolution No. 2016-22 subject to the correct legal descriptions being 

inserted. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners 

Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

c. Resolution No. 2016-23: Emerson Point Association Deed – The title was read by the 

City Clerk as follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-23 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
APOPKA, FLORIDA, CONDITIONALLY ACCEPTING A SPECIAL 
WARRANTY DEED FROM EMERSON POINT ASSOC., LLP, 
FOR REAL PROPERTY; DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK OR 

17



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a special City Council meeting held on August 23, 2016, at 3:34 p.m. 

Page 3 of 3 

 

DESIGNEE TO RECORD THE EXECUTED DEED IN THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY ONCE ALL 
CONDITIONS ARE SATISFIED, AND PAY ALL FEES 
NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE SUCH RECORDATION; 
PROVIDING SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to public comment. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public comment. 

 

MOTION Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson to 

approve Resolution No. 2016-23 subject to the correct legal descriptions being 

inserted. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners 

Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

 

Marden Ridge Road proposed roundabouts letter. 

Mr. Wright stated these deeds allow the roundabouts. He affirmed this sets up connection of 

Marden Road to Ocoee Apopka Road via Harmon Road. They will be bringing renderings to 

review with City Council at a later date. 

 

ADJOURNMENT - There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 3:51 p.m. 

 

 

 

ATTEST:       ____________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

___________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, CMC, City Clerk 

 

18



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. City Council meeting September 21, 2016. 
  

19



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on September 21, 2016, at 1:30 p.m., in 

the City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Commissioner Kyle Becker 

City Attorney Cliff Shepard 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

PRESS PRESENT:   Teresa Sargeant - The Apopka Chief 

    Bethany Rodgers, Orlando Sentinel 

    Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

INVOCATION:  Mayor Kilsheimer introduced Dr. Jimmy Siberio of Oasis De Esperanza 

Church, who gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Kilsheimer said on September 17, 1787, following a 

month of debate at the Constitutional Convention in Philadelphia, the Constitution of the United 

States was signed by its framers. Part of the compromise to ratify the new Constitution, 

additional amendments were debated upon and drafted. Two years later, on September 25, 

1789, the first Congress of the United States adopted twelve amendments to the U.S. 

Constitution, ten of which would later be ratified and become known as the Bill of Rights. He 

asked everyone to reflect upon the wisdom, deliberation, careful consideration, and prudence of 

those who helped create our Constitution as he led in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council meeting September 7, 2016. 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to 

approve the September 7, 2016 City Council minutes. Motion carried unanimously 

with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Bankson and Becker 

voting aye. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Presentations: 

1. Special presentation by Helen Miller of Senator Bill Nelson’s office. 

Mayor Kilsheimer said as construction of the 9/11 memorial was coming to completion, it 

was decided the need to recognize a few key individuals involved in this project. He stated 

while there were many people that contributed to this project, there were four individuals 

believed to deserve special recognition for their extraordinary roles: Christian Lamphere for 

the courage to take on this monumental project and the determination to see it through; 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez and her husband Ed Velazquez for their efforts to secure a 

20



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 21, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 2 

 

piece of the World Trade Center for the monument; and Ray Marsh, Building Official, for his 

guidance in design and many hours of working with Christian on the monument in order to 

have it ready to unveil on September 11, 2016.  

 

Helen Miller of Senator Bill Nelson’s office said she had the honor of representing Senator 

Nelson at the 9/11 Service and dedication  and said she was keeping a secret that day that she 

gets to share this evening. She presented an American Flag that flew over the United States 

Capitol, at Senator Nelson’s request, on September 11, 2016, to Christian Lamphere, 

Commissioner Diane and Ed Velazquez, and Ray Marsh.  

 

Public Comment Period: 

Charla Moss said she would like to request yard sale permits be allowed four times a year, stating 

that now it is only one time a year. She stated working with Loaves and Fishes and being a 

substitute at Apopka High School, there are many family members in need. Something as simple 

as a yard sale can provide extra funds for families in need until they can get back on their feet. 

She felt this would be beneficial to residents.  

 

Pastor Hezekiah Bradford, Jr. said he would like an answer, if possible, during this comment 

section, one being that he knows the budget will be voted on and he asked with regards to Alonzo 

Williams Park, if we did not receive the grant, was any money set aside for Alonzo Williams Park 

for improvement. He also expressed concern regarding the condition of Hawthorne Road between 

Fifth and Tenth Streets.  He also suggested single member districts being broken down into four 

quadrants stating that would make their jobs easier, stating they cannot govern all four areas 

sufficiently.  
 

Rod Love said one of the things the Alliance does under the leadership of Pastor Bradford and 

Pastor King, with regards to what we are seeing on the news, is to hold conference calls with 

other community leaders and pastors to talk about issues so to be proactive. He stated he wanted 

to commend the two commissioners who voted against the budget and for their independence. He 

expressed his disappointment about the budget, and said he was willing to sacrifice for the 

betterment of the Apopka community. He expressed disappointment for items in the budget that 

others have expressed concern over, as well as the process of holding a CRA meeting by 

recessing Council and convening as the CRA. He stated he was disappointed that people speak for 

four minutes and receive no response on items that come up each meeting.  
 

CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Authorize the disposal of surplus equipment/property. 

2. Authorize road closures for the Apopka High School Homecoming Parade. 

3. Authorize a donation from the Law Enforcement Trust fund to Apopka High School. 

4. Approval of an Engineering Firm to prepare Legal Descriptions and Parcel Sketches on 

Ocoee Apopka Road & Harmon Road. 

5. Approve the City Hall roof replacement proposal submitted by Garland/DBS Inc. 
 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve the five items on the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously with 

Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Bankson and Becker voting 

aye. 

21



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 21, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 3 

 

 

BUSINESS 

1. Preliminary Development Plan – Northwest Distribution Center – Building “D”. 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this was a quasi-judicial hearing. The witnesses were sworn in by 

the clerk.  

 

Rogers Beckett, Senior Project Coordinator, provided a brief lead-in, stating the Preliminary 

Development Plan proposes 180,000 square feet of industrial warehouse and office space. The 

applicant has requested a deferral in the parking requirement, stating they have provided a 

parking study showing the requested number of spaces meets the demand to accommodate 

employees and customers. Their architectural standards meet the City Development Design 

Guidelines, as well as the storm requirements and buffer requirements. DRC and Planning 

Commission recommend approval.  

 

Jeff Banker, Highland Engineering, said the applicant is constructing a Build-to-Suit for the 

tenant at this time who has very specific needs. He advised they will be operating 24 hours a 

day, three shifts, and will be employing approximately 160 people at build out. He advised 

with the parking deferral, they can work with other areas at the site to establish the sufficient 

parking if this tenant was to go away. However, the tenant has signed a long term lease.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve the Preliminary Development Plan of the Northwest Distribution Center, 

Building “D” as presented.  

 

Commissioner Velazquez pointed out the Staff Report Pubic Hearing Schedule should be 

corrected to 2016.  

 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

2. Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan – Emerson North Townhomes – Pulte 

Group 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by the 

clerk. 

 

David Moon, Planning Manager, provided a brief lead-in, stating this was a two phase project, 

proposing 136 townhome units with 3.12 acres of active and passive recreation and open 

space.  He advised 36 of the units will have two-car garages and 100 of the units will have 

one-car garages. The driveways will accommodate one to two vehicles. The proposed living 

area is 1,530 square feet. There will be two access points off of Harmon Road, the western 

access becoming available at the time East Harmon Road is extended to the west. The 

Planning Commission recommended approval at their meeting on August 9, 2016, with a 

condition of a minimum 2,000 square feet of Neighborhood Activity Center. Mr. Moon 

22



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 21, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 4 

 

advised the applicant has modified the plan to satisfy the code with a 1,500 square foot cabana 

and a larger pool area, and this eliminates that condition.  They also recommended a 22 foot 

front setback to accommodate parking of large vehicles. The applicant has complied with this 

provision as well and has worked with the city on it. DRC recommends approval.  

 

Doug Hoffman with Pulte introduced other members of the team present. He said they have 

owned this land since 2006 and held off the market while the CFX finalized the alignment of 

the 414 extension. He stated it was an ideal time with the development of the hospital in the 

area and they felt it was an ideal property for their Vista product series. He said they 

understand the importance for the conveyance of land to the City for the future Harmon Road 

right-of-way extension and they have agreed to work with the City in this regard. He said they 

look forward to working with the City on this project.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer disclosed his ex parte communication with the applicant, but stated it had 

no effect on the decision tonight. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

Pastor Bradford expressed concern regarding traffic on Michael Gladden Road with Florida 

Hospital in that area and additional development that will take place in the future. He inquired 

if there was any future plans for widening of this road. He also asked if there would be 

consideration for this project to offer jobs to residents in the South Apopka community. 

 

Jay Davoll, Public Services Director and City Engineer, said Ocoee Apopka Road turns into 

Michael Gladden. He stated most of Ocoee Apopka Road is a county roadway. There have 

been traffic studies submitted for the projects so far and they have not tripped any thresholds 

for Michael Gladden and that section. The section around the hospital is already four lane 

road.  

 

Mr. Hoffman said they were certainly willing to review any bids from local contractors.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to approve 

the Emerson North Townhomes Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan. Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, 

Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

3. Approval of an LED streetlight design. 

 

Glenn Irby, City Administrator, said we continue to have subdivisions being built and our 

code requires subdivisions to have specific decorative lighting for their streets. At this time 

most of the lights are high sodium vapor and staff sees a need to come up with a better 

standard of lighting across the entire spectrum.  They brought three forward tonight for 

Council to review, all LED. He advised the Code provides for the HOA to be responsible for 

the upcharge over the amount of a high sodium vapor light. He reviewed pricing for the 

23



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 21, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 5 

 

current lighting and proposed lighting and advised the HOA would be responsible for the 

difference between the high sodium vapor lighting cost and the LED light   

 

Commissioner Becker said he understood an increase in the capital cost of the light, but did 

not understand the monthly increase in cost.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said they are being asked to choose a preferred style of light that will go in 

to new subdivisions He stated the trend is toward LED and away from sodium vapor. He said 

the developer installs the lights, and the City pays the electric bill. Duke Energy has a formula 

for how they charge for street lights as they are not metered.  

 

Jerry Daniels, Business Development Manager with Lighting Solutions for Duke Energy, said 

the fuel and energy costs are actually about 30% to 40% less for the LED lights than the high 

vapor sodium lights, but because of a better quality fixture, it costs more. He reported they are 

retrofitting entire municipalities giving Eustis, St. Petersburg and Tavares as an example.  He 

said these were not the only options available, stating they have an entire product line. 

 

It was the consensus to look at other options and have staff bring this back in a month.  

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2513 – Second Reading – Annexation – The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2513 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
LOCATED WEST OF PLYMOUTH SORRENTO ROAD AND SOUTH OF 
YOTHERS ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 
CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2513. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2514 – Second Reading – Annexation – The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2514 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

24



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 21, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 6 

 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY CHARLES L. KOHL AND KATHY E. KOHL LOCATED AT 
1030 EAST SANDPIPER STREET; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO 
THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2514. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2515 – Second Reading – Annexation – The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2515 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY BRYAN NELSON AND DEBBIE NELSON LOCATED AT 
1157 OAKPOINT CIRCLE; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 
CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2515. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2516 – Second Reading – Annexation – The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2516 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY WILLIAM D. COOK AND ROBYN D. COOK TRUST 
LOCATED AT 1163 OAKPOINT CIRCLE; PROVIDING FOR 
DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

25



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 21, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 7 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2516 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

5. Ordinance No. 2517 – Second Reading – Annexation – The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2517 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY VERDUZCO INVESTMENT LLC, LOCATED AT 1175 
OAKPOINT CIRCLE; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 
CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2517. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

6. Ordinance No. 2503 – Second Reading – Land Development Code – Ex Parte Contact – 

The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2503 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES, PART III, LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE I, TO ADOPT PROVISIONS TO 
PROVIDE ACCESS TO PUBLIC OFFICIALS OF THE CITY OF 
APOPKA REGARDING QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS BY REMOVING 
PROHIBITIONS ON EX-PARTE COMMUNICATIONS; ESTABLISHING 
PROCEDURES TO DISCLOSE EX-PARTE COMMUNICATIONS 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0115, FLORIDA STATUTES; CREATING 
PROCEDURES FOR THE DISCLOSURE OF EX-PARTE 
COMMUNICATIONS, INVESTIGATIONS, SITE VISITS, AND EXPERT 
OPINIONS TO REMOVE THE PRESUMPTION OF PREJUDICE 
ARISING THEREFROM; AND PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATIONS, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

26



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 21, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 8 

 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2503. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

7. Ordinance No. 2504 – Second Reading – Land Development Code – Building Heights – 

The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2504 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES, PART III, LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE TO ALLOW BUILDING HEIGHTS IN EXCESS 
OF 35 FEET WHEN EXPRESSLY PERMITTED BY SPECIAL 
EXCEPTION OR PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT, PROVIDING FOR 
EXCEPTIONS AND PROVIDING CRITERIA; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2504 at Second Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor 

Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

8. Ordinance No. 2509 – First Reading – Code of Ordinances, “Peddlers and Solicitors” – 

The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2509 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 62, PEDDLERS AND 
SOLICITORS; EMPOWERING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR OR HIS 
OR HER DESIGNEE TO ADMINISTER PROVISIONS REGARDING 
PERMITTING OF PEDDLERS AND SOLICITORS; AND PROVIDING 
FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2509. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

27



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 21, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 9 

 

9. Ordinance No. 2510 – Second Reading – Code of Ordinances, “Business Tax Receipts”  

Postponed to October 5, 2016. 
ORDINANCE NO. 2510 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 74, ARTICLE IV, SECTION 74-104 OF THE CITY OF 
APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES PERTAINING TO “VEHICLES FOR 
HIRE” BY REMOVING LANGUAGE INDICATING THAT CITY 
COUNCIL APPROVAL IS REQUIRED FOR DRIVERS; AND 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

10. Ordinance No. 2511 – First Reading – Code of Ordinances, “Vehicles for Hire 

Postponed to October 5, 2016. 
ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, VACATING 
AND DELETING THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 86 OF THE CITY 
CODE OF ORDINANCES AS CURRENTLY WRITTEN, ADOPTING 
NEW PROVISIONS IN SAID CHAPTER AMENDING THE 
PERMITTING AND REGULATIONS OF TAXICABS AND CREATING 
REGULATIONS FOR TRANSPORTATION SERVICES AND 
TRANSPORTATION NETWORK APPLICATION COMPANIES AND 
OPERATORS; AND PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised the City received a request today from Lyft to postpone 

consideration, as they received short notice and would like to have an opportunity to respond.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to 

postpone Ordinance No. 2510 and Ordinance No. 2511 to the City Council meeting on 

October 5, 2016. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

11. Ordinance No. 2518 – First Reading – PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan. 

The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2518 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2355, CHANGING MAXIMUM FLOOR AREA 
RATIO FROM 0.25 TO 0.30 AND AMENDING THE APPROVED 
MASTER PLAN\PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF 
OLD DIXIE HIGHWAY, EAST OF RICHARD L. MARK DRIVE, AND 
SOUTH OF ERROL PARKWAY, COMPRISING 6.99 ACRES MORE OR 
LESS, AND OWNED BY ROBERT K. DUNN ET. AL.; PROVIDING FOR 
DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

28



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 21, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 10 

 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by the 

clerk.  

 

David Moon provided a brief lead-in on the project advising after the master plan was 

previously approved by Council and the owner found another assisted living provider with a 

different floor plan and model. The new proposed footprint for the site was reviewed and they 

are requesting an FAR of 0.30. The floor plan now has part of the building one-story the 

deliveries will be at the front of the building and hidden from the residents.  There are more 

open areas that faces the residents to the north. He advised the Planning Commission and 

DRC recommend approval.  

 

In response to Commissioner Dean, Mr. Davoll advised there was a plan to add bike lanes to 

Old Dixie Highway that will widen it. He further stated they will be required to do a traffic 

study.  

 

Joel Hass, Senior Vice President of MJM, said they are the developers of the assisted living 

facility, Canterwood Manor. The reason for the change in the request are due to the design 

being on a clinical basis. He advised the facility will have a community room and the 

community will be invited to utilize this room at no charge. He stated this room is also used as 

an education center, especially for the care and treatment of memory care.  

 

Elizabeth Lentz, Architect, said the exterior of the building has been designed to be a Florida 

Coastal style. She said it is very residential and is broken into one and two-story portions with 

the two-story development being away from the current single family homes.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

Jose Molina said they mentioned the community room and inquired if there would be 

additional parking if they are holding events. He agreed with Commissioner Dean’s comment 

regarding Old Dixie Highway needing improvements on width and lighting.  

 

Mr. Hass advised the site plan presented takes into consideration parking for the community 

room.  

 

Mr. Davoll said as they review the design plan the lighting will be evaluated and the design 

will be before Council.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2518 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

 

29



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 21, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 11 

 

 

 

MAYOR’S REPORT 
1. Ratify Mr. James Hitt as Community Development Director. 

Mayor Kilsheimer reported Mark Reggentin, Community Development Director, has been 

extremely helpful to the City since he joined the staff earlier this year. Mark has been offered 

a job with the City of Maitland which is his home community. His last day with the City of 

Apopka is September 29, 2016.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said when they were looking for a Community Development Director, they 

narrowed it down to two candidates: Mark Reggentin and Jim Hitt. He stated Jim currently 

works for the City of Clermont and spoke on the development occurring in Clermont. He said 

they contacted Mr. Hitt to see if he was still interested in the position. Mayor Kilsheimer 

recommended Jim Hitt as the new Community Development Director.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Becker to ratify 

the appointment of James Hitt as Community Development Director. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and 

Bankson voting aye. 

 

NOT REQUIRING ACTION 

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 8:32 p.m. 
 

 

 

        ___________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST; 

 

___________________________ 
Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

30



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Approve the Disbursement Report for the month of August, 2016. 
  

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Approve an annual maintenance agreement with Motorola. 
  

95



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  October 5, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Police Department 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:             Agreements 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: EXECUTE ANNUAL MOTOROLA SYSTEM MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT.  

 

Request:  REQUEST COUNCIL APPROVAL FOR THE MAYOR OR DESIGNEE TO 

EXECUTE THE MOTOROLA MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT TO SUPPORT THE 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND GENERAL CITY SERVICES RADIO SYSTEMS. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
The Police Department is responsible for the maintenance and support of the city’s public safety and general 

use communications systems.  

 

The public safety radio system consists of mobile and portable radios, tower sites, communications center 

hardware, and other infrastructure. The city also utilizes and maintains a general use, wireless system providing 

point-to-point communication with city facilities (remote offices, fire stations, etc.), along with other remote 

sites within the city. This system, additionally, provides transmission services for the collection of data from the 

city’s water delivery system.  

 

The maintenance agreement provides 24/7/365 support of both of these systems from October 1, 2016 through 

September 30, 2017. All funding is authorized in the adopted 2016-2017 City of Apopka budget. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Police Communications Maintenance Budget FY 16/17 

Systems 24/7/365 Maintenance (Public Safety and Point-to-Point)  $575,060.16    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Mayor to execute the agreement on behalf of the city.   
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

96



 

SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

 
 

Attn: National Service Support/4th fl Contract Number:  S00001018855 
1301 East Algonquin Road Contract Modifier:   
(800) 247-2346 

 
 Date: 09/13/2016  

Company Name: 
Attn: 

Apopka Fire Dept, City Of Required P.O.: 
Customer # : 

No 
1011376531 

Billing Address: 112 E Sixth St Bill to Tag # : 0006 
City, State, Zip: Apopka,FL,32704 Contract Start Date: 10/01/2016 

Customer Contact: Lynn Pettingill Contract End Date: 09/30/2017 
Phone: (407)703-1771 Anniversary Day: Sep 30th 

  Payment Cycle: 
PO # : 

MONTHLY 

 
 

QTY MODEL/OPTION SERVICES DESCRIPTION MONTHLY 
EXT 

EXTENDED 
AMT 

12 Monthly 2016-2017 Listed Services $47,921.68 $575,060.16 

  Total Services   $47,921.68   $575,060.16 
SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS - ATTACH 
STATEMENT OF WORK FOR PERFORMANCE DESCRIPTIONS 

Subtotal - Recurring Services   
Subtotal - One-Time Event 

Services 
  

Total $47,921.68   $575,060.16 
 Taxes - - 

Grand Total $47,921.68   $575,060.16 
THIS SERVICE AMOUNT IS SUBJECT TO STATE AND LOCAL TAXING 

JURISDICTIONS WHERE APPLICABLE, TO BE VERIFIED BY MOTOROLA. 

Subcontractor(s) City State 
MOTOROLA - ORANGE COUNTY (DO222) LAKE MARY FL 
MOTOROLA SYSTEM SUPPORT CENTER ELGIN IL 

MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS-MOTOROLA 
   

SCHAUMBU 
 

IL 
MOTOROLA SYSTEM SUPPORT 
CENTER-NETWORK MGMT DO067 

SCHAUMBU 
RG 

IL 

MOTOROLA SYSTEM SUPPORT CTR-CALL 
CENTER DO066 

SCHAUMBU 
RG 

IL 

MOTOROLA SYSTEM 
SUPPORT-TECHNICAL SUPPORT DO068 

SCHAUMBU 
RG 

IL 

RAPID SYSTEMS INC TAMPA FL 

NICE SYSTEMS INC RESTON VA 
 
I received Statements of Work that describe the services provided on this Agreement. Motorola's Service Terms 
and Conditions, a copy of which is attached to this Service Agreement, is incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

97



98



2016-2017
P25 Maintenance $275,070.18
Wireless Maintenance $299,990.00
Total $575,060.18

P25 Radio Maintenance includes:

~ Network Security Monitoring
~ Infrastructure Repair with Advanced 
Replacement

~ Dispatch Service

~ Network Monitoring Service

~ Technical Support

~ Network Preventative Maintenance

~ Onsite Infrastructure Response

~ Microwave Services

~ Subscriber Repair

~ NICE Gold

~ SUS

Wireless maintenance includes:

~ Onsite Response with Local Dispatch - telephone access to Rapid Systems, dispatching of technician 

~ Network Monitoring - remote monitoring of system

~ Preventative Maintenance - mitigation of failures before they occur by regular inspections 

~ Infrastructure Repair - equipment repair 

~ Onsite Engineering & Support - Rapid Systems onsite support of system

99



Service Terms and Conditions 
 
Motorola Solutions Inc.("Motorola") and the customer named in this Agreement ("Customer") hereby agree as follows: 

 
Section 1. APPLICABILITY 
These Maintenance Service Terms and Conditions apply to service contracts whereby Motorola will provide to Customer 
either (1) maintenance, support, or other services under a Motorola Service Agreement, or (2) installation services under 
a Motorola Installation Agreement. 

 
Section 2. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION 
2.1. "Agreement" means these Maintenance Service Terms and Conditions; the cover page for the Service Agreement 
or the Installation Agreement, as applicable; and any other attachments, all of which are incorporated herein by this 
reference.  In interpreting this Agreement and resolving any ambiguities, these Maintenance Service Terms and 
Conditions take precedence over any cover page, and the cover page takes precedence over any attachments, unless the 
cover page or attachment states otherwise. 

 
2.2. "Equipment" means the equipment that is specified in the attachments or is subsequently added to this 
Agreement. 

 
2.3. "Services" means those installation, maintenance, support, training, and other services described in this 
Agreement. 

 
Section 3. ACCEPTANCE 
Customer accepts these Maintenance Service Terms and Conditions and agrees to pay the prices set forth in the 

Agreement.  This Agreement becomes binding only when accepted in writing by Motorola. The term of this Agreement 
begins on the "Start Date" indicated in this Agreement. 

 
Section 4. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
4.1. Motorola will provide the Services described in this Agreement or in a more detailed statement of work or other 
document attached to this Agreement.  At Customer's request, Motorola may also provide additional services at Motorola' 
s then-applicable rates for the services. 

 
4.2. If Motorola is providing Services for Equipment, Motorola parts or parts of equal quality will be used; the 
Equipment will be serviced at levels set forth in the manufacturer's product manuals; and routine service procedures that 
are prescribed by Motorola will be followed. 

 
4.3.      If Customer purchases from Motorola additional equipment that becomes part of the same system as the initial 
Equipment, the additional equipment may be added to this Agreement and will be billed at the applicable rates after the 
warranty for that additional equipment expires. 

 
4.4. All Equipment must be in good working order on the Start Date or when additional equipment is added to the 
Agreement.  Upon reasonable request by Motorola, Customer will provide a complete serial and model number list of the 
Equipment.  Customer must promptly notify Motorola in writing when any Equipment is lost, damaged, stolen or taken out 
of service.  Customer's obligation to pay Service fees for this Equipment will terminate at the end of the month in which 
Motorola receives the written notice. 

 
4.5. Customer must specifically identify any Equipment that is labeled intrinsically safe for use in hazardous 
environments. 

 
4.6. If Equipment cannot, in Motorola's reasonable opinion, be properly or economically serviced for any reason, 
Motorola may modify the scope of Services related to that Equipment; remove that Equipment from the Agreement; or 
increase the price to Service that Equipment. 

 
4.7. Customer must promptly notify Motorola of any Equipment failure. Motorola will respond to Customer's 
notification in a manner consistent with the level of Service purchased as indicated in this Agreement. 

 
Section 5. EXCLUDED SERVICES 
5.1. Service excludes the repair or replacement of Equipment that has become defective or damaged from use in 
other than the normal, customary, intended, and authorized manner; use not in compliance with applicable industry 100



standards; excessive wear and tear; or accident, liquids, power surges, neglect, acts of God or other force majeure 
events. 

 
5.2. Unless specifically included in this Agreement, Service excludes items that are consumed in the normal operation 
of the Equipment, such as batteries or magnetic tapes.; upgrading or reprogramming Equipment; accessories, belt clips, 
battery chargers, custom or special products, modified units, or software; and repair or maintenance of any transmission 
line, antenna, microwave equipment, tower or tower lighting, duplexer, combiner, or multicoupler. Motorola has no 
obligations for any transmission medium, such as telephone lines, computer networks, the internet or the worldwide web, 
or for Equipment malfunction caused by the transmission medium. 

 
Section 6. TIME AND PLACE OF SERVICE 
Service will be provided at the location specified in this Agreement. When Motorola performs service at Customers 
location, Customer will provide Motorola, at no charge, a non-hazardous work environment with adequate shelter, heat, 
light, and power and with full and free access to the Equipment. Waivers of liability from Motorola or its subcontractors 
will not be imposed as a site access requirement.  Customer will provide all information pertaining to the hardware and 
software elements of any system with which the Equipment is interfacing so that Motorola may perform its Services. 
Unless otherwise stated in this Agreement, the hours of Service will be 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., local time, excluding 
weekends and holidays.  Unless otherwise stated in this Agreement, the price for the Services exclude any charges or 
expenses associated with helicopter or other unusual access requirements; if these charges or expenses are reasonably 
incurred by Motorola in rendering the Services, Customer agrees to reimburse Motorola for those charges and expenses. 

 
Section 7. CUSTOMER CONTACT 
Customer will provide Motorola with designated points of contact (list of names and phone numbers) that will be available 
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week, and an escalation procedure to enable Customer's personnel to 
maintain contact, as needed, with Motorola. 

 
Section 8. PAYMENT 
Unless alternative payment terms are stated in this Agreement, Motorola will invoice Customer in advance for each 
payment period.  All other charges will be billed monthly, and Customer must pay each invoice in U.S. dollars within 
twenty (20) days of the invoice date.  Customer will reimburse Motorola for all property taxes, sales and use taxes, excise 
taxes, and other taxes or assessments that are levied as a result of Services rendered under this Agreement (except 
income, profit, and franchise taxes of Motorola) by any governmental entity. 

 
Section 9. WARRANTY 
Motorola warrants that its Services under this Agreement will be free of defects in materials and workmanship for a period 
of ninety (90) days from the date the performance of the Services are completed. In the event of a breach of this 
warranty, Customers sole remedy is to require Motorola to re-perform the non-conforming Service or to refund, on a 
pro-rata basis, the fees paid for the non-conforming Service. MOTOROLA DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

 
Section 10. DEFAULT/TERMINATION 
10.1. If either party defaults in the performance of this Agreement, the other party will give to the non-performing party a 
written and detailed notice of the default.  The non-performing party will have thirty (30) days thereafter to provide a 
written plan to cure the default that is acceptable to the other party and begin implementing the cure plan immediately 
after plan approval.  If the non-performing party fails to provide or implement the cure plan, then the injured party, in 
addition to any other rights available to it under law, may immediately terminate this Agreement effective upon giving a 
written notice of termination to the defaulting party. 
10.2. Any termination of this Agreement will not relieve either party of obligations previously incurred pursuant to this 
Agreement, including payments which may be due and owing at the time of termination. All sums owed by Customer to 
Motorola will become due and payable immediately upon termination of this Agreement. Upon the effective date of 
termination, Motorola will have no further obligation to provide Services. 

 
Section 11. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
Except for personal injury or death, Motorola's total liability, whether for breach of contract, warranty, negligence, strict 
liability in tort, or otherwise, will be limited to the direct damages recoverable under law, but not to exceed the price of 
twelve (12) months of Service provided under this Agreement. ALTHOUGH THE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THE 
POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSSES OR DAMAGES, THEY AGREE THAT MOTOROLA WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY 
COMMERCIAL LOSS; INCONVENIENCE; LOSS OF USE, TIME, DATA, GOOD WILL, REVENUES, PROFITS OR 
SAVINGS; OR OTHER SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES IN ANY WAY RELATED 101



TO OR ARISING FROM THIS AGREEMENT OR THE PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES BY MOTOROLA PURSUANT TO 
THIS AGREEMENT.  No action for contract breach or otherwise relating to the transactions contemplated by this 
Agreement may be brought more than one (1) year after the accrual of the cause of action, except for money due upon an 
open account.  This limitation of liability will survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement and applies 
notwithstanding any contrary provision. 

 
Section 12. EXCLUSIVE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
12.1. This Agreement supersedes all prior and concurrent agreements and understandings between the parties, 

whether written or oral, related to the Services, and there are no agreements or representations concerning the subject 
matter of this Agreement except for those expressed herein. The Agreement may not be amended or modified except by 
a written agreement signed by authorized representatives of both parties. 

 
12.2. Customer agrees to reference this Agreement on any purchase order issued in furtherance of this Agreement, 
however, an omission of the reference to this Agreement will not affect its applicability. In no event will either party be 
bound by any terms contained in a Customer purchase order, acknowledgement, or other writings unless: the purchase 
order, acknowledgement, or other writing specifically refers to this Agreement; clearly indicate the intention of both parties 
to override and modify this Agreement; and the purchase order, acknowledgement, or other writing is signed by 
authorized representatives of both parties. 

 
Section 13. PROPRIETARY INFORMATION; CONFIDENTIALITY; INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS 
13.1. Any information or data in the form of specifications, drawings, reprints, technical information or otherwise 

furnished to Customer under this Agreement will remain Motorolas property, will be deemed proprietary, will be kept 
confidential, and will be promptly returned at Motorola's request. Customer may not disclose, without Motorola's written 
permission or as required by law, any confidential information or data to any person, or use confidential information or 
data for any purpose other than performing its obligations under this Agreement. The obligations set forth in this Section 
survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
13.2. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, no commercial or technical information disclosed in any manner or at any time 
by Customer to Motorola will be deemed secret or confidential. Motorola will have no obligation to provide Customer with 
access to its confidential and proprietary information, including cost and pricing data. 

 
13.3. This Agreement does not grant directly or by implication, estoppel, or otherwise, any ownership right or license 
under any Motorola patent, copyright, trade secret, or other intellectual property, including any intellectual property 
created as a result of or related to the Equipment sold or Services performed under this Agreement. 

 
Section 14. FCC LICENSES AND OTHER AUTHORIZATIONS 
Customer is solely responsible for obtaining licenses or other authorizations required by the Federal Communications 
Commission or any other federal, state, or local government agency and for complying with all rules and regulations 
required by governmental agencies.  Neither Motorola nor any of its employees is an agent or representative of Customer 
in any governmental matters. 

 
Section 15. COVENANT NOT TO EMPLOY 
During the term of this Agreement and continuing for a period of two (2) years thereafter, Customer will not hire, engage 
on contract, solicit the employment of, or recommend employment to any third party of any employee of Motorola or its 
subcontractors without the prior written authorization of Motorola. This provision applies only to those employees of 
Motorola or its subcontractors who are responsible for rendering services under this Agreement. If this provision is found 
to be overly broad under applicable law, it will be modified as necessary to conform to applicable law. 

 
Section 16. MATERIALS, TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT 
All tools, equipment, dies, gauges, models, drawings or other materials paid for or furnished by Motorola for the purpose 
of this Agreement will be and remain the sole property of Motorola. Customer will safeguard all such property while it is in 
Customers custody or control, be liable for any loss or damage to this property, and return it to Motorola upon request. 
This property will be held by Customer for Motorola's use without charge and may be removed from Customers premises 
by Motorola at any time without restriction. 

 
Section 17. GENERAL TERMS 
17.1. If any court renders any portion of this Agreement unenforceable, the remaining terms will continue in full force 

and effect. 
 
17.2. This Agreement and the rights and duties of the parties will be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State 102



in which the Services are performed. 
 
17.3. Failure to exercise any right will not operate as a waiver of that right, power, or privilege. 

 
17.4. Neither party is liable for delays or lack of performance resulting from any causes that are beyond that partys 
reasonable control, such as strikes, material shortages, or acts of God. 

 
17.5. Motorola may subcontract any of the work, but subcontracting will not relieve Motorola of its duties under this 
Agreement. 

 
17.6. Except as provided herein, neither Party may assign this Agreement or any of its rights or obligations hereunder 
without the prior written consent of the other Party, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld. Any attempted 
assignment, delegation, or transfer without the necessary consent will be void. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Motorola 
may assign this Agreement to any of its affiliates or its right to receive payment without the prior consent of Customer. In 
addition, in the event Motorola separates one or more of its businesses (each a "Separated Business"), whether by way of 
a sale, establishment of a joint venture, spin-off or otherwise (each a "Separation Event"), Motorola may, without the prior 
written consent of the other Party and at no additional cost to Motorola, assign this Agreement such that it will continue to 
benefit the Separated Business and its affiliates (and Motorola and its affiliates, to the extent applicable) following the 
Separation Event. 

 
17.7. THIS AGREEMENT WILL RENEW, FOR AN ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR TERM, ON EVERY ANNIVERSARY 
OF THE START DATE UNLESS EITHER THE COVER PAGE SPECIFICALLY STATES A TERMINATION DATE OR 
ONE PARTY NOTIFIES THE OTHER IN WRITING OF ITS INTENTION TO DISCONTINUE THE AGREEMENT NOT 
LESS THAN THIRTY (30) DAYS OF THAT ANNIVERSARY DATE. At the anniversary date, Motorola may adjust the 
price of the Services to reflect its current rates. 

 
17.8. If Motorola provides Services after the termination or expiration of this Agreement, the terms and conditions in 
effect at the time of the termination or expiration will apply to those Services and Customer agrees to pay for those 
services on a time and materials basis at Motorolas then effective hourly rates. 

 
17.9 This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, all of which shall be considered part of the 
Agreement. The parties may execute this Agreement in writing, or by electronic signature, and any such electronic 
signature shall have the same legal effect as a handwritten signature for the purposes of validity, enforceability and 
admissibility. In addition, an electronic signature, a true and correct facsimile copy or computer image of this Agreement 
shall be treated as and shall have the same effect as an original signed copy of this document. 

 
 
Revised Oct 15, 2015 

103



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Authorize a contract with the Department of Corrections for an inmate work squad. 
  

104



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X     CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: October 5, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER 
  

 

SUBJECT: INMATE WORK SQUADS CONTRACT III - #WS1084 
  

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACT WITH THE 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

On September 3, 2014, City Council approved Inmate Work Squad Contract III (#1084) for the City.  The 

contract will expire December 21, 2016. 

 

The Department of Corrections has established a new contract and has requested the City execute a new 

contract for this Inmate Work Squad.  The new contract number will be #WS1084 and the contract will be 

effective for a one-year term, beginning December 22, 2016, and is subject to one (1) one-year extension, 

with the same terms and conditions.  The cost is $57,497.00 per year, the same as the prior years.  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Funding is included in the Street Improvement Fund – Inmate Division FY17 Budget.     
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Mayor or his designee to sign contract #WS1084 with the Department of Corrections for an 

inmate work squad. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

Contract 

105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Award a contract for lobbyist services to Gray Robinson.  
  

119



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  October 5, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Administration  

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:      1) Rating Results of RFP         

       OTHER:               2) Proposal Submitted by Gray Robinson 
  

 

SUBJECT:  RESULTS OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR FEDERAL AND STATE 

LEGISLATIVE LOBBYIST SERVICES 
 

REQUEST:  REVIEW ATTACHMENTS AND CONSIDER ENGAGING GRAY ROBINSON 

AS THE LOBBYIST FOR THE CITY OF APOPKA   
  
SUMMARY:   
 

City Staff recently released a Request for Proposals for qualified firms to perform State and Federal 

Lobbying services.  A total of six [6] firms responded.  In alphabetical order they were: 
 

1. Gray Robinson 

2. JEJ and Associates 

3. Kathy S. Till and Associates 

4. Pebbles and Smith, LLC 

5. Southern Strategies Group 

6. Wexford Strategies 
 

A competitive selection process was used to rank the six firms.  Five [5] areas were examined and scored 

as follows: 
 

1. Understanding of the City of Apopka budgetary and policy needs and the proposers proposed 

methods and strategies to meet those needs – 10 points, 

2. Qualifications of the firm – experience in State Lobbyist Services, knowledge of legislative affairs, 

interpretations of legal implications, legislative policy statements, major successes for clients, 

credentials, qualifications, licenses, insurance, experience of staff to be assigned to this contract – 

30 points, 

3. References and proposed reports and other correspondence offered – 20 points, 

4. Relationships, Resources and Capabilities – Existing relationships with State of Florida Legislative 

Delegation and with other Key Legislators and support staff.  Also other resources and capabilities 

your firm will provide to this contract – 30 points, 

5. Cost to the City – 10 points. 
 

The City Administrator, Glenn Irby; Finance Director, Pam Barclay and Fire Chief Chuck Carnesale acted 

as the review committee.  After the submissions from the firms were received, they were given to the review 

committee to review independently over several days.  After this, the committee met and compared scores 

and discussed the results.  Scores were as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 120



City of Apopka        

Results of Request for Proposals       

Federal and State Legislative Lobbyist Services      

         

  

Total 
Annual 

Cost 

3 - Year 
Total 
Cost 

Max                
Points 

Glenn Chuck Pam 
Total 

Points 
Awarded 

1 Gray Robinson 
     
$90,000  

    
$270,000  300 94 100 77 271 

2 Kathy S. Till and Associates 
     
$66,000  

    
$198,000  300 72 80 70 222 

3 Southern Strategies Group 
   
$132,000  

    
$396,000  300 79 75 67 221 

4 Pebbles & Smith, LLC 
     
$72,000  

    
$216,000  300 74 65 79 218 

5 JEJ & Associates 
   
$110,000  

    
$330,000  300 75 70 73 218 

6 Wexford Strategies 
   
$100,000  

    
$300,000  300 67 50 66 183 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  

This service is budgeted within the General Fund for fiscal year 2017 at $132,000.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:   
 

From all written presentations received the review committee believes Gray Robinson is best suited to 

perform this service and recommends the City Council direct the City Administrator to enter into a contract 

with them for services to begin during the month of October 2016. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

121



RFQ 2016–14 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

FOR FEDERAL & STATE LOBBYIST  SERVICES

EVALUATION SUMMARY

RANKING BY POINTS AWARDED

EVALUATION FACTOR

MAXIMUM 

POINTS 

AVAILABLE

Gray 

Robinson

Kathy 

S. Till 

and 

Assoc

Southern 

Strategies 

Group

Pebbles 

& Smith, 

LLC

JEJ & 

Assoc

Wexford 

Strategies

Understanding of City of Apopka, 

budgetary and policy needs and 

the proposers proposed methods, 

strategies to meet those needs.

30 25 27 18 15 25 15

Qualifications of the firm – 

Experience in State Lobbyist 

Services.  Knowledge of 

legislative affairs, interpretations 

of legal implications, legislative 

policy statements, major 

successes for clients, credentials, 

qualifications, licenses, 

insurance, Experience of staff 

assigned to this contract.

90 88 55 70 85 75 60

References; and proposed 

reports and other 

correspondence offered

60 48 50 50 25 22 30

Relationships, Resources and 

Capabilities – Existing 

relationships with State of Florida 

Legislative Delegation and with 

other Key Legislators and support 

staff.  Also other resources and 

capabilities your firm will provide 

to this contract.

90 85 60 75 70 80 60

Cost to the City 30 25 30 8 23 16 18

TOTAL POINTS AWARDED 300 271 222 221 218 218 183

122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Approval to extend an agreement with Shepherd and Wolfe Marketing Associates for event coordination.  
  

165



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: October 5, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Recreation 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS: Service Agreement   

       OTHER:         
  

 

SUBJECT: SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF APOPKA AND SHEPHERD + 

WOLFE MARKETING ASSOCIATES 

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR OR DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE THE SERVICE 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF APOPKA AND SHEPHERD + WOLFE 

MARKETING ASSOCIATES 
  
SUMMARY:  
 

Leah Shepherd of Shepherd + Wolfe Marketing Associates provides event coordination and budgeting, 

sponsorship development, promotion planning and advisory services for large community events for the 

City of Apopka.  The attached service agreement extends the existing agreement between the City of 

Apopka and Shepherd + Wolfe Marketing Associates at the rate approved by City Council and included in 

the General Fund FY2016-17 Budget. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Funding is included in the General Fund FY2016-17 Budget.   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 

Authorize Mayor Kilsheimer or his designee to execute the service agreement between the City of Apopka 

and Shepherd + Wolfe Marketing Associates. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

166



 
 

1 
 

Service Agreement 
 

September 27, 2016 

City of Apopka  

 

 

OBJECTIVE 
 

To provide event consulting, sponsorship development advisory services and strategic 

guidance for four signature annual events for the City of Apopka;  a winter outdoor 

festival in February, a fresh food festival in May, Fourth of July Celebration and a gospel 

music festival event in October (event dates may change). 
  

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

 
I. Event Planning, Revenue & Logistics : 

 Work with the City of Apopka event coordinator on all events 

 Budget management  

 Create event infrastructure(s) 

 Establish event planning timeline, ensuring all roles and deadlines are met  

 Work with department staff to secure and manage entertainment, 

production, food & exhibition vendors  

 Sponsorship development, sales and fulfillment ensuring maximum R.O.I. 

and impressions  

 Manage any event committees  

 Volunteer procurement and management 

 Write event script and run of show 

 

 

II. Marketing & Public Relations Support : 

 Work with City of Apopka public relations department on the development 

of a strategic communications plan for event promotion and publicity 

 Secure media partners 

 Oversee design and production for all event collateral including but not 

limited to; 

o Media Advertisements 

o Social Media posts 

o Event Programs 

o Event Signage 

o Event invitations 

o Event digital promotion, way finding and sponsor recognition  

167



 
 

2 
 

 

 

 

 

INVESTMENT 
 

 

Based on the above outlined scope of services, the City of Apopka’s investment is $2,500 

per month beginning October 1, 2016 through September 30, 2017, with an option to 

renew agreement October 1, 2017 to September 30, 2018. 

 

 

 Consulting services not to exceed a total of 30 hours per month. 

 Contract can be terminated by either party with thirty (30) days written 

notice. 

 

 

Other Considerations 

Fee is for event consulting services only. Any vendor expenses will be pre-approved by 

the City of Apopka and billed directly to the City. 

 

 

 

 

 

Accepted by: 

 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________________ ________________________________________ 

Shepherd + Wolfe          Date City of Apopka                                      Date 

 

168



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. Approval to enter into an event service agreement with Roar Music, LLC.  
  

169



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X    CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  October 5, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:      Recreation          

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Service Agreement 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: EVENT SERVICE AGREEMENT   

 

REQUEST: APPROVAL TO ENTER INTO AN EVENT SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH ROAR 

MUSIC, LLC.  
  
SUMMARY: 

 

Staff is requesting to enter into a service agreement with The Roar Music, LLC. covering concert 

entertainment for our Gospel Fest event on November 12, 2016. Under this agreement, The Roar Music is 

responsible for recruiting and hosting music artists and all concert production including audio and lighting 

equipment and setup. The total cost for this service is $60,000 and is contingent upon the city’s final 

selection of music artists.  

 

Under State Statute 287.057 Section 3, “Artistic Services,” which means the rendering by a contractor of 

its time and effort to create or perform an artistic work in the fields of music, are not subject to the 

competitive-solicitation requirements. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Funding is included in the General Fund FY16/17 Budget    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve staff to enter into agreement with The Roar Music, LLC. for $60,000 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

170



Scanned by CamScanner
171



Scanned by CamScanner
172



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

7. Approval to enter into an event service agreement with Birchmore Group, Inc.  
  

173



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X    CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: October 5, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Recreation          

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Service Agreement  

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: EVENT SERVICE AGREEMENT   

 

REQUEST: APPROVAL TO ENTER INTO AN EVENT SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH 

BIRCHMORE GROUP, INC.  
  
SUMMARY: 

 

Staff is requesting to enter into a service agreement with Birchmore Group Inc. covering concert 

entertainment for our spring community event. Under this agreement, Birchmore Group is responsible for 

recruiting and hosting music artists and all concert production including audio and lighting equipment and 

setup. The total cost for this service is $125,000 and is contingent upon the city’s final selection of music 

artists.  

 

Under State Statute 287.057 Section 3, “Artistic Services,” which means the rendering by a contractor of 

its time and effort to create or perform an artistic work in the fields of music, are not subject to the 

competitive-solicitation requirements. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Funding is included in the General Fund FY16/17 Budget     
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve staff to enter into agreement with Birchmore Group Inc. for $125,000 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

174



EEVVEENNTT  SSEERRVVIICCEE  PPRROOPPOOSSAALL  
 
Name/Contact:  City of Apopka / David Burgoon 
Type of Service:  Talent & Production Services  

Date/Time:    February 11, 2017 / 2pm to 10pm 

# of Guests:   TBD 
 

 

 
PRODUCTION/COORDINATION 
 
BGI services will include but not limited to planning, budgeting, supervision and contracting of 

talent, audio-visual and a/v labor of this program.  

 
EVENT LOCATION, ADDRESS & PHONE NUMBER 
 

Apopka Northwest Recreation Complex 
3710 Jason Dwelley Pkwy 

Apopka, FL 32712 
Office 407-703-1641 

dburgoon@apopka.net 
 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
 

Lighting Qty Days 

Whole Hog Lighting Console 1 1 

Beam 200 5R moving light  16 1 

Air Cannon 7R Lights 6 1 

Servo Wash 250 moving yoke Lights 4 1 

LED PAR Fixtures (stage wash) 60 1 

Source 4 Leko (Stage Wash Specials)  10 1 

Dimmer Rack  2 1 

XLR  Lot  4 

Power Cables  Lot  3 

Radiance Hazers 2 1 

10x10x12 Box Truss for Lighting 16 1 

Chain Motors and Rigging Gear 8 1 

Misc. Gaff tape/ splitters/ safety cables   Lot  1 
 

 

175



 
 

Audio Qty Days 

EAW Line Array 4/2 per side, 10000 

Watts, 4 double 15” subs, 8 top cabinets 

3 way system   

1 1 

DAS stage Monitors 8 1 

Allen Heath I live T-112  Digital Audio 

Console 48/24 

FOH with Digital Snake  

1 1 

Split Snake 1 1 

Allen Heath GL3200 Monitor Console 1 1 

Ashley 1/3 Oct EQ Rack 6 1 

Shure UHF Wireless HH Pack 4 1 

Microphone Kit with Stands, Shure Drum 

Kit, Senn 604, & 81’s SM 57, SM58, DIs 

2 1 

XLR Cabling Lot  1 

Power Cables, Gaff Tape   Lot  1 
 

Backline Qty Days 

Band Requirement 1 1 
 

Staging-Electric Qty Days 

Drum Riser   2 1 

Keyboard Riser   1 1 

Tent 10’ x 10’ (FOH/Monitor World)  1 1 

Clear Com for Six Positions 1 1 

Delivery (Set & Strike)  1 1 
 

Talent Qty Days 

Local/Regional and National Headiner 

Acts   

  

Airfare   

Hotel Accommodations   

Hospitality/Catering   

Ground Transport with Runner    
 

Production Labor Qty Days 

Event Management including Staff, Prep 

Work, Site Visits, Programming 

1 --- 

TD & Lighting Engineer & Operator  1 2 

Lighting Assist 3 2 

Audio Engineer- FOH  1 2 

Audio Engineer - Monitors 1 2 

Audio Stage Hands 8 2 

Overtime and Crew Catering   
 

 

BILLING ITEMS 
 

Complete Outlined Package Price:      $125,000.00 

176



 

TERMS & DEPOSIT 
Performance of this Agreement shall be excused for reasons of labor disputes, strikes or 

picketing, accidents, government (federal, state or local) requisitions, restrictions upon travel, 
transportation, power failure or other causes, whether enumerated herein or not, which are 

beyond the control of the Producer.  
 

 Advance Deposit    $TBD 

 
 Final Payment    $TBD 

 

INSURANCE 
We will provide a comprehensive commercial general liability policy in the amount of 
1,000,000.00 per occurrence, 2,000,000 (General Aggregate).  Should you require a custom 

certificate with your company name, the cost is an additional $150.00 to the contract amount. 

 

CONFIRMATION 
The advance deposit is required to secure and guarantee use of the program. The entire amount 

of that deposit along with any advanced deposits will be credited toward the final bill at the 
completion of the event. 

 

 

CANCELLATION 
The following cancellation policy will be in effect if written notification is received by certified 
mail... 

 

        * 45 days prior to event - 50% of advance deposit returned 
        * 100% Payment and No refund will apply if notification is made within 29 days of the  

Event, due to expenses and specialty nature of holiday event. 
 

PAYMENT 
Make check payable to Birchmore Group, Inc. in US funds only. Payment must be in full before 
the completion of the event.  We cannot accept personal checks.  A $50.00 fee will be charged 

for all returned checks. 
 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 Talent Fees, Labor and Rental is guaranteed regardless of inclement weather; 

 If operators deem they are in danger of damaging equipment or themselves due to wind, 

lighting or rain, Birchmore Group has the right to power down equipment. Equipment 
cannot sustain rain. We recommend taking around rain insurance policy; 

 Client to provide adequate power for audio-visual equipment; 

 Client understands there are prep fees to guarantee performance and Birchmore/Artists 

are guaranteed payment as outlined in Cancellation Policy; 
 Client to provide schedule of event; 

 Talent will allow up to 25 guests for meet/greet following performance. Meet/Greet not 

to exceed 30 minutes; 

 Client to provide uniformed police at stage and backstage area; 

 Barricades to be provided by client; if required to prohibit stage entrance. 
 

 

177



The undersigned acknowledges that s/he, they has/have read and understand(s) this event 

contract and give Birchmore Group, Inc. the right to pursue items and services contained within 
the proposal.  Please sign and return one copy via scan/email or via fax to 877-423-7752. 

 
 

Signatures:      ____________________   Date: _______________ 

David Burgoon for  
City of Apopka 

407-703-1641 
 

By: 

    Date: 9/28/16________ 

Birchmore Group, Inc. 

  3071 N Orange Blossom Trail, Suite S 
Orlando FL 32804 

FIN #: 59-3523946      Contract# 49nfuw 

 

178



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Preliminary Development Plan – Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park – Quasi-Judicial    David 
Moon 

  

179



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: October 5, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Preliminary Development Plan  Aerial Map 

    Site Plan 

    Landscape Plan 
  
SUBJECT:  WEKIVA PARKWAY INDUSTRIAL PARK – PRELIMINARY 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

   

REQUEST:  APPROVAL OF THE WEKIVA PARKWAY INDUSTRIAL PARK – 

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS. 

(PARCEL ID NOS.: 01-21-27-0000-00-030, 01-21-27-0000-00-060, 06-21-28-

7172-12-060, 06-21-28-7172-13-000, 12-21-27-000-00-010 & 12-21-27-0000-00-

018) 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNERS:   Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouse, LTD. 
 
APPLICANT:   June Engineering Consultants, Inc. 
 
ENGINEER:   June Engineering Consultants, Inc., c/o Jeffrey A. Sedloff, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: South of General Electric Road, east of Hermit Smith Road and west of the 

Western Beltway (S.R. 429) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant Land 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:  Industrial 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  I-1 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Industrial Park (7 Lots) 
  
TRACT SIZE:   140.47 +/- Acres 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

180



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 6, 2016 

WEKIVA PARKWAY INDUSTRIAL PARK- PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Industrial I-1 Industrial Warehouse  

East (City) Industrial I-1 Industrial Warehouse/S.R. 429 

South (City) Mixed Use  M-EC Vacant land 

South (County) Rural A-1 Vacant land 

West (City) Industrial/Mixed Use/RVLS I-1/M-EC/R-1AA Trucking Site/Vacant Land 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park - Preliminary Development Plan is 

a 140 +/- acres industrial site, which will consist of seven (7) individual lots ranging from nine (9) to fifteen 

(15) acres in size and developed in four (4) phases.  This site is located south of General Electric Road, east 

of Hermit Smith Road and west S.R. 429.   

 
UTILITY/ACCESS:  The site will be serviced by City water, sewer and reclaimed water.  There are two 
proposed access points to the site with the primary entrance point being located on General Electric Road 
and a secondary access point located onto Hermit Smith Road. There is currently an unnamed and 
unmaintained road right-of way-running through the center of the property. Prior to final plat approvals the 
applicant will be requesting to vacate of the right-of-way. 
 

STORMWATER:  The stormwater management system will be handled by three on-site dry retention 

ponds. The stormwater ponds have been designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code requirements. 

 

LANDSCAPE AND BUFFERS: Landscaping for the all lots, tracts and roadway buffers will occur at the 

construction of each individual lot.  The applicant proposes that the construction of all buffer requirements 

will be constructed on a lot-by-lot basis.  As each lot owner is responsible for construction of the buffer 

wall at the time each lot is developed. The planting materials and irrigation system design shall be consistent 

with the water-efficient landscape standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.  A fifty (50) foot wide natural 

buffer will be maintained around the perimeter of the site.   

 

TREE PROGRAM:  The applicant will be required to demonstrate the site meets this tree stock 

requirement on the final development plan or contribute into the tree bank mitigation program, if applicable. 

 

Total inches on-site:                  38,771 

Total number of specimen trees:      124 

Total inches removed:        35,784 

Total inches retained:                2,863 

Total inches required:        20,869 

Total inches replaced:              0 

Total inches post development:     2,863 

Tree inches Deficit                       18,006 

 

The City’s Land Development Code and Tree Bank policy permit the applicant to make a contribution to 

the City’s Tree Bank to mitigate the remaining deficient tree inches at $10.00 per inch. The total amount 

required to be paid into the Tree Bank will be ($108,060) dollars 181



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 6, 2016 

WEKIVA PARKWAY INDUSTRIAL PARK- PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 3 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the land use amendment 

and rezoning application for this property, and coordination occurred with County planning staff regarding 

impact on adjacent parcels.   

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

 

1. A plat shall not be recorded until City has approved right-of-way vacate for unnamed road right of way 

within the project site. 

 

2.  An eighty foot-wide public right-of-way shall be provided within the Preliminary Development Plan 

for Peterson Road within the lands owned by Mid-Florida Freezer. 

 

3. Fern Industrial Drive shall be constructed in one phase and the lift station shall be dedicated to the City. 

 

5. Stormwater management system must meet the requirements of the City’s development standards, as 

determined by the city engineer. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

Planning Commission – May 24, 2016, 5:30 p.m. 

City Council – July 6, 2016, 1:30 p.m. 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park - 

Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report and the conditions of approval. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its special meeting on May 24, 2016, recommended approval  of the Wekiva 

Parkway Industrial Park - Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report and the 

conditions of approval. 

 

City Council:  Approve the Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the 

findings of this staff report and the conditions of approval. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

182



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 6, 2016 

WEKIVA PARKWAY INDUSTRIAL PARK- PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 4 

 
Application:  Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park Preliminary Development Plan 
Owner:  Mid Florida Freezer Warehouse, LTD 
Applicant:  June Engineering, Inc. 
Engineer:   Jeffrey A. Sedloff, P.E. 
Parcel ID No.s:   01-21-27-0000-00-030, 01-21-27-0000-00-060, 06-21-28-7172-12-060,    
   06-21-28-7172-13-000, 12-21-27-000-00-010 & 12-21-27-0000-00-018 
Total Acres:  140.47 +/- 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Subject Property 

183



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 6, 2016 

WEKIVA PARKWAY INDUSTRIAL PARK- PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 5 

 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 
  

184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Mass Grading Plan/Developers Agreement – Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park – Quasi-Judicial   David 
Moon 

  

208



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: October 5, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Mass Grading Plan  Aerial Map 

    Mass Grading Plan 

    Haul Route 

    Developers Agreement 
  
SUBJECT:  MASS GRADING PLAN – WEKIVA PARKWAY INDUSTRIAL PARK 

   

REQUEST:  APPROVAL OF THE MASS GRADING PLAN AND DEVELOPER’S 

AGREEMENT FOR WEKIVA PARKWAY INDUSTRIAL PARK FINAL 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN. (PARCEL ID NOS.: 01-21-27-0000-00-030, 01-21-27-

0000-00-060, 06-21-28-7172-12-060, 06-21-28-7172-13-000, 12-21-27-000-00-010 & 

12-21-27-0000-00-018) 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNERS:   Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouse, LTD. 
 
APPLICANT:   June Engineering Consultants, Inc. 
 
ENGINEER:   June Engineering Consultants, Inc., c/o Jeffrey A. Sedloff, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: South of General Electric Road, east of Hermit Smith Road and west of the 

Western Beltway (S.R. 429) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant Land 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:  Industrial 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  I-1 Industrial 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Industrial Park and Mass Grading Plan for Final Development Plans 
  
TRACT SIZE:   140.47 +/- Acres 
 

AREA OF EXCAVATION: 136.89 +/- Acres 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 209



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 

WEKIVA PARKWAY INDUSTRIAL PARK– MASS GRADING PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 
 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Industrial I-1 Industrial Warehouse  

East (City) Industrial I-1 Industrial Warehouse/S.R. 429 

South (City) Mixed Use  M-EC Vacant land 

South (County) Rural A-1 Vacant land 

West (City) Industrial/Mixed Use/RVLS I-1/M-EC/R-1AA Trucking Site/ Vacant Land 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:     The mass grading plan is the first phase of the Final Development Plan 

and is consistent with the Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park Preliminary Development Plan.  It allows site 

grading to occur consistent with the ground elevations and contours established within the Preliminary 

Development Plan and the Final Development Plan, when it is submitted to the City within the next year.  

All required permits from the St. Johns Water Management District and other state agencies must be 

obtained by the applicant prior to commencing any grading activities.    

 

The applicant requests to vacate an existing un-named public right-of-way running east to west through the 

northern portion of the property.  Peterson Road runs east to west in a southern portion of the property and 

does not satisfy a minimum right-of-way width of eight feet desired by the City.  Through a developer’s 

agreement the City agrees to vacate the northern un-named right-of-way, which will then transfer in 

ownership to the applicant\property owner. The applicant\property owner agrees to dedicate to the City 

additional land to allow the Peterson Road to achieve a minimum right-of-way width of 80 feet.   Any fee 

the applicant receives for the excavation and off-site hauling of the fill from the original Peterson Road 

right-of-way or from the un-named right-of-way by the applicant, the City will receive ten percent of the 

revenue.  The details of the right-of-way exchange are provided in the developer’s agreement. 

 

Also, addressed in the developer’s agreement is the conditional dedication of another eighty-feet of right-

of-way within property owned by the applicant and located east of S.R. 429.  This dedication is conditional 

upon other property owners agreeing to dedicate or reserve land to complete a north-south extension of 

Avian Pointe Blvd from Peterson Road to W. Orange Avenue. 

 

HAUL ROUTE:  General Electric Road west to Hermit Smith Road north to Orange Blossom Trail or 

General Electric Road east to West Orange Ave north to Orange Blossom Trail to Keene Road; as illustrated 

on Sheet 20 of the Mass Grading Plan. 

  

PHASING AND RESTORATION PLAN:    Clearing and grading of site will occur according to the 

Phasing Plan established within the Mass Grading Plan.  Clearing and grading shall occur one phase at a 

time for the six planned phases.  Each phase must be restored (i.e., revegetated) prior to commencing 

clearing and grading activity on the next phase. 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL:  A habitat management plan was submitted by the applicant.  Based on the results 

of this study, the developer must obtain approval from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection 

prior to commencing any grading or further site construction activity. 

 210



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 

WEKIVA PARKWAY INDUSTRIAL PARK– MASS GRADING PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

TREE PROGRAM: The applicant will be required to demonstrate the site meets this tree stock 

requirement on the final development plan or contribute into the tree bank mitigation program, if applicable.  

Payment will occur at a phase-by-phase basis prior to commencing any clearing or grading activity. 

 

Total inches on-site:                  38,771 

Total number of specimen trees:      124 

Total inches removed:        35,784 

Total inches retained:                2,863 

Total inches required:        20,869 

Total inches replaced:              0 

Total inches post development:     2,863 

Tree inches Deficit                       18,006 

 

The City’s Land Development Code and Tree Bank policy permit the applicant to make a contribution to 

the City’s Tree Bank to mitigate the remaining deficient tree inches at $10.00 per inch. The total amount 

required to be paid into the Tree Bank is estimated at $108,060 dollars. 

 

CONDITON OF APPROVAL 

1.   Preliminary Development Plan must not expire for the Mass Grading Plan to remain in valid.  If the 

Preliminary Development Plan expires, the Mass Grading Plan will also expire. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

May 24, 2016 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

October 5, 2016 – City Council (1:30 pm)  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park - 

Grading Plan for the property owned by Mid-Florida Freezer, LTD subject to the Conditions of Approval. 

 
The Planning Commission, at its special meeting held May 24, 2016, recommended approval (7-0) of the 
Mass Grading Plan for the Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park, subject to the Conditions of Approval 
addressing a developer’s agreement and the condition appearing herein this report, for the property owned 
by Mid-Florida Freezer, LTD, and located south of General Electric Road, east of Hermit Smith Road and 
west of the Western Beltway (S.R. 429). 
 
City Council:   
 
1. Approve the Mass Grading Plan for the Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park, subject to the Conditions of 

Approval 
 
2. Approve the developer’s agreement and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreement, subject to final 

review by the City Attorney for format and content. 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

211



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 

WEKIVA PARKWAY INDUSTRIAL PARK– MASS GRADING PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 
Application:  Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park Preliminary Development Plan 
Owner:  Mid Florida Freezer Warehouse, LTD 
Applicant:  June Engineering, Inc. 
Engineer:   Jeffrey A. Sedloff, P.E. 
Parcel ID No.s:   01-21-27-0000-00-030, 01-21-27-0000-00-060, 06-21-28-7172-12-060,    
   06-21-28-7172-13-000, 12-21-27-000-00-010 & 12-21-27-0000-00-018 
Total Acres:  140.47 +/- 

 
 

 
 

VICINITY MAP 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject Property 

212



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 

WEKIVA PARKWAY INDUSTRIAL PARK– MASS GRADING PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Approve the second amendment to the Marden Road Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement.  Glenn A. Irby 
  

258



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  October 5, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:          Administration     

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       2nd Amendment to Cost  

  X  OTHER: BUSINESS        Share Agreement 
  

 

SUBJECT: COST SHARE AGREEMENT WITH MMI DEVELOPMENT FOR A HALF 

INTERCHANGE BETWEEN SR414 AND MARDEN ROAD. 

 

REQUEST: DIRECTION TO ALLOW A SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE ORIGINAL 

AGREEMENT. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 

During the latter part of calendar year 2015, the City entered into an agreement with MMI Development to 

share in the cost of construction of a half interchange between SR414 and Marden Road.  Negotiations 

produced a document stating among other things the City would share 90% of actual costs to construct the 

two ramps with a not to exceed ceiling of $5,850,000.  Other stipulations included the City making an initial 

contribution of $2.5 million once the interchange was finished and accepted as complete by the Central 

Florida Expressway Authority [CFX], the City’s sharing of transportation impact fees as they were collected 

within the Small Area Study [Marden Road Interchange Project Area], implementation of a Synthetic Tax 

Incremental Financing District [STIF] of which the City would share 50% of increased property tax with 

MMI and also share 25% of all revenues collected from CFX tolls.  The initial agreement contained 

provisions as to how and when MMI would be repaid by the city.  Subsequent to the approval of the 

agreement, MMI has requested a modification giving them immediate opportunities to receive cost sharing 

from the City as it collects fees from the Small Area Study.  The modification, titled Second Amendment 

to Marden Road Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement follows this report.  In exchange for being able to 

immediately qualify for sharing of revenues collected by the City, MMI has agreed to post a payment and 

performance bond in an amount equal to 110% of hard costs related to the project and name the City as a 

beneficiary/obliged.  This will guarantee the interchange will be constructed.  Cost of the performance bond 

will be paid by MMI Development. 

 

During negotiations of this amendment, the idea of constructing two [2] roundabouts was conceived.  The 

two new intersections to be created along Marden Road by the new interchange will require either 

signalization or other traffic control devices for a myriad of reasons.  Roundabouts are a staff choice for the 

following reasons: 1) they keep traffic moving unlike a traffic signal; 2) they are less costly to construct 

and maintain.  A traffic signal can cost approximately $220,000; therefore, two [2] would be $440,000.  

Added to construction is ongoing maintenance and recurring electrical costs.  It is believed that two [2] 

roundabouts can be constructed for less than $600,000.  MMI has indicated it will construct the two 

roundabouts for the city at a maximum cost share amount of $530,941, which is 90% of anticipated cost.  

Staff believes using MMI’s contractors will save on mobilization costs since they are already onsite and as 

such will qualify under the City’s purchasing policy as an evaluated source.  Following this staff report is 

a rendering of what the roundabouts will closely resemble once construction is complete. 

 

 259



In the original cost share agreement, MMI agreed that the City would retain all transportation impact fees 

paid by the new Florida Hospital, but all other properties in this area were subject to cost sharing rules.  

Pulte Homes owns property in the area and they are nearing the time they will begin construction.  Their 

property is within the Small Area Study and in close proximity to Harmon Road.  City staff is desirous of 

extending Harmon Road across the Pulte Homes property to connect with Marden Road at one of the new 

roundabouts and needs right-of-way to do so.  When this was explained to MMI, they agreed to exclude the 

Pulte Homes property from the cost share agreement.  This is reflected within the amendment as well. 

 

Another item requested by MMI to be included in this amendment is for the City’s Finance Department to 

segregate transportation impact fees collected from within the Small Area Study in a separate account.  

While transportation impact fees are already restricted as to use and are therefore separated from general 

revenues, city staff has no reservations about this request. 

 

It should be reiterated here that the cost sharing arrangement as well as the STIF sunset at the end of 10 

years from the date of the original agreement.  This would be September 28, 2025. 

 

In summary, the requested changes within this amendment do the following: 

 

1. Add cost to the project of a maximum of $530,941 to construct two [2] roundabouts on Marden 

Road; thus, increasing a total maximum cost share to the city of $6,380,941 from $5,850,000 

[$5,850,000 maximum for the interchange ramps and $530,941 maximum for the roundabouts]. 

2. Allow MMI Development to immediately begin to benefit by the city sharing revenue generated 

from Transportation Impact Fees and direct transportation credits rather than wait until the 

interchange is constructed. 

3. Require MMI to provide a Payment and Performance Bond in an amount equal to 110% of hard 

costs of the project and name the city as a beneficiary/obliged, which will guarantee the project is 

completed.   

4. Require MMI to agree not to include Pulte Home’s property in the cost share agreement.   

5. Require the City to establish a restricted account to track revenues received from Transportation 

Impact Fees within the Small Area Study. 

6. Require the City to provide a written report to MMI of City wide collections of transportation impact 

fees each month during construction [this is a public document/record].  Cost sharing of 

transportation impact fees will only occur when collections are made from the Small Study Area. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  

Transportation Impact Fees collected within the Small Area Study, Transportation Impact Fee Credits due 

to MMI and Incremental Property Tax increases from only the Small Area Study    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:   

Approval of the following Amendment to the Original Marden Road Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

260



PREPARED BY AND RETURN TO: 
CLIFFORD B. SHEPARD, ESQUIRE 
2300 MAITLAND CENTER PARKWAY, SUITE 100 
MAITLAND, FLORIDA  32751 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO MARDEN ROAD INTERCHANGE COST 
SHARING AGREEMENT 

 
 

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO MARDEN ROAD INTERCHANGE COST 
SHARING AGREEMENT (the “Amendment”), is effective as of the latest date of 
execution by the parties hereto (the “Effective Date”), and is made and entered into by 
and between EMERSON POINT ASSOC., LLLP, a Florida limited liability limited 
partnership (“Emerson I”); EMERSON POINT PHASE II, LLC,  a Florida limited liability 
company (“Emerson II”) (Emerson I and Emerson II collectively referred to as the 
“Owners”, and individually as  an “Owner”), EMERSON MMI-INT, LLC, a Florida limited 
liability company (“Owners’ Agent”),  and THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, a Florida 
municipal corporation (“City” or “Apopka”) (Owners, Owners’ Agent,  and the City are 
collectively referred to as the “Parties” and individually as a “Party”). 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, Owners, Owners’ Agent, and the City are parties to that 

certain Marden Road Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement with an effective date of 
September 29, 2015, recorded September 29, 2015 in O.R. Book 10989, Page 4329, 
Public Records of Orange County, Florida, as amended by that certain Frist Amendment 
entered into between the Parties dated September 8, 2016 and recorded   September 
October _, 2016 Doc# ___________, Public Records of Orange County, Florida (the 
“Agreement”); and 

 WHEREAS, Owners, Owners’ Agent and the City desire to amend and 

supplement the Agreement in accordance with and as provided in this Amendment to 
increase the maximum cost share to include up to ninety percent (90%) of the 
documented costs of construction of certain roundabouts to be constructed on Marden 
Ridge Road depicted on Exhibit “A” attached hereto (the “Roundabouts”); to provide for 
interim cost sharing from certain road impact fees collected prior to the date payment is 
due for the Initial Contribution; to require Owner and Owners’ Agent to post a payment 
and performance bond for the entire project for the benefit of the City which meets the 
requirements set forth herein; and to exclude the transportation impact fees generated 
by Pulte Homes and its affiliates from the available cost share funds available to Owners 
under the Agreement. 

 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

261



 2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the City, Owners, and 

Owners’ Agent hereby amend the Agreement as follows: 

A. Recitals.  The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated 

herein by reference. 

B. Definitions.  Any defined terms used herein shall have the same meaning 

as set forth in the Agreement unless the context herein clearly requires otherwise. 

C. The following sections of the Agreement are amended as follows 

(strikethrough indicates deletions, underline indicates additions): 

2.4.1 Roundabouts – shall refer to all roadway, drainage and other improvements 
designed, engineered, permitted, approved and constructed in connection with the 
improvements described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and Section 3 herein below and 
the Interchange Agreement. 

2.11 Project Costs – shall mean the total cost of the Interchange and 
Roundabouts incurred by Owners’ Agent, including the value of any land or drainage 
easements required to be conveyed by Owners to the Authority for the Project as set forth 
herein. 

3. Interchange.  Owners’ Agent shall complete the design, engineering, 

permitting and construction of the Interchange and Roundabouts pursuant to the terms 
and conditions of the Interchange Agreement, including the design, engineering, legal, 
permitting, and construction of any roads, drainage, retention or other structures related 
to the construction of the Interchange and Roundabouts all as set forth in the Interchange 
Agreement. 

 (i) Upon completion of the Interchange and Roundabouts the City shall 
make an Initial Contribution of up to $2,500,000 towards the City’s maximum cost share 
in the Project Costs as set forth in Section 5 herein.  The Initial Contribution shall be paid 
to the Owners’ Agent pursuant to the procedures set forth in Section 3(ii) herein. 

 (ii) As a condition precedent for payment of the Initial Contribution, upon 
completion of the Interchange (as evidenced by a Certificate of Completion from the 
Authority), Owners’ Agent shall deliver to City and Owners (i) a request for a draw 
payment, (ii) General Contractor’s sworn statements and unconditional waivers of lien, 
and subcontractors,’ material suppliers’ and laborers’ conditional waivers of lien, covering 
all work, paid with the proceeds of the prior draw requests, together with such invoices, 
contracts or other supporting data as the City may reasonably require to evidence that all 
costs for which disbursement is sought have been incurred, and (iii) evidence that any 
inspection required by the Authority for the Interchange has been completed with results 
satisfactory to the Authority.  In this regard, the City shall have the right to reasonably 
inspect all books, records and accounts relating to such work. These books, records and 
accounts are considered public records and therefore will be available for review by the 
public upon request.  Based upon the available maximum cost share not exceeding 
$5,850,000.00 for the Interchange and $530,941.00 for the Roundabouts, the City shall 
promptly pay 42.7350% of the total Project Costs supported by the draw request, not to 

262



 3 
 

exceed $2,500,000.  Payments shall be made to Owner’s Agent within ten (10) days of 
receipt of the draw request and supporting documentation set forth herein. 

(iii) Upon City’s payment of the Initial Contribution towards the total Project 
Costs for the Interchange as calculated above, the Owner shall be eligible to receive 
additional cost sharing from the City as set forth herein, not to exceed the maximum cost 
share in the Project Costs as set forth in Section 5 herein.  Notwithstanding this provision, 
Owner shall be eligible to receive cost sharing from Road Impact Fee Credits and Road 
Impact Fees as set forth in Section 7 herein on the Effective Date of the Agreement, which 
is recognized as being September 29, 2015.  Any such payments shall be subject to the 
Pre-Conditions for Payment set forth in Section 6.3 herein. 

5. Cost Sharing.  The City shall share in the Project Costs from revenues 

exclusively generated as follows: (i) synthetic tax increment financing for the Interchange, 
as provided herein; (ii) Road Impact Fee Credits, as provided herein; (iii) Road Impact 
Fees from the Marden Road Interchange Project Area, as provided herein and (iv) 25% 
of any toll revenue provided to the City by the Authority, as provided herein.  The City 
specifically and expressly does not pledge its general or any other revenue sources to 
the Project Costs.  Total cost sharing may not exceed a maximum contribution by City of 
$5,850,000.00 for the Interchange and $530,941.00 for the Roundabouts.  On an annual 
basis by not later than April 1 of each year, the City shall provide an accounting to the 
Owner’s Agent of the funds available for cost sharing, including information regarding 
incremental tax increases, Road Impact Fees, any toll revenue received, and the amounts 
paid to Owner’s Agent as set forth herein. 

7. Impact Fee Credits Capacity Reservation and CRA. 

 7.1  Allocation of Credits to Project. Commencing with the Effective Date, 
Owners’ Agent shall be entitled and eligible to receive transportation impact fee credits 
pursuant to Section 26-81, Apopka City Code, in an amount not to exceed the maximum 
cost share set forth in Section 5 above (“Road Impact Fee Credits”) to offset 

transportation impact fees otherwise payable for any development within the Property 
(“Road Impact Fees”).  In the event an Owner, assignee, successor or assign, desires 

to obtain building permits for which Road Impact Fees would be payable, Owners’ Agent 
shall provide the City a statement indicating the amount of impact fees that have been 
determined for the number and type of building permits desired.  The City shall provide 
Road Impact Fee Credits in the amount shown on the statement so provided, the dollar 
value of which credits shall be applied towards but shall not exceed the maximum cost 
share as set forth in Section 5 above.  The provisions of this Section 0 shall automatically 
expire and terminate on the tenth (10th) anniversary of the Trust Fund Commencement 
Date after which date Road Impact Fee Credits shall no longer be available to Owner, 
and successors and assigns.  As a, condition precedent to the City’s  cost sharing of Road 
Impact Fee Credits and Road Impact Fees as set forth herein, Owners shall deliver to the 
City a payment and performance bond naming the City as a beneficiary/obligee from a 
surety acceptable to the City and in an amount equal to 110% of the Project Costs for the 
completion of the Interchange and the Roundabouts. 

263



 4 
 

 7.2.1 Allocation of Road Impact Fees for the Pulte Property.  The 

parties expressly agree in Section 7.2 of the Agreement the transportation impact fees 
from properties owned by Pulte Homes or its affiliated entities described on Exhibit “B” 
attached hereto shall not be included in the cost share funds available to Owners under 
the Agreement. 

 7.2.2 Restricted Account.  City shall maintain a bookkeeping entry for the 

Road Impact Fees subject to this Agreement and collected from the Marden Road 
Interchange Project Area, including any Road Impact Fees received for all or any portion 
of the Property to ensure the Road Impact Fees are available for payment of Project Costs 
as provided in the Agreement and not inadvertently allocated to other transportation 
projects.  On or before the 20th of each month, the City shall deliver to the Owners a report 
of Road Impact Fees collected from the Marden Road Interchange Project Area, including 
the Parcel ID number, address, and amount of Road Impact Fees received the preceding 
month.  The City shall also provide to Owners a written report of City wide collections of 
transportation impact fees each month during construction. 

D. No Further Amendment.  Except as provided herein, the terms and 

conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be duly 

executed by their respective duly authorized representatives on the dates set forth below. 
 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA  

By:  Apopka City Council 
 
 
By:   

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
 
Date:   

 
 
ATTEST:  Linda F. Goff  
As Clerk of the City of Apopka 
 
 
By:   

City Clerk 
 
 

264



 5 
 

 

 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ___________, 
2016, by Joseph E. Kilsheimer, as Mayor of the CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, a Florida 

municipal corporation.  He/she is personally known to me or has produced 
______________________________ as identification. 

 
 
   
Signature of Notary Public 
 
   
Typed name of Notary Public 
 

 
[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 

  

265



 6 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Witnesses: 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Print Name:    
 
    
Print Name:    
 
 
 

“EMERSON I” 
 
EMERSON POINT ASSOC., LLLP a 

Florida limited liability limited partnership 
 
 
By:   
Print Name: Michael E. Wright 
Title: General Partner 
 
 
Date:      
 

 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ___________, 
2016, by Michael E. Wright, as General Partner for EMERSON POINT ASSOC., LLLP, a 
Florida limited liability limited partnership, on behalf of the partnership.  He is personally 
known to me or has produced ___________________________________ as 
identification. 

 
   
Signature of Notary Public 
 
   
Typed name of Notary Public 
 

 
[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 

  

266



 7 
 

Witnesses: 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Print Name:    
 
    
Print Name:    
 
 

“EMERSON II” 
 
EMERSON POINT PHASE II, LLC  a 

Florida limited liability company  
 
 
By:   
Print Name:  Michael E. Wright 
Title:  Manager 
 
Date:      
 

   
Print Name:    
 
    
Print Name:    
 
 

By:   
Print Name:  Mary L. Demetree 
Title:  Manager 
 
Date:      
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ___________, 
2016, by Michael E. Wright, as Manager for EMERSON POINT PHASE II, LLC, a Florida 

limited liability company, on behalf of the company.  He is personally known to me or has 
produced ___________________________________ as identification. 

 
   
Signature of Notary Public 
 
   
Typed name of Notary Public 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ___________, 
2016, by Mary L. Demetree, as Manager for EMERSON POINT PHASE II, LLC, a Florida 

limited liability company, on behalf of the company.  She is personally known to me or 
has produced ___________________________________ as identification. 

 
   
Signature of Notary Public 
 
   
Typed name of Notary Public 

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

267



 8 
 

 
 

Witnesses: 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Print Name:    
 
    
Print Name:    
 
 

“OWNERS’ AGENT” 
 
EMERSON MMI-INT, LLC, a Florida 

limited liability company  
 
 
By:   
Print Name:  Michael E. Wright 
Title:  Manager 
 
Date:      
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ___________, 
2016, by Michael E. Wright, as Manager for EMERSON MMI-INT, LLC, a Florida limited 

liability company, on behalf of the company.  He is personally known to me or has 
produced ___________________________________ as identification. 

 
   
Signature of Notary Public 
 
   
Typed name of Notary Public 

  

268



 9 
 

Exhibit “A” 
Roundabouts 

 

 
  

269



 10 
 

Exhibit “B” 
Pulte Property 

 
 

A parcel of land, being a portion of that certain Trustee's Deed, as recorded in Official Records 

Book 8923, Page 2003, lying in Section 20, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, being described 

as follows: 

 

Commence at the Northeast corner of the plat of EMERSON PARK, according to the plat thereof 

as recorded in Plat Book 68, Pages 1 through 17 for a POINT OF BEGINNING; thence run South 

89°59'54" West, along the North line of said EMERSON PARK, 2304.23 feet to the Northwest 

corner of said EMERSON PARK and the Easterly limited access Right-of-Way line of State Road 

451, according to the Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority Right-of-Way Map of 

Maitland Boulevard Extension of State Road 429/414 Systems Interchange, prepared by URS 

Corporation dated 12-15-10, said point lies on a non-tangent curve concave Northwesterly; thence 

run along said Easterly limited access of State Road 451, the following courses; thence run 

Northeasterly, along said non-tangent curve having a radius of 7809.44 feet, a central angle of 

01°10'57", an arc length of 161.19 feet, a chord length of 161.19 feet and a chord bearing of North 

43°17'37" East; thence non-tangent to said curve, run North 36°21'34" East, 205.20 feet to a point 

on a non-tangent curve concave Northwesterly; thence run Northeasterly, along said non-tangent 

curve, having a radius of 7789.44 feet, a central angle of 00°52'54", an arc length of 119.86 feet, 

a chord length of 119.86 feet and a chord bearing of North 40°45'40" East to a point of intersection 

with the Southerly limited access Right-of-Way of State Road 414, according to aforesaid 

Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority Right-of-Way Map of Maitland Boulevard 

Extension of State Road 429/414 Systems Interchange, said point lies on a non-tangent curve 

concave Northwesterly; thence run along said Southerly limited access Right-of-Way line the 

following courses; thence run Northeasterly, along said non-tangent curve, having a radius of 

1430.00 feet, a central angle of 12°34'34", an arc length of 313.88 feet, a chord length of 313.25 

feet and a chord bearing of  North 64°35'56" East; thence run non-tangent to said curve, South 

89°55'15" East, 453.46 feet to a point on a non-tangent curve concave Northeasterly; thence run 

Southeasterly, along said non-tangent curve, having a radius of 749.49 feet, a central angle of 

31°42'43", an arc length of 414.83 feet, a chord length of 409.55 feet and a chord bearing of South 

71°21'09" East, thence non-tangent to said curve, run South 86°44'15" East, 152.54 feet; thence 

run North 80°21'42" East, 174.31 feet; thence run North 81°41'03" East, 401.05 feet to a point on 

a non-tangent curve concave Southerly; thence run Easterly, along said non-tangent curve, having 

a radius of 1223.14 feet, a central angle of 07°04'42", an arc length of 151.11 feet, a chord length 

of 151.01 feet and a chord bearing of North 85°13'16" East to a point lying on the West Right-of-

Way line of Marden Road, according to said Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority 

Right-of-Way Map of Maitland Boulevard Extension of State Road 429/414 Systems Interchange, 

thence run South 00°15'48" West, along said West Right-of-Way line, 467.18 feet to the POINT 

OF BEGINNING. 

 

The above described parcel of land lies in Orange County, Florida and contains 21.424 acres, more 

or less. 
 

270



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Approve the use of property for the purpose of a charity dove hunt.  Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 
  

271



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  October 5, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS        EXHIBITS:   Real Property Use Agreement   

       OTHER:                           Release, Hold Harmless & Indemnification Agreement   

              National Wild Turkey Federation Information 
             
 

SUBJECT: PRIVATE USE OF CITY OWNED PROPERTY ON LAKE MARSHALL  
 

REQUEST: NATIONAL WILD TURKEY FEDERATION/WEKIVA SPRINGS STRUTTERS 

CHARITY DOVE HUNT  
  
SUMMARY:  

The Wekiva Springs Strutters Club [WSSC] is a local Chapter of the National Wild Turkey Federation and 

they are requesting use of land owned by the City of Apopka to hold a charity dove hunt.  Said land is 

located on shores of Lake Marshall.  Hunt will be by invitation.  Monies raised from the event will be 

donated to Wheelin’ Sportsmen, an organization founded in 2000 to assist people with disabilities enjoy the 

outdoors by participating in hunting and shooting sports. 

 

Following for review and discussion are two documents.  The first is titled “Real Property Agreement” and 

the second is titled “Release, Hold Harmless and Indemnification Agreement”.  The first sets forth certain 

stipulations for use of the property by WSSC.  These requirements are as follows: 

 

1. The club may use the property for no more than two days, 

2. The club must assume all responsibility for cleanup and restoration of the property at the end of the 

hunt, 

3. The club must assume all liability for any and all claims arising from use of the property, 

4. The club may only enter onto and use the property for a hunt during lawful dove hunting season as 

established by the State of Florida during legal hunting hours, 

5. The club may only hold a hunt for the charitable purposes, 

6. The club must require all hunting participants, observers of the hunt and others entering or traversing 

the property during the hunt to execute the Release, Hold Harmless and Indemnification form also 

included herein, 

7. The club must maintain all necessary licenses and approvals required to hold a hunt, 

8. The club must maintain sufficient levels of liability and any other types of insurance as required by 

the City, 

9. The club must indemnify and save the City harmless from any and all liability.  

 

Brief information also follows on the National Wild Turkey Federation, Wekiva Springs Strutters Club and 

the Wheelin Sportsmen Club. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  

N/A              
272



      
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:   
 

Staff is in support of this event 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

273



REAL PROPERTY USE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS REAL PROPERTY USE AGREEMENT made this _____ day of __________, 2016, 

by and between the CITY OF APOPKA, a Florida municipal corporation in the State of Florida 

(hereinafter “City”), whose address is 120 E. Main Street, Apopka, Florida 32703, and 

NATIONAL WILD TURKEY FEDERATION (a Foreign not for profit corporation registered 

in Florida) WEKIVA SPRINGS STRUTTERS, APOPKA CHAPTER OF NWTF, whose 

address is 140 E. 1st Street, Apopka, Florida 32703 (hereinafter “Apopka NWTF”). 

 

 WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, City owns fee simple title to certain real property, more particularly 

described in Exhibit “A” (the “Property”) attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, Apopka NWTF wishes to prepare the Property as a dove field in advance of 

a philanthropic dove hunting event; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Apopka NWTF wishes to utilize the Property for no more than two, single 

day philanthropic hunting events to benefit the National Wild Turkey Federation Wheelin’ 

Sportsmen Program; and 

 

WHEREAS, Apopka NWTF has agreed to assume responsibility for all clean up and 

restoration of the Property following the philanthropic hunting events contemplated herein; and 

 

WHEREAS, Apopka NWTF has agreed to assume liability for any and all claims arising 

from Apopka NWTF’s use of the Property; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Real Property Use Agreement for their 

mutual benefit, protection, welfare, and necessity. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions herein 

contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 

hereby acknowledged by the City, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1. Party Obligations. 
 

a. Upon execution of this agreement, Apopka NWTF shall cause to be paid to City 

good and valuable consideration in the amount of ONE DOLLAR ($1.00)  

 

b. City, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, hereby grants unto 

the Apopka NWTF, its agents, and invitees the right to enter the Property between 

the dates _____________ and _____________ between the hours of __ and __ in 

order to prepare the Property as a dove field to attract doves.  On these dates Apopka 

NWTF may plant, mow, and chop silage on the Property in accordance with 

274



standard agricultural practices, all Federal, State, and local laws, ordinances, and 

regulations, and further subject to any additional direction given by the City.   

c. City, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, hereby grants unto 

the Apopka NWTF, its agents, and invitees the right to enter the Property on any 

date during the lawful dove hunting season as established by the State of Florida 

during legal shooting hours in order to conduct no more than two, single day, 

philanthropic dove hunting events in accordance with all Federal, State, and local 

laws, ordinances, and regulations and further subject to any additional direction 

given by the City.  Following conclusion of the event, Apopka NWTF shall 

immediately conduct cleanup of the Property to the City’s reasonable satisfaction. 

 

d. Apopka NWTF shall require all individuals participating in the dove hunting event, 

observing the event, or otherwise entering or traversing the Property to execute the 

Release, Hold Harmless & Indemnification form attached hereto as Exhibit “B.”  If 

an individual is under the age of 18, then a parent or legal guardian must sign the 

form in addition to the minor.  Apopka NWTF will not allow any individual who 

fails to sign the form and/or obtain the required parental/legal guardian signature if 

the individual is under the age of 18, to enter onto the Property. 

 

2. Representations and Warranties.  Apopka NWTF hereby represents and warrants the 

following to the City: 

 

a. Apopka NWTF’s performance under this Agreement will not violate any Federal 

State, and local law, ordinance and/or regulation and Apopka NWTF will fully 

comply with any direction given by the City. 

 

b. Apopka NWTF has the full right and authority to enter into this Agreement and to 

perform its obligations in accordance with its terms. 

 

c. Apopka NWTF now has and will continue to maintain all licenses and approvals 

required to meet the requirements specified within this agreement, and that it will 

at times conduct its activities in a reputable manner. 

 

d. Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Apopka NWTF is 

authorized to do so. 

 

e. General Terms and Conditions 

 

a. Insurance.  During the term of this Agreement, Apopka NWTF shall maintain 

sufficient levels of liability and all other types of insurance necessary and consistent 

with the scope of its undertakings, obligations, and responsibilities as specified in 

Exhibit “C” to this Agreement.  Apopka NWTF’s General Liability Policy shall list 

the City as an additional insured. 

 

b. Indemnity.  Apopka NWTF shall indemnify and save City harmless from any and 

all tort liability, claims for damages, and suits for any injury to any person or 

275



persons, or damages to any property of any kind whatsoever arising out of or in any 

way connected with the services performed by Apopka NWTF.  This Agreement 

by Apopka NWTF to indemnify and hold the City harmless shall include, but not 

be limited to, all charges, costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by 

the City as a result of any pre-suit demands, negotiations, mediation, trial, and/or 

appeal, incurred on account of or by reason of such injuries, damages, liability, 

claims, suits or losses and all damages arising therefrom. 

 

c. Termination. The City may terminate this agreement immediately if the City, in 

its sole discretion, determines that: 

 

a) Apopka NWTF’s use of the Property is causing or may potentially cause 

harm to the Property, any person, or any personal property; and/or 

 

b) Apopka NWTF has violated any Federal, State, and local law or regulation 

in its use of the Property. 

 

 In the event City terminates this agreement, Apopka NWTF shall be responsible 

for restoring the Property to the Property’s state as of the date of the execution of 

this agreement to City’s reasonable satisfaction. 

 

d. Notice.   Any notice or other communication provided for herein or given hereunder 

to a Party hereto shall be in writing and shall be given in person, by overnight 

courier, or by mail (registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return-receipt 

requested) to the respective Parties as follows: 

  

If to the City: 

 

  Glenn Irby, City Administrator 

  City of Apopka  

  120 E. Main Street  

  Apopka, FL 32703 

 

If to Apopka NWTF: 

 

  Louis Haubner, President 

  Wekiva Springs Strutters 

  Apopka Chapter of NWTF 

  140 E. 1st Street 

  Apopka, FL 32703 

 

e. Assignment.  The Parties may not assign this Agreement, or any rights or 

obligations hereunder, in whole or in part. 

 

f. Amendment.  No change, alteration, amendment, or modification of this 

Agreement shall be effective unless stated in a writing signed by both Parties. 

276



 

g. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 

Florida.  Venue for any legal proceeding related to this Agreement shall be brought 

in the appropriate court in and for Orange County, Florida. 

 

h. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, constitutes the final, complete, and exclusive 

statement of the agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, 

and supersedes any and all other prior and contemporaneous agreements and 

understandings, both written and oral, between the Parties. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement on the 

date written below. 

 

 

APOPKA NWTF: 

 

By: ____________________________   Date: ___________ 

      Louis Haubner, President 

 

 

 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
By: ____________________________  Date: ___________ 

       Joe Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

277



Exhibit “A” 

Property Legal Description 

 

THE NE1/4 OF SW1/4 (LESS S 343 FT OF W 400 FT) & NW1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SE1/4 & 

SW1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SE1/4 & W1/2 OF NW1/4 OF SE1/4 SEC 08-21-28 & S 12 ACRES OF 

W1/2 OF NE1/4 OF SE 1/4 SW OF CTR OF LAKE (LESS PCE SOLD MASEK) & E1/2 OF 

NW1/4 OF SE1/4 (LESS S 383.7 FT OF N 413.7 FT OF E 100 FT OF NW1/4 OF SE1/4) & 

FROM E 1/4 COR OF SEC RUN W 1070.14 FT S 388.7 FT FOR POB S 25 FT W 247.92 FT 

S 115.13 FT E 307.92 FT N 140.13 FT W TO POB (LESS PT TAKEN FOR RD R/W PER 

3726/2538) & BEG NW COR OF SW1/4 OF SE1/4 RUN E 950 FT S 35 FT W 950 FT N 35 

FT TO POB IN SEC 08-21-28 SEE 2484/1748 3457/465 & 3974/170 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

278



RELEASE, HOLD HARMLESS & INDEMNIFICATION 

READ THIS DOCUMENT CAREFULLY BEFORE SIGNING. THIS DOCUMENT HAS 

LEGAL CONSEQUENCES AND WILL AFFECT YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS BY 

LIMITING OR ELIMINATING YOUR ABILITY TO BRING FUTURE LEGAL 

ACTIONS. 

In exchange for the privilege to dove hunt and/or observe dove hunting on the property of the City 

of Apopka (hereafter referred to as Land Possessor), located at ________________________ 

____________, on the date of ___________, I, as Hunt Participant/Observer, agree to the 

following:  

I waive for my executors, administrators, assignees or heirs, any and all rights and claims for 

damages, losses, demands and any other actions whatsoever, which I may have or which may arise 

against Land Possessor, and any of its heirs, employees, directors, officers or agents, including but 

not limited to any and all claims for wrongful death, personal injuries, damages or illnesses I suffer 

or suffer to my property, which may, in any way whatsoever, arise out of, be related to or be 

connected with dove hunting, observing dove hunting, or in any way connected with my presence 

on the property of Land Possessor.  

______ INITIAL HERE 

I, on behalf of myself and my executors, administrators, assignees or heirs, hereby expressly 

release Land Possessor and any of its heirs, employees, directors, officers or agents from any and 

all such claims.  I hereby expressly assume the risk of entering the land of Land Possessor and of 

taking part in activities relating to dove hunting and/or observing dove hunting on the land of Land 

Possessor which include, but are not limited to, the discharge of firearms and the firing of live 

ammunition and use of and presence on the land of Land Possessor.  

______ INITIAL HERE 

I hereby agree to indemnify, hold harmless and defend Land Possessor and any of its heirs, 

employees, directors, officers or agents from any and all fault, liabilities, costs, expenses, claims, 

demands or lawsuits arising out of, related to or connected with dove hunting, observation of dove 

hunting, the discharge of firearms, use of and presence on land of the Land Possessor.  And should 

any such claim, demand or lawsuit arise or be asserted in any way whatsoever related thereto, 

whether arising under the laws of the United States, any state, or under any theory of law or equity, 

I will indemnify, hold harmless and defend Land Possessor and any of his or her heirs, employees, 

directors, officers or agents, from any and all costs, expenses or liability including, but not limited 

to, the cost of any settlement or judgment made or rendered against Land Possessor and any of its 

heirs, employees, directors, officers or agents, together with all costs of court and other costs or 

expenses incurred in connection with any such claim, demand or lawsuit, including attorney's fees. 

______ INITIAL HERE 

I furthermore hereby acknowledge and agree that I have read, understand and will at all times 

abide by this agreement.  

Exhibit “B”

279



 

I HAVE CAREFULLY READ THE FOREGOING RELEASE AND WAIVER AND 

KNOW THE CONTENTS THEREOF AND HAVE SIGNED THIS RELEASE AND 

WAIVER AS MY OWN FREE ACT. 

______ INITIAL HERE 

This Release and Waiver contains the entire agreement between the Undersigned and the City of 

Apopka and the terms of this Release and Waiver are contractual and not a mere recital. 

______ INITIAL HERE 

I expressly agree that this Release and Waiver is intended to be as broad and as inclusive as 

permitted by the laws of the State of Florida, and that if any portion thereof is held invalid, it is 

agreed that the balance shall notwithstanding continue in full force and effect. 

______ INITIAL HERE 

In Witness Whereof, I have executed with Release and Waiver on ______ of ______________, 

2016. 

HUNT PARTICIPANT/OBSERVER:  

 

Name: ________________________ 

Street Address: __________________________________________________________ 

City/State/Zip: _____________________________________ 

Birthdate: _______________________ 

Primary Phone: ___________________ 

BY: ____________________________      

 (Signature of Participant)    

 

BY: Parent/Guardian_____________________________ 

Parent/Guardian_____________________________ 

(Signature of BOTH Parents/Legal Guardian of Participant is required if Hunt 

Participant/Observer is under 18 years old) 

  

CITY OF APOPKA: 

 

Name: _________________________  

_________________________          

(Signature) 

280



Exhibit “C”

281



282



283



284



285



286



287



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2510 – Second Reading – Code of Ordinances, “Business Tax Receipts” – Legislative Postpone 
  

288



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: October 5, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBIT(S): Ordinance No. 2510 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Lyft Comments 

  
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 2510 - AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES. 

  

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2510 – TO ALLOW ADMINISTRATIVEE 
APPROVAL OF VEHICLE FOR HIRE PERMITS.  

SUMMARY:  
 
Currently, the process to review a Vehicle for Hire Permit application requires a public hearing before the City 
Council to make a determination of approval, approval with conditions, or denial.  Review by City Council has 
produced little or no public benefit for having the extended review process. These processes are costly and time 
consuming for the City as well as permit applicants. Staff is requesting that Chapter 74, Article IV, Section 74-104 
pertaining To “Vehicles for Hire” be amended by removing language indicating that City Council approval is 
required for Vehicle for Hire permits. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 7, 2016 - City Council 1st Reading (1:30 pm)  
September 21, 2016 – City Council 2nd Reading (7:00 pm) 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 19, 2016 – Public Hearing Notice 
September 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading  
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the amendment to the City of Apopka, Code of 
Ordinances, amending Chapter 74, Article IV, Section 74-104, pertaining To “Vehicles for Hire” by removing 
language indicating that City Council approval is required for drivers. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on September 7, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2510 and 
held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on September 21, 2016. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on September 21, 2016, postponed the Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2510, 
due to concerns expressed by the transportation network company, Lyft, and held it over for Second Reading and 
Adoption on October 5, 2016. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2510 
 
Note: This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and its findings are 

to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

289



Page 1 of 2 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2510 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 

AMENDING CHAPTER 74, ARTICLE IV, SECTION 74-104 

OF THE CITY OF APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES 

PERTAINING TO “VEHICLES FOR HIRE” BY REMOVING 

LANGUAGE INDICATING THAT CITY COUNCIL 

APPROVAL IS REQUIRED FOR DRIVERS; AND 

PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka believes that it is necessary and in 

the best interest of the City to remove requirements for City Council approval of drivers for 

“vehicles for hire.” 

 

LESIGLATIVE UNDERSCORING:  Underlined words constitute additions to the City of 

Apopka Code of Ordinances, strikethrough constitutes deletions from the original, and asterisks 

(***) indicate an omission from the existing text which is intended to remain unchanged.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  Section 74-104 of the City of Apopka Code of Ordinances is hereby 

amended as follows:  

 

Sec. 74-104. - Schedule. 

There is hereby assessed, levied and imposed upon every business, trade, occupation and 

profession carried on within the city an annual business tax in the following amounts:  

*** 

Vehicle for hire. (with driver) Must comply with requirements of City Code Chapter 86.  

(City council approval required)  

(1) 1 to 6 passengers, first vehicle .....61.00  

(2) 7+ passengers, first vehicle .....61.00  

(3) Each additional vehicle .....24.00  

*** 

290



Page 2 of 2 
 

SECTION 2. CODIFICATION.  It is the intention of the City Council that the provisions 

of this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Apopka; and the City Clerk is directed to take the necessary steps to effect codification into the 

Code, and Sections of this ordinance may be numbered or renumbered or lettered or re-lettered 

and the word “ordinance" may be changed to " chapter ", "section ", "article", or such other 

appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such codification. Typographical errors which 

do not affect the intent may be authorized by the Mayor, without need of public hearing, by filing 

a corrected or re-codified copy of same with the City Clerk. 

SECTION 3. CONFLICTS. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 

are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase of 

this ordinance, or the particular application thereof shall be held invalid by any court, 

administrative agency, or other body with appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining section, 

subsection, sentences, clauses, or phrases under application shall not be affected thereby. 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, 

provisions, requirements, orders and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and 

be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

September 21, 2016 

 

 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Linda G. Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED as to form and legality for 

use and reliance by the City of Apopka, 

Florida. 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Cliff B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 19, 2016 

       September 9, 2016 

291



 
 

 

September 21, 2016 

 

Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Commissioner Kyle Becker 

120 East Main Street, First Floor 

Apopka, FL 32703 

 

 

RE: LYFT TESTIMONY AND PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 

 

 

Dear Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioners, 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide testimony on Proposed Ordinance 2511 for consideration by the full 

Council.  We at Lyft believe in working collaboratively towards developing an appropriate regulatory 

framework to allow for the successful continuing operation of Lyft, other ridesharing platforms, and existing 

industry.   

 

While Lyft supports many of the changes made to the City’s Vehicle for Hire Code in Proposed Ordinance 

2511, Lyft believes that there are still ways in which the Proposed Ordinance should be improved.  As such, 

we respectfully request the Council to consider delaying any action on Proposed Ordinance until the next full 

Council meeting.   

 

While we appreciate the Council’s work in updating the City’s Vehicle for Hire Code, Lyft respectfully 

suggests that some areas of the Proposed Ordinance be reconsidered, and that the Council considers 

eliminating some of the burdens placed on individual drivers.   

 

Please find attached our suggested amendments to Proposed Ordinance 2511, which we hope will be given 

fair consideration with an opportunity for both public and City Council input.   

 

 

Thank you for your consideration. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Timothy Alborg  

Public Policy Manager 

 

292



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 
VACATING AND DELETING THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 86 
OF THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES AS CURRENTLY 
WRITTEN, ADOPTING NEW PROVISIONS IN SAID CHAPTER 
AMENDING THE PERMITTING AND REGULATION OF 
TAXICABS AND CREATING REGULATIONS FOR 
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES AND TRANSPORTATION 
NETWORK APPLICATION COMPANIES AND OPERATORS; 
AND PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka believes that it is necessary and in the best 
interest of the City to update its regulations for vehicles for hire in recognition of changes and advances 
in modern business models of private automobile transportation. 

 

LESIGLATIVE UNDERSCORING: Underlined words constitute additions to the City of Apopka 
Code of Ordinances, strikethrough constitutes deletions from the original, and asterisks (***) indicate 
an  omission from  the existing text which is  intended to remain    unchanged. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE    CITY OF 
APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

 
SECTION 1. The provisions of CHAPTER 86, VEHICLES FOR HIRE, shall be vacated and 

deleted in its entirety, and the following shall be adopted in their place. The provisions to be vacated and 
deleted are attached as Exhibit “A.” 

 

Chapter 86 - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL 

Sec. 86-1. - Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

Company means any person, association, corporation or other organization which operates or 
intends to engage in the business of operating vehicles for hire or operate as a TNC. 

Conviction means the conviction by a court including an adjudication of guilt on a plea of guilty or 
nolo contendere or the forfeiture of a bond when charged with a crime. 

Digital platform means any online or smartphone enabled application that allows passengers to 
request transportation network vehicle services. 

Digital credential means the permission or access given to a driver to operate on a company's digital 
platform. 

Driver means an individual permitted to drive a vehicle for hire. 

Fees mean nonrefundable payments required in this chapter. 

Limousine means a specialized vehicle not equipped with a taximeter and for hire only by 
prearrangement at a rate charged per hour, or fixed in advance, and provided also that each such vehicle 
for hire is: (1) chauffeured, (2) a luxury class passenger vehicle built or modified for the purpose of a 
limousine as defined and recognized by the limousine industry; and (3) operated on a reserved,   hourly 

293



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 2 of 16 

 
basis for a continuous period. A vehicle which is held out to be a limousine or which has an appearance 
deceptively similar to a limousine is a limousine for the purposes of this chapter. 

Narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivatives and central nervous system stimulants. The term 
"narcotic drugs" as used in this chapter shall mean coca leaves, opium, cannabis, marijuana, isonipecaine 
and every synthetic substance known to have narcotic action. The term "barbituric acid derivative" means 
each of the salts and derivatives of barbituric acid, also known as malonyl urea, and derivatives, 
compounds, mixtures or preparations thereof. "Barbiturate" or "barbiturates" shall include all hypnotic 
or somnifacient drugs, whether or not derivatives of barbituric acids. The term "central nervous system 
stimulants" means amphetamine and desocyephedrine, and any derivative, compounds, mixture or 
preparation thereof. 

Permit means the authority granted to companies to operate, or persons who qualify to drive, 
vehicles for hire. 

Revocation means the rescinding of a permit. A person or entity whose permit is revoked shall not 
be entitled to reinstatement or an opportunity to reapply for such permit for a period of two years except 
as provided in subsection 86-61(5). 

Shuttle bus means a vehicle with a capacity of at least eight persons, including the driver, that is 
operated on a fixed route, or owner and operated directly by a motel or hotel and limited to registered 
guests thereof. 

Suspension means the temporary rescinding of a permit or license. The suspension may be for a time 
certain or indefinite pending compliance with the terms of this chapter. 

Taxicab means a vehicle for hire with a capacity of not more than eight persons, including the driver, 
equipped with a taximeter operated under a company and vehicle permit required by this article, which 
is routed under the direction of the person hiring the vehicle. 

Taximeter means an instrument or device attached to a vehicle and designed to measure 
mechanically or electronically the distance traveled by such vehicle, to record the times such vehicle 
travels or is in waiting, and to indicate the fare to be obtained. 

Transportation service means a vehicle for hire with a capacity of not more than eight persons, 
including the driver, which is not equipped with a taximeter, which charges passengers a fare generally 
based on a flat fee, and does not operate over a fixed or defined route but routed under the direction of 
the person hiring the vehicle. 

Transportation network application company ("TNC company") means any company operating in 
the city that uses a digital network or software application to connect a passenger to transportation 
network services provided by a transportation network operator. 

Transportation network operator means any driver or operator who operates a personal vehicle that 
utilizes any digital platform to arrange transportation of a passenger between points chosen by the 
passenger and that is in connection with a digital platform controlled by a TNC company. 

Transportation network service means the provision of transportation by a transportation network 
operator to a rider, beginning when the transportation network operator accepts a ride requested through 
a digital platform controlled by a TNC company, continuing while the transportation network operator 
transports a requesting rider, and ending when the last requesting rider departs from the personal vehicle. 

Use of narcotic drugs. The word "use" as employed in this chapter in relation to the drugs described 
in this chapter shall apply to any person who uses one or more of the narcotic drugs or barbituric acid 
derivatives or central nervous system stimulants as defined this section to any extent, with or without 
medical need or authority or prescription. 

Vehicle for hire means any vehicle, whether owned by the driver or company, that is operated by a 
taxicab driver, transportation service driver, transportation network operator, any other motor    vehicle 

294



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 3 of 16 

 
with driver transporting passengers for a fare, fee, or other charge in the city. The term vehicle for hire, 
by definition, excludes: 

(1) School, church, college or university buses; 

(2) Sightseeing cars and buses; 

(3) Ambulances; 

(4) Funeral home vehicles; 

(5) Interstate buses; 

(6) Limousines; 

(7) Shuttle buses. 

Vehicle for hire administrator means the City Administrator or his/her designee. 

ARTICLE II. - COMPANY PERMIT 

Sec. 86-31. - Application; contents. 

(a) No taxicab company, transportation service, or TNC company shall operate or engage in the 
business of operating vehicles for hire or operating a TNC within the city without having first 
obtained a company permit from the vehicle for hire administrator or designee. An application shall 
be submitted on forms furnished by the vehicles for hire administrator or designee containing 
appropriate information which is reasonably related to the business of operating vehicles for hire. 

(b) In order to secure or renew a company permit, the company applicant shall file an application with 
the vehicles for hire administrator or designee, and such application shall be verified under oath and 
shall furnish the following information: 

(1) The name and address of the company. If the company is a corporation or partnership, the name 
and address of all officers, shareholders, partners or any principals or owners with an interest 
greater than five twenty percent of the company must be listed. 

(2) The color scheme and insignia to be used to designate the vehicles of any taxicab company. 

(3) No company permit shall be granted to a taxicab company operating less than five vehicles. 
The vehicles must be currently operating, licensed, and inspected as required by this chapter. 
Each vehicle must conform to the United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) 
maximum passenger standards allowed for the vehicle to operate. 

(4) Proof of proper amount of insurance coverage as provided in section 86-93, with the insurance 
coverage being filed with vehicle for hire administrator and approved by the City. 

(5) Such other information as the vehicle for hire administrator may require. 

(c) Payment of an annual company permit fee of $250.00. 

Sec. 86-32. - Maintaining a company permit. 

(a) In order to maintain a company permit to operate or engage in the business of operating vehicles for 
hire or operating a TNC, the company must: 

(1) Obtain and hold a current business tax receipt from the city as required by chapter 74, if 
applicable. 

(2) Maintain a telephone number that is monitored 24 hours a day for emergency contact by the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee or law enforcement, and an e-mail address for citizen 
complaints or concerns. 

295



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 4 of 16 

 
(3) Maintain the name, home address, and telephone number of each driver affiliated with the 

company. 

(4) Maintain a log listing the year, make, model, license plate number , and vehicle identification 
number (serial number) and ownership status of all vehicles in the company's fleet or that 
operate on a company's platform. 

(5) Maintain proper amount of insurance as provided in section 86-93. 

(6) Maintain records available for inspection, upon request by the vehicle for hire administrator or 
designee, pursuant to a complaint received or if the vehicle for hire administrator has a 
reasonable basis to suspect that a company or driver is violating the requirements of this chapter. 
The records shall include, but not be limited to, records pertaining to permitted/certified drivers, 
vehicle inspection records, daily logs, and that the maximum rate charged in compliance with 
section 86-95. Unless otherwise agreed to by the company and the vehicle for hire 
administrator, such records shall be made available for inspection to the vehicle for hire 
administrator at a permit holder's place of business or a mutually agreed location in the city. 

(7) Each company shall implement a zero-tolerance policy on the use of drugs or alcohol applicable 
to all drivers, and provide notice of the policy to all company drivers and to the public through 
its website, if applicable. In addition, the company shall provide notice to the public on the 
procedure for reporting a driver the passenger reasonably suspects was under the influence of 
drugs or alcohol during the course of the ride. The company shall cooperate with the vehicle 
for hire administrator or designee during the pendency of the investigation pursuant to 
subsection 86-63(b)(3). 

(8) The vehicle for hire administrator or police chief is authorized to conduct annual audits of any 
company authorized to operate under this chapter. The company shall provide to the vehicle for 
hire administrator, on request, up to 250 unique identification numbers, each of which has been 
assigned to an individual driver affiliated with the company. The vehicle for hire administrator 
may send to the company a list of up to ten driver identification numbers and request copies of 
records held by the company for those ten drivers. Within five business days of receiving a 
request seeking records, the company shall make available to the vehicle for hire administrator 
at a company's place of business or a mutually agreed setting in the city, records to verify that 
the company has properly screened drivers in accordance with section 86-61; provided, that the 
company may redact any records it provides access to in order to protect the privacy and 
identifying information of the driver. 

Sec. 86-33. - Revocation or suspension of a company permit; grounds; right of appeal. 

(a) Revocation or suspension of company permit; grounds. Upon a finding of due cause, as defined in 
subsection (b) of this section, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee shall have the authority 
to revoke or suspend any company permit which has been granted or which may hereinafter be 
granted by the city. Prior to suspension or revocation, the company shall be served notice by certified 
mail or hand delivery of the proposed action to be taken and shall have an opportunity to present to 
the vehicle for hire administrator or designee evidence as to why the company permit should not be 
revoked or suspended. 

(b) Causes for revocation or suspension. Due cause for revocation or suspension of a company permit 
shall include but shall not be limited to the following: 

(1) The failure of the company to maintain any of the general qualifications applicable to the initial 
granting of the company permit as set forth in section 86-31 or maintaining a company permit 
as set forth in section 86-32. 

(2) Obtaining a company permit by providing false information. 

296



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 5 of 16 

 

(3) Conviction by a court of competent jurisdiction of any shareholder, officer, partner, member, 
principal or owner of any corporation, partnership, firm or association holding a five percent 
interest or more in the entity, of any of the following: criminal homicide, rape, sexual battery, 
aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, kidnapping, robbery, child molestation, lewd 
and lascivious acts, armed trespassing, carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to 
commit any of the above, criminal attempt to commit any of the above, or possession, sale or 
distribution of narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivatives and/or central nervous system 
stimulants if such violation or violations are related to operation of the company, or violation 
of any ordinance of the city governing the conduct of a company. 

(4) Allowing any person to operate a company's designated vehicle for hire, or operate on the 
company's digital platform, without an active driver permit or credential, or when said person's 
permit or credential has been suspended or revoked because of a positive drug test pursuant to 
section 86-63. 

(c) Right of appeal. Any company whose permit is revoked or suspended by the vehicle for hire 
administrator or designee may appeal such decision to the City Council. Such appeal shall be taken 
by filing written notice thereof, in duplicate, with the city administrator's office within five days 
after the decision of the vehicles for hire administrator or designee. The notice of the appeal shall 
contain the grounds for the appeal and shall contain information that either the finding is contrary 
to the law or is not supported by competent substantial evidence. The vehicle for hire administrator 
or designee shall forthwith transmit copies of the appeal to the City Council along with all papers 
constituting the record upon which the action appealed from is based. The filing of a notice of appeal 
will not delay the effectiveness of any suspension or revocation. 

ARTICLE III. - VEHICLE FOR HIRE DRIVERS 

Sec. 86-60. - Prohibition against unauthorized operation. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate on behalf of a taxicab company, transportation 
service, or other vehicle for hire for the transportation of passengers within the city, or on a TNC's 
digital platform, or to cause or permit any other person to drive or operate a vehicle for hire: 

(1) Without first obtaining a written permit for the operation of a motor vehicle for hire from the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee; 

(2) Without having been certified to operate a motor vehicle for hire on behalf of a company or on 
the company's digital platform; or 

(3) When the company permit has previously been revoked pursuant to section 86-33. 

(b) Any person found to have violated this section shall be punished by the following: 

(1) A fine $150.00 for the first citation; 

(2) A fine of $250.00 for the second citation; and 

(3) A fine of $500.00 for the third or subsequent citation. 

Sec. 86-61. - Application for driver's permit. 

(a) In order to secure a driver permit or to obtain certification from a company, an applicant must: 

(1) Be at least 18 years of age; 

(2) Possess a valid state driver's license; 

(3) For a period of three years prior to the date of application not have been convicted of: 

a. Driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs; or 

297



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 6 of 16 

 
b. Violation of any ordinance or law, other than minor traffic offenses, in connection with the 

operation of a motor vehicle. 

(4) For a period of three years prior to the date of application not have more than three moving 
violations; 

(5) Not have been convicted within the seven years previous to the date of application for the 
violation of any of the following criminal offenses of the state or any other state or of the United 
States: aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, kidnapping, robbery, lewd and 
lascivious acts, armed trespassing, carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to commit 
any of the above, criminal attempt to commit any of the offenses listed in this subsection, or 
been convicted within the last seven years of any felony in the commission of which a motor 
vehicle was used, perjury or false swearing in making any statement under oath in connection 
with application for a driver's permit, any felony involving theft, or possession, sale or 
distribution of narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivative and/or central nervous system 
stimulants. Applicants who have been convicted or served any time, probation, or parole for a 
criminal offense of homicide, rape, sexual battery, or child molestation must have their 
complete criminal history reviewed and approved by the vehicle for hire administrator; 

(0) Be able to communicate in the English language. 

(c)(b) An applicant may apply for a permit or credential by completing a form provided by the vehicle 
for hire administrator establishing that the applicant meets the requirements of subsection. 

(d)(c) Upon approval by the vehicle for hire administrator or designee, or certification by the taxicab 
company, transportation service, or TNC company, the driver shall be issued: 

(1) A permit from the vehicle for hire administrator or designee; or 

(2) Credentials from the taxicab company, transportation service, or TNC company, which may be 
digital credentials, indicating that the driver was certified by the company, and the credential 
shall include the following information: 

a. The name or logo of the company; 

b. The name of the driver; 

c. The license plate number associated with the vehicle that the driver has been authorized to 
use. 

(3) The driver shall display the permit or credential in a manner that it is visible to the passengers 
of the vehicle while the vehicle is operating, or make available at a minimum the driver's first 
name, photograph, and make, model, and license plate number to the passenger through the 
company's digital platform. The driver shall present the permit or credential upon request to a 
law enforcement officer, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee, or designated airport 
personnel upon request. If the driver maintains a digital credential, upon a traffic stop, a driver 
shall provide law enforcement with access to a device containing the information required to 
be maintained as part of the driver's digital credential and an electronic record sufficient to 
establish that the trip in question was prearranged through a digital platform. 

 An applicant must pay an annual driver application fee of $100.00. 

Sec. 86-62. - Maintaining driver's permit. 

In order to maintain a valid permit or credential to drive a taxicab, transportation service, or other 
vehicle for hire, a driver must: 

(4) Wear proper dress while operating a vehicle for hire. 

(5) Maintain a neat appearance. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.38",  No bullets or

numbering

298



8 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 7 of 16 
 

(6) Not smoke while carrying passengers. 

(7) Maintain a log upon which are recorded all trips made each day, showing time and place of 
origin and destination of each trip and amount of fare. Such logs must be maintained by the 
company or the vehicle owner, if not maintained by the driver, and shall be made available to 
the vehicle for hire administrator or designee for a compliance inquiry if the administrator has 
a reasonable basis to suspect that a company or driver is violating the requirements of this 
chapter. 

(8) Renew his driver's permit or credential during the month of the driver's permit or credential 
expiration date. 

(9) Wear a seatbelt at all times while operating a vehicle for hire or providing transportation 
network services. 

Sec. 86-63. - Revocation or suspension of driver's permits; grounds; right of appeal. 

(a) Revocation or suspension of driver's permits or credential. Upon a finding of due cause, as defined 
in subsection (b) of this section, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee shall have the 
authority to revoke or suspend any driver's permit or credential which has been issued or which may 
hereinafter be issued by the city. Before a driver's permit or credential shall be denied, suspended 
or revoked, notice of intention thereof shall be served upon the driver either by registered mail or 
personal service; however, such notice shall not be necessary for a denial of an original permit or 
credential. However, any such applicant or driver shall be given an opportunity to be heard by the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee. 

(b) Causes for revocation or suspension. Due cause for revocation or suspension of a driver's permit or 
credential shall include but shall not be limited to the following: 

(1) The failure of the driver to maintain any and all of the general qualifications as applicable to 
the initial issuance of a permit as set forth in section 86-61; 

(2) Obtaining a permit or credential by providing false information; 

(3) Violation by a driver of any of the following offenses: 

a. Driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs. A driver shall be required 
to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test at the request of the vehicle for hire administrator or 
designee, upon receipt of a passenger complaint, : 

b.a. Where reasonable suspicion exists that a driver is suspected of abusing alcohol or misusing 
prescription drugs or controlled substances; or. 

0. Where a driver has been involved in a crash with serious injury or serious property 
damage while operating a vehicle for hire or providing transportation network 
services. "Serious injury" is defined as a physical condition that creates a substantial 
risk of death, serious personal disfigurement, or protracted loss or impairment of the 
function of any bodily member or organ. "Serious property damage" is defined as one 
or more of the motor vehicles involved in the crash is "totaled", or one or more of the 
vehicles sustains significant disabling damage to public and/or private property which 
equals or exceeds an apparent damage of $5,000.00 or more as estimated by the law 
enforcement officer who conducts the investigation at the scene of the traffic crash; or 

d.b. Refusing or failing to submit to a drug test at the request of the vehicle for hire administrator 
or designee shall be due cause for revocation of the driver's permit or credential with no 
reapplication for one year. Failing a drug or alcohol test shall be due cause for revocation 
of the driver's permit or credential with no reapplication for one year. 

e.c. Criminal homicide, rape, sexual battery, aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, 

299



9 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

kidnapping,  robbery,  child  molestation,  lewd  and  lascivious  acts,  armed  trespassing, 
carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to commit any of the above, criminal 
attempt to commit any of the above, or possession, sale or distribution of narcotic drugs, 
barbituric acid derivatives and/or central nervous system stimulants, violation of any 
ordinance of the city governing the conduct of drivers of a vehicle for hire. 

(4) Charging a fare contrary to any fares established and approved by the city commission pursuant 
to section 86-95; 

(5) Violation of any ordinances or law, other than minor traffic offenses, in connection with the 
operation of a taxicab, transportation service, TNC company, or other vehicle for hire; 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 8 of 16 

 

(6) Whenever it shall appearUpon receipt of a passenger complaint alleging that a driver has 
disorders characterized by lapses of consciousness or other mental or physical disabilities 
affecting his or her ability to drive safely; 

(7) Accumulating nine or more points within a six-month period as outlined in F.S. § 322.27(3)d. 

(8) Violating the requirements of section 86-96. 

Sec. 86-64. - Duration of driver permit. 

Each driver permit or credential issued pursuant to section 86-61 above shall be valid for one year 
from the date of issuance. 

ARTICLE IV. - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

Sec. 86-91. - Identifying signs, monograms and insignias. 

(a) Taxicabs. 

Each taxicab shall be readily identifiable as a taxicab and shall bear on the outside of each rear or 
front door, in letters not less than two inches in height, the name of the person or corporation to 
whom the franchise is issued. Each such taxicab shall also be numbered consecutively, with such 
numbers being placed conspicuously on each vehicle, with such numerals being not less than four 
and one-half inches nor more than six inches in height. 

(b) Transportation services. 

(1) Each vehicle operated by a transportation service shall be readily identifiable as a transportation 
service and shall bear on the outside of each rear or front door, in letters not less than two inches 
in height, the name of the person or corporation to whom the vehicle is owned or operated by. 

(2) No transportation service shall have any insignia or sign that identifies itself as a "taxi" or "cab" 
or otherwise gives the impression that it is a taxicab. 

(c) Transportation network application (TNC) company/transportation network operator. 

(1) Each vehicle operated by a TNC company or transportation network operator shall bear on the 
outside of each rear or front door, in letters not less than two inches in height, the name of the 
person or corporation to whom the vehicle is owned or operated by, or any symbol or insignia 
approved by the vehicle for hire administratordisplay a consistent signage or emblem on the 
transportation network operator’s personal vehicle at all times while the transportation network 
operator is active on the TNC company’s network.  The signage or emblem shall be sufficiently 
large or color-contrasted to be readable during daylight hours from a distance of 50 feet, 
reflective, illuminated, or otherwise visible in darkness, and capable of sufficiently identifying 
a personal vehicle as being associated with the TNC company. 

300



10 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

(2) No transportation network operator vehicle shall have any insignia or sign that identifies itself 
as a "taxi" or "cab" or otherwise gives the impression that it is a taxicab, or otherwise give the 
impression that the operator is available to solicit passengers other than through the digital 
platform. 

(3) No transportation network operator vehicle shall place any type or form of light device or other 
device on the roof, commonly known as a top light or top hat, whether or not permanently or 
temporarily affixed to the vehicle, or have within the interior of the vehicle. 

 

Sec. 86-92. - Taximeter. 

a. All taxicabs operated under the authority of this chapter shall be equipped with taximeters fastened 
in a manner so that the face thereof shall be visible and readable to passengers at all times both  

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 9 of 16 

day and night. The face of the taximeter shall be set so that it will register and compute on a 
mileage basis while such taxicab is moving and on a time basis while such taxicab is standing and 
while the service is being rendered the fare to be charged. Such taximeter shall be operated 
mechanically by a mechanism of standard design and construction, driven either from the 
transmission or from one of the front wheels by a flexible and permanently attached driving 
mechanism. 

a. No vehicle for hire other than a taxicab is authorized to install or be equipped with a taximeter. 

Sec. 86-93. - Liability insurance required. 

No vehicle for hire shall be placed in service unless such vehicle is in compliance with Florida law 
for liability insurance purposes. Proof of such insurance coverage, which may be provided on a blanket 
basis, shall be filed annually with and approved by the vehicle for hire administrator or designee for the 
carriage of passengers. 

Sec. 86-94. - Seat belts required. 

All vehicles for hire covered by this chapter shall be equipped with operational seat belts for each 
passenger. 

Sec. 86-95. - Authority of city commission to establish rates and charges; displaying rate cards. 

(a) Taxicabs. 

(1) The city commission may by ordinance establish maximum rates and charges for the 
transportation of persons and their baggage within the corporate limits of the city and suburban 
territory adjacent thereto. Any ordinance establishing rates as provided by this section shall 
become effective 24 hours after its adoption. 

(2) Every taxicab operating under this chapter shall have posted in a conspicuous place therein a 
schedule of rates for the transportation of person within the corporate limits of the city, and no 
charges shall be made in excess of the rates so posted. 

(3) There is hereby established a schedule of the maximum rates which can be charged by all 
taxicab drivers operating taxicabs within the city. A taximeter may be set so that it will register 
and compute on a mileage or other basis at less than the maximum rates set forth in this section. 

(b) Transportation service. 

(1) All fares as agreed to between any transportation service operator and any passenger must be 
agreed upon prior to leaving the point of origin. No transportation service operator may increase 
the agreed upon fare after leaving the point of origin. 

(2) No transportation service shall be authorized to charge for wait time, or to charge any other 

Commented [A1]: Double check on insurance provision. 

301



11 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

rates or fees except for mileage. 

(3) Every transportation service vehicle shall have cards displayed visibly from the outside of the 
vehicle on the passenger side and on the inside of the right rear window at the eye level of a 
seated passenger that state the following: "RATE OF TRANSPORT IS BY FLAT FEE ONLY". 

(c) Transportation network application (TNC) company or transportation network operator. 

(1) All TNC companies shall disclose the fare calculation method, the applicable rates being 
charged, and the option for an estimated fare to a passenger before the passenger arranges or 
books a trip with the transportation network application company or transportation network 
operator. 

302



12 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 10 of 16 

 

(2) Upon completion of the trip, a TNC company shall transmit an electronic receipt to the 
passenger's e-mail or mobile application that lists the: origin and destination of the trip; the total 
time and distance of the trip; and a breakdown of the total fare paid, if any. 

Sec. 86-96. - Miscellaneous regulations and other penalties. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any driver or operator of a vehicle for hire to drive or operate or be on duty 
or on call for the operation of a vehicle for hire for more than 12 hours within any 24-hour period. 

(b) A driver shall take the most direct route to a passenger's destination unless otherwise authorized or 
directed by the passenger. 

(c) No driver shall refuse to accept a passenger unless the passenger is obviously disorderly, dangerous, 
or otherwise a threat to the safety or welfare of the driver. 

(d) It shall be unlawful for the driver operating in the city to permit any person to accompany or use 
such vehicle for hire for the purpose of prostitution, or to direct, take or transport any other person 
with knowledge or reasonable cause to believe that the purpose of such directing, taking or 
transporting is for the purpose of prostitution. 

(e) No vehicle for hire shall be permitted to carry nonpaying passengers while transporting a paying 
passenger or passengers except for the purpose of driver training. 

(f) No vehicle for hire shall solicit or carry a paying passenger while in the process of carrying another 
paying passenger except when requested to do so by the latter passenger. 

(g) Transportation network operators shall exclusively accept passengers booked through a 
transportation network company's digital platform, and shall not solicit or accept street-hails. 

(h) No TNC company may provide personal information about a passenger to a transportation network 
operator, including a passenger's full name, e-mail address, or telephone number. 

Sec. 86-97. - Enforcement. 

The city police department and the vehicles for hire administrator shall be authorized to enforce the 
regulations contained in this chapter, including the promulgation of rules consistent with this chapter 
and the setting of fees. 

SECTION 2. CODIFICATION. It is the intention of the City Council that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka; and 

the City Clerk is directed to take the necessary steps to effect codification into the Code, and Sections 

of this ordinance may be numbered or renumbered or lettered or re-lettered and the word “ordinance" 

may be changed to " chapter ", "section ", "article", or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to 

accomplish such codification. Typographical errors which do not affect the intent may be authorized by 

the Mayor, without need of public hearing, by filing a corrected or re-codified copy of same with the 

City Clerk. 

SECTION 3. CONFLICTS. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase of this 

ordinance, or the particular application thereof shall be held invalid by any court, administrative agency, 

or other body with appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining section, subsection, sentences, clauses, or 

phrases under application shall not be affected thereby. 

303



13 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 11 of 16 

 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, 

requirements, orders and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force 

and effect immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016  
 

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: September 21, 2016  
 

 

 

 
 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 
 

Linda G. Goff, City Clerk 
 

 

APPROVED as to form and legality for 

use and reliance by the City of Apopka, 

Florida. 
 

 

 

 
 

Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 
 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:   August 19, 2016 

September 9, 2016 

304



14 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 12 of 16 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Sec. 86-39. - Liability insurance. 
 

(a) It shall be unlawful for the owner, operator, driver or chauffeur of any taxicab to drive or operate 

the taxicab or to permit the taxicab to be driven or operated upon the public streets, unless such 

owner, operator, driver or chauffeur shall have first procured and filed with the city clerk a liability 

insurance policy issued by a good and responsible surety company, which insurance company or 

surety company must have authority to do business as such in the state and must be acceptable to 

and approved by the city council. The amount of liability insurance or surety bond for each taxicab 

shall be the minimum required by the state for liability insurance, or, if liability insurance is not 

required by state law, the minimum financial responsibility requirements of the Financial 

Responsibility Law, F.S. ch. 324. 

(b) Such policy of insurance or surety bond may be in the form of a separate policy or separate surety 

bond for each taxicab, or may be in the form of a fleet policy covering all taxicabs operated by such 

owner, operator, driver or chauffeur, in which latter event such policy of insurance or surety bond 

shall provide the same liability for each taxicab operated in service as specified in subsection (a) of 

this section. Every taxicab hired in service shall have conspicuously displayed therein or thereon 

some sign evidencing the fact that the provisions of this section have been complied with, with the 

form thereof to be prescribed by the chief of police. 

(c) No policy of insurance or surety bond as provided for in this section shall be cancelled until the 

expiration of five days after notice of intended cancellation thereof has been given in writing to the 

city clerk by registered mail or personal delivery of such notice, and a provision therefor shall be 

embodied in the policy or surety bond. 

Sec. 86-40. - Use of streets for transacting business. 
 

Except as provided in this article, no taxicab shall occupy space on the streets for the transaction of 

business other than the picking up of passengers. All places of business of taxicabs shall be maintained 

off the streets. 

Sec. 86-41. - Use of improper vehicles. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person to operate or drive, as a taxicab, in or upon any street, any motor- 

driven vehicle, unless the vehicle is a taxicab as defined in this article. 

Sec. 86-42. - Name of owner or operator to be displayed on vehicle. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any taxicab to be driven upon the streets unless the name of the person either 

owning or operating such taxicab, or the trade name under which such taxicab is operated, is 

conspicuously painted on such taxicab in letters not less than two inches in height. 

Sec. 86-43. - Meters. 
 

(a) All taxicabs shall be equipped with mechanical devices, commonly called taxicab meters, for 

registering the fare to be charged. 

305



15 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 13 of 16 

 

(b) Every meter in use shall be placed in such taxicabs at a location that will be plainly visible at all 

times to the occupants of such taxicabs. Between the hours of sunset and sunrise, the dial of the 

meter shall be illuminated whenever it is in use. 

(c) Whenever a taxicab is not in service, the meter shall show no fare and the flag shall be in the upright 

position. When a taxicab is in service, the flag or indicator on the meter shall be lowered and the 

meter shall be in the calculating position. 

(d) Upon the completion of service by a taxicab, the flag or indicator on the meter shall be raised and 

the meter shall be returned to the noncalculating position and its dials cleared. 

(e) It shall be unlawful for the operator or driver of any taxicab to operate the taxicab on the streets of 

the city with any occupant in such taxicab other than the driver when the flag or indicator on the 

taxicab meter is upright and in the noncalculating position, except when operating on an hourly or 

trip rate. 

(f) When the hourly rate or the special trip rate is used, an appropriate sign indicating that the cab is on 

a trip or hourly rate shall be exhibited. 

(g) It shall be the duty of the person owning and operating taxicabs to have the meter in good working 

condition and operating accurately as to the registration of mileage and fare. Such meters shall be 

sealed in a manner that will prevent any person from tampering with or changing the adjustment of 

the meter. It shall be unlawful for any person to tamper with or change the adjustment of a meter, 

except the owner operating the taxicab to which such meter is affixed, or a person duly designated 

by the owner, or a meter mechanic. 

(h) It shall be unlawful for any person owning and operating taxicabs with meters affixed thereto to 

permit the taxicabs to be operated on the streets of the city when such meters do not accurately 

register the mileage and the rate as set forth by the ordinances of the city. All meters shall be subject 

to inspection and test by any police officer at all times when cabs are not carrying passengers. 

Sec. 86-44. - Rates and charges. 
 

(a) Posting. Each taxicab shall have posted in a conspicuous place therein a schedule of rates for the 

transportation of persons within the corporate limits of the city, and no charges shall be made in 

excess of the rates so posted. 

(b) Determination. All rate charges or fees for the use of taxicabs using meters shall be determined by 

a meter rate, hourly rate or special trip rate and by no other method. All charges are for the exclusive 

use of the taxicab, and shall apply regardless of the number of passengers transported. 

Sec. 86-45. - Fare receipts; right to demand payment of fare in advance. 
 

If demanded by the passenger, the driver in charge of a taxicab shall deliver to the person paying 

for the hiring of the taxicab, at the time of such payment, a receipt therefor in legible writing, containing 

the name of the owner and the city license or permit number, showing upon such receipt all items for 

which a charge is made, the total amount paid and the date of payment. Every driver of any such taxicab 

shall have the right to demand payment of the legal fare in advance, and may refuse employment unless 

so prepaid. 

Sec. 86-46. - Soliciting passengers near intersection. 

306



16 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 14 of 16 

 

It shall be unlawful for any person owning or operating one or more vehicles for hire in the city to 

operate such motor vehicles over and upon the streets of the city for the purpose of soliciting patronage, 

picking up passengers or delivering passengers at any point within 100 feet of any intersecting street 

corner along such street. It is the purpose and intent of this section to prohibit such practice within 100 

feet in all directions from such intersections. Such distance in all cases shall be measured from the center 

of the intersection. Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as prohibiting the driver of any taxicab 

or vehicle operated for hire from responding to any specific request for passage from any person seeking 

the services offered by such taxi or motor vehicle or from stopping at any point within the city for the 

purpose of delivering a passenger who has been picked up at any part of the city in a manner not 

prohibited by law. This section shall not apply to any buses or motor vehicles owned or operated by any 

bus or transit company under an exclusive franchise from the city. 

Sec. 86-47. - Soliciting passengers by preceding or following scheduled bus. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person operating motor vehicles for hire in the city to operate such motor 

vehicle over and upon the streets of the city for the purpose of soliciting the patronage of passengers by 

immediately preceding or following any duly scheduled bus or motor vehicle operated for such purpose 

by any bus or transit company under an exclusive franchise from the city along the streets of the city. 

Nothing contained in this section shall be construed as prohibiting the driver of any duly licensed taxi 

from responding to any specific request for passage from any patron seeking the services offered by such 

duly licensed taxi. 

Sec. 86-48. - Smoking by driver. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any driver, operator or chauffeur of any taxicab to smoke while the taxicab 

is occupied by a passenger. 

Sec. 86-49. - Use for immoral purposes. 
 

It shall be unlawful for the driver of a taxicab to permit any person to accompany or use such taxicab 

for the purpose of prostitution, lewdness or assignation, or to direct, take or transport, or to offer or agree 

to direct, take or transport, any other person, with knowledge or reasonable cause to believe that the 

purpose of such directing, taking or transporting is for the purpose of prostitution, lewdness or 

assignation. 

Sec. 86-50. - Display of political advertisements. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person licensed by the city to operate or drive a taxicab upon any street 

within the city with a political ad displayed for anyone seeking public office at any time. 

DIVISION 2. - BUSINESS PERMIT 
 

Sec. 86-66. - Required. 
 

It shall be unlawful to operate or cause to be operated any taxicab business unless a permit for the 

operation thereof shall have been first issued by the city council in the manner provided in this division. 

Sec. 86-67. - Application and investigation. 
 

(a) An application for the permit required by this division shall be made in writing to the city council. 
Such application shall set forth the name, residence address, and address of place of business of the 

307



17 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 15 of 16 

 
 applicant and the kind, make and model of the vehicle to be used in the business. If the applicant is  
a copartnership, the application shall give the nmes and residence addresses of the copartners. If the 

application is a corporation, the application shall set forth the name of the corporation and the residence 

address of its officers and board of directors. The application shall set forth the trade name, if any, under which 

the applicant does or proposes to do business. 

(b) Upon the filing of an application, the city clerk shall make an investigation, including any hearing 

deemed necessary, as to each application for a permit for the operation of taxicabs. In determining 

whether a permit shall be issued, the city council shall investigate the fitness of the applicant to 

engage in the business of operating taxicabs and the fitness of the equipment to be used, and shall 

also consider and determine whether the demands of public convenience, necessity and safety justify 

the issuance of such permit. 

Sec. 86-68. - Issuance or denial. 
 

If the city council finds favorably to the applicant and decides to grant a permit for the operation of 

taxicabs, a permit as provided in this division shall be issued to the applicant. If the city council finds 

against the applicant and decides that the public convenience, necessity and safety do not justify the 

issuance of such permit or that the applicant is not fit to conduct the taxicab business or the equipment 

is not fit for such business, then no permit shall be issued, and notice of the action of the city council 

shall be given to the applicant, setting forth the reason for the refusal of such permit. 

Sec. 86-69. - Occupational license required. 
 

Prior to the issuance of a permit for the operation of taxicabs, the applicant shall obtain an 

occupational license. 

Sec. 86-70. - Transfer. 
 

A permit for the operation of taxicabs shall not be transferable, except upon application to and 

consent of the city council. 

Sec. 86-71. - Suspension or revocation. 
 

Whenever any person engaged in the taxicab business is found to be in violation of the provisions 

of this article or the traffic ordinances of the city or of any of the laws of the state, the city council may, 

upon complaint or upon its own motion, issue an order to such person to appear at a fixed time and place 

for investigation. If the city council is satisfied, after such hearing, that such person is guilty of the 

violations charged, it may, in its discretion, suspend for a fixed period or revoke entirely the permit 

issued to such person. 

DIVISION 3. - DRIVER'S PERMIT 
 

Sec. 86-91. - Required. 
 

No person shall operate or drive a taxicab upon any street unless he has obtained a permit pursuant 
to the provisions of this division. 

Sec. 86-92. - Application and investigation. 
 

Any person having resided continuously in the state for not less than six months immediately 

preceding the making of application for a permit to operate a taxicab and being 18 years of age or over 

may make application to the city clerk for a permit to operate a taxicab. A verbal or written examination, 

308



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 16 of 16 

 

or both, may be given by the chief of police to each applicant to determine knowledge of city streets, locations 

and environs. 

Sec. 86-93. - Issuance; contents. 
 

It shall be the duty of the chief of police, if the applicant for a permit under this division is knowledgeable 

of the provisions of this article and of the traffic ordinance of the city, and the applicant pays the required fee 

and otherwise complies with this division for the initial year, to issue such person a written permit, which permit 

shall be signed by the city clerk and sealed with the corporate seal of the city, and shall bear the name, address, 

sex, age, signature, photograph and fingerprints of the applicant. The chief of police shall procure the fingerprints 

and a photograph of the applicant and shall keep the fingerprints and photograph on permanent file in his office. 

The fingerprints and photograph shall be voluntarily furnished by the applicant at the time of filing his 

application. 

Sec. 86-94. - State commercial license required. 
 

No person shall be issued a taxicab driver's permit unless he holds a commercial license issued by the state. 

Sec. 86-95. - Alteration or destruction prohibited. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person holding a taxicab driver's permit to wilfully alter, deface, obliterate or 

destroy the permit, or to cause the permit to be defaced, obliterated or destroyed. 

Sec. 86-96. - Display. 
 

Every driver or operator of any taxicab operated shall have his driver's permit displayed in such taxicab in a 

conspicuous place so as to be easily observed by any person occupying such taxicab. 

Sec. 86-97. - Suspension or revocation. 
 

Whenever any operator or driver of a taxicab is found to be violating the provisions of this article, or the 

traffic ordinances of the city, or any of the laws of the state, the city council may, upon complaint or upon its own 

motion, issue an order to such operator or driver to appear at a fixed time and place for investigation. If the city 

council shall be satisfied after such hearing of the violation as charged, it may, in its discretion, suspend for a 

fixed period, or revoke entirely, the driver's permit issued. 

Sec. 86-98. - Appeals. 
 

Any person whose taxicab driver's permit is refused, suspended or revoked by the chief of police may appeal, 

by filing notice thereof with the city clerk within 30 days from the time of such refusal, revocation or suspension. 

Such appeal as filed shall not act as a supersedeas until such time as the city council shall take final action on 

such appeal. 
 

 

309



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2511 – Second Reading – Code of Ordinances, “Vehicles for Hire.” – Legislative   Postpone 
  

310



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: October 5, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBIT(S): Ordinance No. 2511 

X OTHER:  Ordinance    Lyft Comments 
  
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 2511 - AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES.  
  
REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2511 – UPDATING THE VEHICLE FOR 

HIRE REQUIREMENS. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 

The current process for review and approval of a Vehicle for Hire Permit (VHP) is to have an applicant submit 

the appropriate application and back up documentation, submit for a criminal background check, schedule to 

have the application reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC) and finally scheduled for review  

by the City Council.  This process has caused difficulties and angst among the applicants which is inevitably 

directed toward administrative staff. This has increased with the popularity of Transportation Network 

Application companies such as Uber and Lyft.  A review of the VHP process revealed that there were greater 

efficiencies that could be achieved if the process were administratively based.  This would allow transportation 

service providers to receive their permits in approximately one week versus the current process which can take 

1-2 months dependent upon the timing of the application submittal as it relates to DRC and City Council 

schedules. 
 
Initially it was determined that a simple ordinance revision would be required to remove the DRC and City 
Council from the process.  However as staff and the City Attorney reviewed the Chapter 86 of the Code of 
Ordinances it became evident that the code was so outdated that a complete revision was necessary.  This is 
primarily based upon the fact that when the code was written, the only option available to hire a vehicle was 
through a taxi company. This has changed drastically based upon the advent of digitally based companies. 
The City Attorney conducted a preliminary review of the current requirements to identify possible amendments 
to address the emerging technologies and practices in the provision of passenger transportation services.  Based 
on this preliminary review, it was determined that the current chapter be repealed and replaced it in its entirety. 
 
Many of the vehicle for hire permitting requirements relate directly to ensuring public safety, including a 
satisfactory criminal background check, and proof of insurance.  Such requirements are important for any type 
of vehicle for hire service, whether it is a traditional taxicab company or a network of independent contractors 
providing transportation services through a transportation network company. 
 
The proposed ordinance is based upon models in Orlando and Tallahassee which have proven successful. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 7, 2016 - City Council 1st Reading (1:30 pm)  
September 21, 2016 – City Council 2nd Reading (7:00 pm) 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 311



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
CHAPTER 86 – VEHICLE FOR HIRE 
PAGE 2 

 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 19, 2016 – Public Hearing Notice 
September 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading  
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

N/A 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the amendment to the City of Apopka, Code 

of Ordinances, amending the City of Apopka, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86 – Vehicle for Hire - vacating 

and deleting the provisions of chapter 86 of the city code as currently written, adopting new provisions in said 

chapter amending the permitting and regulation of taxicabs and creating regulations for transportation services 

and transportation network application companies and operators. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on September 7, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2511 

and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on September 21, 2016. 

 
The City Council, at its meeting on September 21, 2016, postponed the Second Reading of Ordinance No. 
2511 due to concerns expressed by the transportation network company, Lyft, and held it over for Second 
Reading and Adoption on October 5, 2016. 
 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2511. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and its findings 

are to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

312



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 
VACATING AND DELETING THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 86 
OF THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES AS CURRENTLY 
WRITTEN, ADOPTING NEW PROVISIONS IN SAID CHAPTER 
AMENDING THE PERMITTING AND REGULATION OF 
TAXICABS AND CREATING REGULATIONS FOR 
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES AND TRANSPORTATION 
NETWORK APPLICATION COMPANIES AND OPERATORS; 
AND PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka believes that it is necessary and in the best 

interest of the City to update its regulations for vehicles for hire in recognition of changes and advances 
in modern business models of private automobile transportation. 
 
LESIGLATIVE UNDERSCORING:  Underlined words constitute additions to the City of Apopka 
Code of Ordinances, strikethrough constitutes deletions from the original, and asterisks (***) indicate 
an omission from the existing text which is intended to remain unchanged.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  The provisions of CHAPTER 86, VEHICLES FOR HIRE, shall be vacated and 
deleted in its entirety, and the following shall be adopted in their place. The provisions to be vacated and 
deleted are attached as Exhibit “A.”  
 
Chapter 86 - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 
 
ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL  

Sec. 86-1. - Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Company means any person, association, corporation or other organization which operates or 
intends to engage in the business of operating vehicles for hire or operate as a TNC.  

Conviction means the conviction by a court including an adjudication of guilt on a plea of guilty or 
nolo contendere or the forfeiture of a bond when charged with a crime.  

Digital platform means any online or smartphone enabled application that allows passengers to 
request transportation network vehicle services.  

Digital credential means the permission or access given to a driver to operate on a company's digital 
platform.  

Driver means an individual permitted to drive a vehicle for hire.  

Fees mean nonrefundable payments required in this chapter.  

Limousine means a specialized vehicle not equipped with a taximeter and for hire only by 
prearrangement at a rate charged per hour, or fixed in advance, and provided also that each such vehicle 
for hire is: (1) chauffeured, (2) a luxury class passenger vehicle built or modified for the purpose of a 
limousine as defined and recognized by the limousine industry; and (3) operated on a reserved, hourly 

313



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 2 of 16 

 
basis for a continuous period. A vehicle which is held out to be a limousine or which has an appearance 
deceptively similar to a limousine is a limousine for the purposes of this chapter.  

Narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivatives and central nervous system stimulants. The term 
"narcotic drugs" as used in this chapter shall mean coca leaves, opium, cannabis, marijuana, isonipecaine 
and every synthetic substance known to have narcotic action. The term "barbituric acid derivative" means 
each of the salts and derivatives of barbituric acid, also known as malonyl urea, and derivatives, 
compounds, mixtures or preparations thereof. "Barbiturate" or "barbiturates" shall include all hypnotic 
or somnifacient drugs, whether or not derivatives of barbituric acids. The term "central nervous system 
stimulants" means amphetamine and desocyephedrine, and any derivative, compounds, mixture or 
preparation thereof.  

Permit means the authority granted to companies to operate, or persons who qualify to drive, 
vehicles for hire.  

Revocation means the rescinding of a permit. A person or entity whose permit is revoked shall not 
be entitled to reinstatement or an opportunity to reapply for such permit for a period of two years except 
as provided in subsection 86-61(5).  

Shuttle bus means a vehicle with a capacity of at least eight persons, including the driver, that is 
operated on a fixed route, or owner and operated directly by a motel or hotel and limited to registered 
guests thereof.  

Suspension means the temporary rescinding of a permit or license. The suspension may be for a time 
certain or indefinite pending compliance with the terms of this chapter.  

Taxicab means a vehicle for hire with a capacity of not more than eight persons, including the driver, 
equipped with a taximeter operated under a company and vehicle permit required by this article, which 
is routed under the direction of the person hiring the vehicle.  

Taximeter means an instrument or device attached to a vehicle and designed to measure 
mechanically or electronically the distance traveled by such vehicle, to record the times such vehicle 
travels or is in waiting, and to indicate the fare to be obtained.  

Transportation service means a vehicle for hire with a capacity of not more than eight persons, 
including the driver, which is not equipped with a taximeter, which charges passengers a fare generally 
based on a flat fee, and does not operate over a fixed or defined route but routed under the direction of 
the person hiring the vehicle.  

Transportation network application company ("TNC company") means any company operating in 
the city that uses a digital network or software application to connect a passenger to transportation 
network services provided by a transportation network operator.  

Transportation network operator means any driver or operator who operates a personal vehicle that 
utilizes any digital platform to arrange transportation of a passenger between points chosen by the 
passenger and that is in connection with a digital platform controlled by a TNC company.  

Transportation network service means the provision of transportation by a transportation network 
operator to a rider, beginning when the transportation network operator accepts a ride requested through 
a digital platform controlled by a TNC company, continuing while the transportation network operator 
transports a requesting rider, and ending when the last requesting rider departs from the personal vehicle.  

Use of narcotic drugs. The word "use" as employed in this chapter in relation to the drugs described 
in this chapter shall apply to any person who uses one or more of the narcotic drugs or barbituric acid 
derivatives or central nervous system stimulants as defined this section to any extent, with or without 
medical need or authority or prescription.  

Vehicle for hire means any vehicle, whether owned by the driver or company, that is operated by a 
taxicab driver, transportation service driver, transportation network operator, any other motor vehicle 

314



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 3 of 16 

 
with driver transporting passengers for a fare, fee, or other charge in the city. The term vehicle for hire, 
by definition, excludes:  

(1) School, church, college or university buses; 

(2) Sightseeing cars and buses; 

(3) Ambulances; 

(4) Funeral home vehicles; 

(5) Interstate buses; 

(6) Limousines; 

(7) Shuttle buses. 

Vehicle for hire administrator means the City Administrator or his/her designee. 

ARTICLE II. - COMPANY PERMIT  

Sec. 86-31. - Application; contents.  

(a) No taxicab company, transportation service, or TNC company shall operate or engage in the 
business of operating vehicles for hire or operating a TNC within the city without having first 
obtained a company permit from the vehicle for hire administrator or designee. An application shall 
be submitted on forms furnished by the vehicles for hire administrator or designee containing 
appropriate information which is reasonably related to the business of operating vehicles for hire.  

(b) In order to secure or renew a company permit, the company applicant shall file an application with 
the vehicles for hire administrator or designee, and such application shall be verified under oath and 
shall furnish the following information:  

(1) The name and address of the company. If the company is a corporation or partnership, the name 
and address of all officers, shareholders, partners or any principals or owners with an interest 
greater than five percent of the company must be listed.  

(2) The color scheme and insignia to be used to designate the vehicles of any taxicab company.  

(3) No company permit shall be granted to a taxicab company operating less than five vehicles. 
The vehicles must be currently operating, licensed, and inspected as required by this chapter. 
Each vehicle must conform to the United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) 
maximum passenger standards allowed for the vehicle to operate.  

(4) Proof of proper amount of insurance coverage as provided in section 86-93, with the insurance 
coverage being filed with vehicle for hire administrator and approved by the City.  

(5) Such other information as the vehicle for hire administrator may require. 

(c) Payment of an annual company permit fee of $250.00. 

Sec. 86-32. - Maintaining a company permit.  

(a) In order to maintain a company permit to operate or engage in the business of operating vehicles for 
hire or operating a TNC, the company must:  

(1) Obtain and hold a current business tax receipt from the city as required by chapter 74, if 
applicable. 

(2) Maintain a telephone number that is monitored 24 hours a day for emergency contact by the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee or law enforcement, and an e-mail address for citizen 
complaints or concerns.  

315



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 4 of 16 

 
(3) Maintain the name, home address, and telephone number of each driver affiliated with the 

company.  

(4) Maintain a log listing the year, make, model, license plate number, and vehicle identification 
number (serial number) and ownership status of all vehicles in the company's fleet or that 
operate on a company's platform.  

(5) Maintain proper amount of insurance as provided in section 86-93.  

(6) Maintain records available for inspection, upon request by the vehicle for hire administrator or 
designee, pursuant to a complaint received or if the vehicle for hire administrator has a 
reasonable basis to suspect that a company or driver is violating the requirements of this chapter. 
The records shall include, but not be limited to, records pertaining to permitted/certified drivers, 
vehicle inspection records, daily logs, and that the maximum rate charged in compliance with 
section 86-95. Unless otherwise agreed to by the company and the vehicle for hire 
administrator, such records shall be made available for inspection to the vehicle for hire 
administrator at a permit holder's place of business or a mutually agreed location in the city.  

(7) Each company shall implement a zero-tolerance policy on the use of drugs or alcohol applicable 
to all drivers, and provide notice of the policy to all company drivers and to the public through 
its website, if applicable. In addition, the company shall provide notice to the public on the 
procedure for reporting a driver the passenger reasonably suspects was under the influence of 
drugs or alcohol during the course of the ride. The company shall cooperate with the vehicle 
for hire administrator or designee during the pendency of the investigation pursuant to 
subsection 86-63(b)(3).  

(8) The vehicle for hire administrator or police chief is authorized to conduct annual audits of any 
company authorized to operate under this chapter. The company shall provide to the vehicle for 
hire administrator, on request, up to 250 unique identification numbers, each of which has been 
assigned to an individual driver affiliated with the company. The vehicle for hire administrator 
may send to the company a list of up to ten driver identification numbers and request copies of 
records held by the company for those ten drivers. Within five business days of receiving a 
request seeking records, the company shall make available to the vehicle for hire administrator 
at a company's place of business or a mutually agreed setting in the city, records to verify that 
the company has properly screened drivers in accordance with section 86-61; provided, that the 
company may redact any records it provides access to in order to protect the privacy and 
identifying information of the driver.  

Sec. 86-33. - Revocation or suspension of a company permit; grounds; right of appeal.  

(a) Revocation or suspension of company permit; grounds. Upon a finding of due cause, as defined in 
subsection (b) of this section, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee shall have the authority 
to revoke or suspend any company permit which has been granted or which may hereinafter be 
granted by the city. Prior to suspension or revocation, the company shall be served notice by certified 
mail or hand delivery of the proposed action to be taken and shall have an opportunity to present to 
the vehicle for hire administrator or designee evidence as to why the company permit should not be 
revoked or suspended.  

(b) Causes for revocation or suspension. Due cause for revocation or suspension of a company permit 
shall include but shall not be limited to the following:  

(1) The failure of the company to maintain any of the general qualifications applicable to the initial 
granting of the company permit as set forth in section 86-31 or maintaining a company permit 
as set forth in section 86-32.  

(2) Obtaining a company permit by providing false information. 

316



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 5 of 16 

 
(3) Conviction by a court of competent jurisdiction of any shareholder, officer, partner, member, 

principal or owner of any corporation, partnership, firm or association holding a five percent 
interest or more in the entity, of any of the following: criminal homicide, rape, sexual battery, 
aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, kidnapping, robbery, child molestation, lewd 
and lascivious acts, armed trespassing, carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to 
commit any of the above, criminal attempt to commit any of the above, or possession, sale or 
distribution of narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivatives and/or central nervous system 
stimulants if such violation or violations are related to operation of the company, or violation 
of any ordinance of the city governing the conduct of a company.  

(4) Allowing any person to operate a company's designated vehicle for hire, or operate on the 
company's digital platform, without an active driver permit or credential, or when said person's 
permit or credential has been suspended or revoked because of a positive drug test pursuant to 
section 86-63.  

(c) Right of appeal. Any company whose permit is revoked or suspended by the vehicle for hire 
administrator or designee may appeal such decision to the City Council. Such appeal shall be taken 
by filing written notice thereof, in duplicate, with the city administrator's office within five days 
after the decision of the vehicles for hire administrator or designee. The notice of the appeal shall 
contain the grounds for the appeal and shall contain information that either the finding is contrary 
to the law or is not supported by competent substantial evidence. The vehicle for hire administrator 
or designee shall forthwith transmit copies of the appeal to the City Council along with all papers 
constituting the record upon which the action appealed from is based. The filing of a notice of appeal 
will not delay the effectiveness of any suspension or revocation.  

ARTICLE III. - VEHICLE FOR HIRE DRIVERS  

Sec. 86-60. - Prohibition against unauthorized operation.  

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate on behalf of a taxicab company, transportation 
service, or other vehicle for hire for the transportation of passengers within the city, or on a TNC's 
digital platform, or to cause or permit any other person to drive or operate a vehicle for hire:  

(1) Without first obtaining a written permit for the operation of a motor vehicle for hire from the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee;  

(2) Without having been certified to operate a motor vehicle for hire on behalf of a company or on 
the company's digital platform; or  

(3) When the company permit has previously been revoked pursuant to section 86-33.  

(b) Any person found to have violated this section shall be punished by the following: 

(1) A fine $150.00 for the first citation; 

(2) A fine of $250.00 for the second citation; and 

(3) A fine of $500.00 for the third or subsequent citation. 

Sec. 86-61. - Application for driver's permit.  

(a) In order to secure a driver permit or to obtain certification from a company, an applicant must:  

(1) Be at least 18 years of age; 

(2) Possess a valid state driver's license; 

(3) For a period of three years prior to the date of application not have been convicted of:  

a. Driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs; or 

317



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 6 of 16 

 
b. Violation of any ordinance or law, other than minor traffic offenses, in connection with the 

operation of a motor vehicle.  

(4) For a period of three years prior to the date of application not have more than three moving 
violations;  

(5) Not have been convicted within the seven years previous to the date of application for the 
violation of any of the following criminal offenses of the state or any other state or of the United 
States: aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, kidnapping, robbery, lewd and 
lascivious acts, armed trespassing, carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to commit 
any of the above, criminal attempt to commit any of the offenses listed in this subsection, or 
been convicted within the last seven years of any felony in the commission of which a motor 
vehicle was used, perjury or false swearing in making any statement under oath in connection 
with application for a driver's permit, any felony involving theft, or possession, sale or 
distribution of narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivative and/or central nervous system 
stimulants. Applicants who have been convicted or served any time, probation, or parole for a 
criminal offense of homicide, rape, sexual battery, or child molestation must have their 
complete criminal history reviewed and approved by the vehicle for hire administrator;  

(6) Be able to communicate in the English language. 

 (b) An applicant may apply for a permit or credential by completing a form provided by the vehicle for 
hire administrator establishing that the applicant meets the requirements of subsection. 

 (c) Upon approval by the vehicle for hire administrator or designee, or certification by the taxicab 
company, transportation service, or TNC company, the driver shall be issued:  

(1) A permit from the vehicle for hire administrator or designee; or 

(2) Credentials from the taxicab company, transportation service, or TNC company, which may be 
digital credentials, indicating that the driver was certified by the company, and the credential 
shall include the following information:  

a. The name or logo of the company; 

b. The name of the driver; 

c. The license plate number associated with the vehicle that the driver has been authorized to 
use.  

(3) The driver shall display the permit or credential in a manner that it is visible to the passengers 
of the vehicle while the vehicle is operating, or make available at a minimum the driver's first 
name, photograph, and make, model, and license plate number to the passenger through the 
company's digital platform. The driver shall present the permit or credential upon request to a 
law enforcement officer, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee, or designated airport 
personnel upon request. If the driver maintains a digital credential, upon a traffic stop, a driver 
shall provide law enforcement with access to a device containing the information required to 
be maintained as part of the driver's digital credential and an electronic record sufficient to 
establish that the trip in question was prearranged through a digital platform.  

(d) An applicant must pay an annual driver application fee of $100.00.  

Sec. 86-62. - Maintaining driver's permit.  

In order to maintain a valid permit or credential to drive a taxicab, transportation service, or other 
vehicle for hire, a driver must:  

(1) Wear proper dress while operating a vehicle for hire. 

(2) Maintain a neat appearance. 

318



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 7 of 16 

 
(3) Not smoke while carrying passengers. 

(4) Maintain a log upon which are recorded all trips made each day, showing time and place of 
origin and destination of each trip and amount of fare. Such logs must be maintained by the 
company or the vehicle owner, if not maintained by the driver, and shall be made available to 
the vehicle for hire administrator or designee for a compliance inquiry if the administrator has 
a reasonable basis to suspect that a company or driver is violating the requirements of this 
chapter.  

(5) Renew his driver's permit or credential during the month of the driver's permit or credential 
expiration date.  

(6) Wear a seatbelt at all times while operating a vehicle for hire or providing transportation 
network services.  

Sec. 86-63. - Revocation or suspension of driver's permits; grounds; right of appeal.  

(a) Revocation or suspension of driver's permits or credential. Upon a finding of due cause, as defined 
in subsection (b) of this section, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee shall have the 
authority to revoke or suspend any driver's permit or credential which has been issued or which may 
hereinafter be issued by the city. Before a driver's permit or credential shall be denied, suspended 
or revoked, notice of intention thereof shall be served upon the driver either by registered mail or 
personal service; however, such notice shall not be necessary for a denial of an original permit or 
credential. However, any such applicant or driver shall be given an opportunity to be heard by the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee.  

(b) Causes for revocation or suspension. Due cause for revocation or suspension of a driver's permit or 
credential shall include but shall not be limited to the following:  

(1) The failure of the driver to maintain any and all of the general qualifications as applicable to 
the initial issuance of a permit as set forth in section 86-61;  

(2) Obtaining a permit or credential by providing false information; 

(3) Violation by a driver of any of the following offenses: 

a. Driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs. A driver shall be required 
to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test at the request of the vehicle for hire administrator or 
designee:  

1. Where reasonable suspicion exists that a driver is abusing alcohol or misusing 
prescription drugs or controlled substances; or  

2. Where a driver has been involved in a crash with serious injury or serious property 
damage while operating a vehicle for hire or providing transportation network 
services. "Serious injury" is defined as a physical condition that creates a substantial 
risk of death, serious personal disfigurement, or protracted loss or impairment of the 
function of any bodily member or organ. "Serious property damage" is defined as one 
or more of the motor vehicles involved in the crash is "totaled", or one or more of the 
vehicles sustains significant disabling damage to public and/or private property which 
equals or exceeds an apparent damage of $5,000.00 or more as estimated by the law 
enforcement officer who conducts the investigation at the scene of the traffic crash; or  

b. Refusing or failing to submit to a drug test at the request of the vehicle for hire 
administrator or designee shall be due cause for revocation of the driver's permit or 
credential with no reapplication for one year. Failing a drug or alcohol test shall be due 
cause for revocation of the driver's permit or credential with no reapplication for one year.  

c. Criminal homicide, rape, sexual battery, aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, 
kidnapping, robbery, child molestation, lewd and lascivious acts, armed trespassing, 

319



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 8 of 16 

 
carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to commit any of the above, criminal 
attempt to commit any of the above, or possession, sale or distribution of narcotic drugs, 
barbituric acid derivatives and/or central nervous system stimulants, violation of any 
ordinance of the city governing the conduct of drivers of a vehicle for hire.  

(4) Charging a fare contrary to any fares established and approved by the city commission pursuant 
to section 86-95;  

(5) Violation of any ordinances or law, other than minor traffic offenses, in connection with the 
operation of a taxicab, transportation service, TNC company, or other vehicle for hire;  

(6) Whenever it shall appear that a driver has disorders characterized by lapses of consciousness or 
other mental or physical disabilities affecting his or her ability to drive safely;  

(7) Accumulating nine or more points within a six-month period as outlined in F.S. § 322.27(3)d. 

(8) Violating the requirements of section 86-96.  

Sec. 86-64. - Duration of driver permit.  

Each driver permit or credential issued pursuant to section 86-61 above shall be valid for one year 
from the date of issuance.  

ARTICLE IV. - VEHICLES FOR HIRE  

Sec. 86-91. - Identifying signs, monograms and insignias.  

(a) Taxicabs.  

Each taxicab shall be readily identifiable as a taxicab and shall bear on the outside of each rear or 
front door, in letters not less than two inches in height, the name of the person or corporation to 
whom the franchise is issued. Each such taxicab shall also be numbered consecutively, with such 
numbers being placed conspicuously on each vehicle, with such numerals being not less than four 
and one-half inches nor more than six inches in height.  

 (b) Transportation services.  

(1) Each vehicle operated by a transportation service shall be readily identifiable as a transportation 
service and shall bear on the outside of each rear or front door, in letters not less than two inches 
in height, the name of the person or corporation to whom the vehicle is owned or operated by.  

(2) No transportation service shall have any insignia or sign that identifies itself as a "taxi" or "cab" 
or otherwise gives the impression that it is a taxicab.  

(c) Transportation network application (TNC) company/transportation network operator.  

(1) Each vehicle operated by a TNC company or transportation network operator shall bear on the 
outside of each rear or front door, in letters not less than two inches in height, the name of the 
person or corporation to whom the vehicle is owned or operated by, or any symbol or insignia 
approved by the vehicle for hire administrator.  

(2) No transportation network operator vehicle shall have any insignia or sign that identifies itself 
as a "taxi" or "cab" or otherwise gives the impression that it is a taxicab, or otherwise give the 
impression that the operator is available to solicit passengers other than through the digital 
platform.  

(3) No transportation network operator vehicle shall place any type or form of light device or other 
device on the roof, commonly known as a top light or top hat, whether or not permanently or 
temporarily affixed to the vehicle, or have within the interior of the vehicle.  

 

320



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 9 of 16 

 
Sec. 86-92. - Taximeter.  

(a) All taxicabs operated under the authority of this chapter shall be equipped with taximeters fastened 
in a manner so that the face thereof shall be visible and readable to passengers at all times both day 
and night. The face of the taximeter shall be set so that it will register and compute on a mileage 
basis while such taxicab is moving and on a time basis while such taxicab is standing and while the 
service is being rendered the fare to be charged. Such taximeter shall be operated mechanically by 
a mechanism of standard design and construction, driven either from the transmission or from one 
of the front wheels by a flexible and permanently attached driving mechanism.  

(b) No vehicle for hire other than a taxicab is authorized to install or be equipped with a taximeter.  

Sec. 86-93. - Liability insurance required.  

No vehicle for hire shall be placed in service unless such vehicle is in compliance with Florida law 
for liability insurance purposes. Proof of such insurance coverage, which may be provided on a blanket 
basis, shall be filed annually with and approved by the vehicle for hire administrator or designee for the 
carriage of passengers.  

Sec. 86-94. - Seat belts required.  

All vehicles for hire covered by this chapter shall be equipped with operational seat belts for each 
passenger.  

Sec. 86-95. - Authority of city commission to establish rates and charges; displaying rate cards.  

(a) Taxicabs. 

(1) The city commission may by ordinance establish maximum rates and charges for the 
transportation of persons and their baggage within the corporate limits of the city and suburban 
territory adjacent thereto. Any ordinance establishing rates as provided by this section shall 
become effective 24 hours after its adoption.  

(2) Every taxicab operating under this chapter shall have posted in a conspicuous place therein a 
schedule of rates for the transportation of person within the corporate limits of the city, and no 
charges shall be made in excess of the rates so posted.  

(3) There is hereby established a schedule of the maximum rates which can be charged by all 
taxicab drivers operating taxicabs within the city. A taximeter may be set so that it will register 
and compute on a mileage or other basis at less than the maximum rates set forth in this section.  

(b) Transportation service. 

(1)  All fares as agreed to between any transportation service operator and any passenger must be 
agreed upon prior to leaving the point of origin. No transportation service operator may increase 
the agreed upon fare after leaving the point of origin.  

(2) No transportation service shall be authorized to charge for wait time, or to charge any other 
rates or fees except for mileage.  

(3) Every transportation service vehicle shall have cards displayed visibly from the outside of the 
vehicle on the passenger side and on the inside of the right rear window at the eye level of a 
seated passenger that state the following: "RATE OF TRANSPORT IS BY FLAT FEE ONLY".  

(c) Transportation network application (TNC) company or transportation network operator. 

(1) All TNC companies shall disclose the fare calculation method, the applicable rates being 
charged, and the option for an estimated fare to a passenger before the passenger arranges or 
books a trip with the transportation network application company or transportation network 
operator.  

321



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 10 of 16 

 
(2) Upon completion of the trip, a TNC company shall transmit an electronic receipt to the 

passenger's e-mail or mobile application that lists the: origin and destination of the trip; the total 
time and distance of the trip; and a breakdown of the total fare paid, if any.  

Sec. 86-96. - Miscellaneous regulations and other penalties.  

(a) It shall be unlawful for any driver or operator of a vehicle for hire to drive or operate or be on duty 
or on call for the operation of a vehicle for hire for more than 12 hours within any 24-hour period.  

 (b) A driver shall take the most direct route to a passenger's destination unless otherwise authorized or 
directed by the passenger.  

(c) No driver shall refuse to accept a passenger unless the passenger is obviously disorderly, dangerous, 
or otherwise a threat to the safety or welfare of the driver.  

(d) It shall be unlawful for the driver operating in the city to permit any person to accompany or use 
such vehicle for hire for the purpose of prostitution, or to direct, take or transport any other person 
with knowledge or reasonable cause to believe that the purpose of such directing, taking or 
transporting is for the purpose of prostitution.  

(e) No vehicle for hire shall be permitted to carry nonpaying passengers while transporting a paying 
passenger or passengers except for the purpose of driver training.  

(f) No vehicle for hire shall solicit or carry a paying passenger while in the process of carrying another 
paying passenger except when requested to do so by the latter passenger.  

(g) Transportation network operators shall exclusively accept passengers booked through a 
transportation network company's digital platform, and shall not solicit or accept street-hails.  

(h) No TNC company may provide personal information about a passenger to a transportation network 
operator, including a passenger's full name, e-mail address, or telephone number.  

Sec. 86-97. - Enforcement.  

The city police department and the vehicles for hire administrator shall be authorized to enforce the 
regulations contained in this chapter, including the promulgation of rules consistent with this chapter 
and the setting of fees.  

SECTION 2. CODIFICATION.  It is the intention of the City Council that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka; and 

the City Clerk is directed to take the necessary steps to effect codification into the Code, and Sections 

of this ordinance may be numbered or renumbered or lettered or re-lettered and the word “ordinance" 

may be changed to " chapter ", "section ", "article", or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to 

accomplish such codification. Typographical errors which do not affect the intent may be authorized by 

the Mayor, without need of public hearing, by filing a corrected or re-codified copy of same with the 

City Clerk. 

SECTION 3. CONFLICTS. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase of this 

ordinance, or the particular application thereof shall be held invalid by any court, administrative agency, 

or other body with appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining section, subsection, sentences, clauses, or 

phrases under application shall not be affected thereby. 

322



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 11 of 16 

 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, 

requirements, orders and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force 

and effect immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

September 21, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Linda G. Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED as to form and legality for 

use and reliance by the City of Apopka, 

Florida. 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 19, 2016 

       September 9, 2016 

  

323



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 12 of 16 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

Sec. 86-39. - Liability insurance.  

(a) It shall be unlawful for the owner, operator, driver or chauffeur of any taxicab to drive or operate 

the taxicab or to permit the taxicab to be driven or operated upon the public streets, unless such 

owner, operator, driver or chauffeur shall have first procured and filed with the city clerk a liability 

insurance policy issued by a good and responsible surety company, which insurance company or 

surety company must have authority to do business as such in the state and must be acceptable to 

and approved by the city council. The amount of liability insurance or surety bond for each taxicab 

shall be the minimum required by the state for liability insurance, or, if liability insurance is not 

required by state law, the minimum financial responsibility requirements of the Financial 

Responsibility Law, F.S. ch. 324.  

(b) Such policy of insurance or surety bond may be in the form of a separate policy or separate surety 

bond for each taxicab, or may be in the form of a fleet policy covering all taxicabs operated by such 

owner, operator, driver or chauffeur, in which latter event such policy of insurance or surety bond 

shall provide the same liability for each taxicab operated in service as specified in subsection (a) of 

this section. Every taxicab hired in service shall have conspicuously displayed therein or thereon 

some sign evidencing the fact that the provisions of this section have been complied with, with the 

form thereof to be prescribed by the chief of police.  

(c) No policy of insurance or surety bond as provided for in this section shall be cancelled until the 

expiration of five days after notice of intended cancellation thereof has been given in writing to the 

city clerk by registered mail or personal delivery of such notice, and a provision therefor shall be 

embodied in the policy or surety bond.  

Sec. 86-40. - Use of streets for transacting business.  

Except as provided in this article, no taxicab shall occupy space on the streets for the transaction of 

business other than the picking up of passengers. All places of business of taxicabs shall be maintained 

off the streets.  

Sec. 86-41. - Use of improper vehicles.  

It shall be unlawful for any person to operate or drive, as a taxicab, in or upon any street, any motor-

driven vehicle, unless the vehicle is a taxicab as defined in this article.  

Sec. 86-42. - Name of owner or operator to be displayed on vehicle.  

It shall be unlawful for any taxicab to be driven upon the streets unless the name of the person either 

owning or operating such taxicab, or the trade name under which such taxicab is operated, is 

conspicuously painted on such taxicab in letters not less than two inches in height.  

Sec. 86-43. - Meters.  

(a) All taxicabs shall be equipped with mechanical devices, commonly called taxicab meters, for 

registering the fare to be charged.  

324



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 13 of 16 

 

(b) Every meter in use shall be placed in such taxicabs at a location that will be plainly visible at all 

times to the occupants of such taxicabs. Between the hours of sunset and sunrise, the dial of the 

meter shall be illuminated whenever it is in use.  

(c) Whenever a taxicab is not in service, the meter shall show no fare and the flag shall be in the upright 

position. When a taxicab is in service, the flag or indicator on the meter shall be lowered and the 

meter shall be in the calculating position.  

(d) Upon the completion of service by a taxicab, the flag or indicator on the meter shall be raised and 

the meter shall be returned to the noncalculating position and its dials cleared.  

(e) It shall be unlawful for the operator or driver of any taxicab to operate the taxicab on the streets of 

the city with any occupant in such taxicab other than the driver when the flag or indicator on the 

taxicab meter is upright and in the noncalculating position, except when operating on an hourly or 

trip rate.  

(f) When the hourly rate or the special trip rate is used, an appropriate sign indicating that the cab is on 

a trip or hourly rate shall be exhibited.  

(g) It shall be the duty of the person owning and operating taxicabs to have the meter in good working 

condition and operating accurately as to the registration of mileage and fare. Such meters shall be 

sealed in a manner that will prevent any person from tampering with or changing the adjustment of 

the meter. It shall be unlawful for any person to tamper with or change the adjustment of a meter, 

except the owner operating the taxicab to which such meter is affixed, or a person duly designated 

by the owner, or a meter mechanic.  

(h) It shall be unlawful for any person owning and operating taxicabs with meters affixed thereto to 

permit the taxicabs to be operated on the streets of the city when such meters do not accurately 

register the mileage and the rate as set forth by the ordinances of the city. All meters shall be subject 

to inspection and test by any police officer at all times when cabs are not carrying passengers.  

Sec. 86-44. - Rates and charges.  

(a) Posting. Each taxicab shall have posted in a conspicuous place therein a schedule of rates for the 

transportation of persons within the corporate limits of the city, and no charges shall be made in 

excess of the rates so posted.  

(b) Determination. All rate charges or fees for the use of taxicabs using meters shall be determined by 

a meter rate, hourly rate or special trip rate and by no other method. All charges are for the exclusive 

use of the taxicab, and shall apply regardless of the number of passengers transported.  

Sec. 86-45. - Fare receipts; right to demand payment of fare in advance.  

If demanded by the passenger, the driver in charge of a taxicab shall deliver to the person paying 

for the hiring of the taxicab, at the time of such payment, a receipt therefor in legible writing, containing 

the name of the owner and the city license or permit number, showing upon such receipt all items for 

which a charge is made, the total amount paid and the date of payment. Every driver of any such taxicab 

shall have the right to demand payment of the legal fare in advance, and may refuse employment unless 

so prepaid.  

Sec. 86-46. - Soliciting passengers near intersection.  

325



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 14 of 16 

 

It shall be unlawful for any person owning or operating one or more vehicles for hire in the city to 

operate such motor vehicles over and upon the streets of the city for the purpose of soliciting patronage, 

picking up passengers or delivering passengers at any point within 100 feet of any intersecting street 

corner along such street. It is the purpose and intent of this section to prohibit such practice within 100 

feet in all directions from such intersections. Such distance in all cases shall be measured from the center 

of the intersection. Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as prohibiting the driver of any taxicab 

or vehicle operated for hire from responding to any specific request for passage from any person seeking 

the services offered by such taxi or motor vehicle or from stopping at any point within the city for the 

purpose of delivering a passenger who has been picked up at any part of the city in a manner not 

prohibited by law. This section shall not apply to any buses or motor vehicles owned or operated by any 

bus or transit company under an exclusive franchise from the city.  

Sec. 86-47. - Soliciting passengers by preceding or following scheduled bus.  

It shall be unlawful for any person operating motor vehicles for hire in the city to operate such motor 

vehicle over and upon the streets of the city for the purpose of soliciting the patronage of passengers by 

immediately preceding or following any duly scheduled bus or motor vehicle operated for such purpose 

by any bus or transit company under an exclusive franchise from the city along the streets of the city. 

Nothing contained in this section shall be construed as prohibiting the driver of any duly licensed taxi 

from responding to any specific request for passage from any patron seeking the services offered by such 

duly licensed taxi.  

Sec. 86-48. - Smoking by driver.  

It shall be unlawful for any driver, operator or chauffeur of any taxicab to smoke while the taxicab 

is occupied by a passenger.  

Sec. 86-49. - Use for immoral purposes.  

It shall be unlawful for the driver of a taxicab to permit any person to accompany or use such taxicab 

for the purpose of prostitution, lewdness or assignation, or to direct, take or transport, or to offer or agree 

to direct, take or transport, any other person, with knowledge or reasonable cause to believe that the 

purpose of such directing, taking or transporting is for the purpose of prostitution, lewdness or 

assignation.  

Sec. 86-50. - Display of political advertisements.  

It shall be unlawful for any person licensed by the city to operate or drive a taxicab upon any street 

within the city with a political ad displayed for anyone seeking public office at any time.  

DIVISION 2. - BUSINESS PERMIT  

Sec. 86-66. - Required.  

It shall be unlawful to operate or cause to be operated any taxicab business unless a permit for the 

operation thereof shall have been first issued by the city council in the manner provided in this division.  

Sec. 86-67. - Application and investigation.  

(a) An application for the permit required by this division shall be made in writing to the city council. 

Such application shall set forth the name, residence address, and address of place of business of the 

applicant and the kind, make and model of the vehicle to be used in the business. If the applicant is 

326



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 15 of 16 

 

a copartnership, the application shall give the nmes and residence addresses of the copartners. If the 

application is a corporation, the application shall set forth the name of the corporation and the 

residence address of its officers and board of directors. The application shall set forth the trade name, 

if any, under which the applicant does or proposes to do business.  

(b) Upon the filing of an application, the city clerk shall make an investigation, including any hearing 

deemed necessary, as to each application for a permit for the operation of taxicabs. In determining 

whether a permit shall be issued, the city council shall investigate the fitness of the applicant to 

engage in the business of operating taxicabs and the fitness of the equipment to be used, and shall 

also consider and determine whether the demands of public convenience, necessity and safety justify 

the issuance of such permit.  

Sec. 86-68. - Issuance or denial.  

If the city council finds favorably to the applicant and decides to grant a permit for the operation of 

taxicabs, a permit as provided in this division shall be issued to the applicant. If the city council finds 

against the applicant and decides that the public convenience, necessity and safety do not justify the 

issuance of such permit or that the applicant is not fit to conduct the taxicab business or the equipment 

is not fit for such business, then no permit shall be issued, and notice of the action of the city council 

shall be given to the applicant, setting forth the reason for the refusal of such permit.  

Sec. 86-69. - Occupational license required.  

Prior to the issuance of a permit for the operation of taxicabs, the applicant shall obtain an 

occupational license.  

Sec. 86-70. - Transfer.  

A permit for the operation of taxicabs shall not be transferable, except upon application to and 

consent of the city council.  

Sec. 86-71. - Suspension or revocation.  

Whenever any person engaged in the taxicab business is found to be in violation of the provisions 

of this article or the traffic ordinances of the city or of any of the laws of the state, the city council may, 

upon complaint or upon its own motion, issue an order to such person to appear at a fixed time and place 

for investigation. If the city council is satisfied, after such hearing, that such person is guilty of the 

violations charged, it may, in its discretion, suspend for a fixed period or revoke entirely the permit 

issued to such person.  

DIVISION 3. - DRIVER'S PERMIT  

Sec. 86-91. - Required.  

No person shall operate or drive a taxicab upon any street unless he has obtained a permit pursuant 

to the provisions of this division.  

Sec. 86-92. - Application and investigation.  

Any person having resided continuously in the state for not less than six months immediately 

preceding the making of application for a permit to operate a taxicab and being 18 years of age or over 

may make application to the city clerk for a permit to operate a taxicab. A verbal or written examination, 

327



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 16 of 16 

 

or both, may be given by the chief of police to each applicant to determine knowledge of city streets, 

locations and environs.  

Sec. 86-93. - Issuance; contents.  

It shall be the duty of the chief of police, if the applicant for a permit under this division is 

knowledgeable of the provisions of this article and of the traffic ordinance of the city, and the applicant 

pays the required fee and otherwise complies with this division for the initial year, to issue such person 

a written permit, which permit shall be signed by the city clerk and sealed with the corporate seal of the 

city, and shall bear the name, address, sex, age, signature, photograph and fingerprints of the applicant. 

The chief of police shall procure the fingerprints and a photograph of the applicant and shall keep the 

fingerprints and photograph on permanent file in his office. The fingerprints and photograph shall be 

voluntarily furnished by the applicant at the time of filing his application.  

Sec. 86-94. - State commercial license required.  

No person shall be issued a taxicab driver's permit unless he holds a commercial license issued by 

the state.  

Sec. 86-95. - Alteration or destruction prohibited.  

It shall be unlawful for any person holding a taxicab driver's permit to wilfully alter, deface, 

obliterate or destroy the permit, or to cause the permit to be defaced, obliterated or destroyed.  

Sec. 86-96. - Display.  

Every driver or operator of any taxicab operated shall have his driver's permit displayed in such 

taxicab in a conspicuous place so as to be easily observed by any person occupying such taxicab.  

Sec. 86-97. - Suspension or revocation.  

Whenever any operator or driver of a taxicab is found to be violating the provisions of this article, 

or the traffic ordinances of the city, or any of the laws of the state, the city council may, upon complaint 

or upon its own motion, issue an order to such operator or driver to appear at a fixed time and place for 

investigation. If the city council shall be satisfied after such hearing of the violation as charged, it may, 

in its discretion, suspend for a fixed period, or revoke entirely, the driver's permit issued.  

Sec. 86-98. - Appeals.  

Any person whose taxicab driver's permit is refused, suspended or revoked by the chief of police 

may appeal, by filing notice thereof with the city clerk within 30 days from the time of such refusal, 

revocation or suspension. Such appeal as filed shall not act as a supersedeas until such time as the city 

council shall take final action on such appeal.  

 

 

328



 
 

 

September 21, 2016 

 

Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Commissioner Kyle Becker 

120 East Main Street, First Floor 

Apopka, FL 32703 

 

 

RE: LYFT TESTIMONY AND PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 

 

 

Dear Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioners, 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide testimony on Proposed Ordinance 2511 for consideration by the full 

Council.  We at Lyft believe in working collaboratively towards developing an appropriate regulatory 

framework to allow for the successful continuing operation of Lyft, other ridesharing platforms, and existing 

industry.   

 

While Lyft supports many of the changes made to the City’s Vehicle for Hire Code in Proposed Ordinance 

2511, Lyft believes that there are still ways in which the Proposed Ordinance should be improved.  As such, 

we respectfully request the Council to consider delaying any action on Proposed Ordinance until the next full 

Council meeting.   

 

While we appreciate the Council’s work in updating the City’s Vehicle for Hire Code, Lyft respectfully 

suggests that some areas of the Proposed Ordinance be reconsidered, and that the Council considers 

eliminating some of the burdens placed on individual drivers.   

 

Please find attached our suggested amendments to Proposed Ordinance 2511, which we hope will be given 

fair consideration with an opportunity for both public and City Council input.   

 

 

Thank you for your consideration. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Timothy Alborg  

Public Policy Manager 

 

329



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 
VACATING AND DELETING THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 86 
OF THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES AS CURRENTLY 
WRITTEN, ADOPTING NEW PROVISIONS IN SAID CHAPTER 
AMENDING THE PERMITTING AND REGULATION OF 
TAXICABS AND CREATING REGULATIONS FOR 
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES AND TRANSPORTATION 
NETWORK APPLICATION COMPANIES AND OPERATORS; 
AND PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka believes that it is necessary and in the best 
interest of the City to update its regulations for vehicles for hire in recognition of changes and advances 
in modern business models of private automobile transportation. 

 

LESIGLATIVE UNDERSCORING: Underlined words constitute additions to the City of Apopka 
Code of Ordinances, strikethrough constitutes deletions from the original, and asterisks (***) indicate 
an  omission from  the existing text which is  intended to remain    unchanged. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE    CITY OF 
APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

 
SECTION 1. The provisions of CHAPTER 86, VEHICLES FOR HIRE, shall be vacated and 

deleted in its entirety, and the following shall be adopted in their place. The provisions to be vacated and 
deleted are attached as Exhibit “A.” 

 

Chapter 86 - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL 

Sec. 86-1. - Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

Company means any person, association, corporation or other organization which operates or 
intends to engage in the business of operating vehicles for hire or operate as a TNC. 

Conviction means the conviction by a court including an adjudication of guilt on a plea of guilty or 
nolo contendere or the forfeiture of a bond when charged with a crime. 

Digital platform means any online or smartphone enabled application that allows passengers to 
request transportation network vehicle services. 

Digital credential means the permission or access given to a driver to operate on a company's digital 
platform. 

Driver means an individual permitted to drive a vehicle for hire. 

Fees mean nonrefundable payments required in this chapter. 

Limousine means a specialized vehicle not equipped with a taximeter and for hire only by 
prearrangement at a rate charged per hour, or fixed in advance, and provided also that each such vehicle 
for hire is: (1) chauffeured, (2) a luxury class passenger vehicle built or modified for the purpose of a 
limousine as defined and recognized by the limousine industry; and (3) operated on a reserved,   hourly 

330



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 2 of 16 

 
basis for a continuous period. A vehicle which is held out to be a limousine or which has an appearance 
deceptively similar to a limousine is a limousine for the purposes of this chapter. 

Narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivatives and central nervous system stimulants. The term 
"narcotic drugs" as used in this chapter shall mean coca leaves, opium, cannabis, marijuana, isonipecaine 
and every synthetic substance known to have narcotic action. The term "barbituric acid derivative" means 
each of the salts and derivatives of barbituric acid, also known as malonyl urea, and derivatives, 
compounds, mixtures or preparations thereof. "Barbiturate" or "barbiturates" shall include all hypnotic 
or somnifacient drugs, whether or not derivatives of barbituric acids. The term "central nervous system 
stimulants" means amphetamine and desocyephedrine, and any derivative, compounds, mixture or 
preparation thereof. 

Permit means the authority granted to companies to operate, or persons who qualify to drive, 
vehicles for hire. 

Revocation means the rescinding of a permit. A person or entity whose permit is revoked shall not 
be entitled to reinstatement or an opportunity to reapply for such permit for a period of two years except 
as provided in subsection 86-61(5). 

Shuttle bus means a vehicle with a capacity of at least eight persons, including the driver, that is 
operated on a fixed route, or owner and operated directly by a motel or hotel and limited to registered 
guests thereof. 

Suspension means the temporary rescinding of a permit or license. The suspension may be for a time 
certain or indefinite pending compliance with the terms of this chapter. 

Taxicab means a vehicle for hire with a capacity of not more than eight persons, including the driver, 
equipped with a taximeter operated under a company and vehicle permit required by this article, which 
is routed under the direction of the person hiring the vehicle. 

Taximeter means an instrument or device attached to a vehicle and designed to measure 
mechanically or electronically the distance traveled by such vehicle, to record the times such vehicle 
travels or is in waiting, and to indicate the fare to be obtained. 

Transportation service means a vehicle for hire with a capacity of not more than eight persons, 
including the driver, which is not equipped with a taximeter, which charges passengers a fare generally 
based on a flat fee, and does not operate over a fixed or defined route but routed under the direction of 
the person hiring the vehicle. 

Transportation network application company ("TNC company") means any company operating in 
the city that uses a digital network or software application to connect a passenger to transportation 
network services provided by a transportation network operator. 

Transportation network operator means any driver or operator who operates a personal vehicle that 
utilizes any digital platform to arrange transportation of a passenger between points chosen by the 
passenger and that is in connection with a digital platform controlled by a TNC company. 

Transportation network service means the provision of transportation by a transportation network 
operator to a rider, beginning when the transportation network operator accepts a ride requested through 
a digital platform controlled by a TNC company, continuing while the transportation network operator 
transports a requesting rider, and ending when the last requesting rider departs from the personal vehicle. 

Use of narcotic drugs. The word "use" as employed in this chapter in relation to the drugs described 
in this chapter shall apply to any person who uses one or more of the narcotic drugs or barbituric acid 
derivatives or central nervous system stimulants as defined this section to any extent, with or without 
medical need or authority or prescription. 

Vehicle for hire means any vehicle, whether owned by the driver or company, that is operated by a 
taxicab driver, transportation service driver, transportation network operator, any other motor    vehicle 

331



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 3 of 16 

 
with driver transporting passengers for a fare, fee, or other charge in the city. The term vehicle for hire, 
by definition, excludes: 

(1) School, church, college or university buses; 

(2) Sightseeing cars and buses; 

(3) Ambulances; 

(4) Funeral home vehicles; 

(5) Interstate buses; 

(6) Limousines; 

(7) Shuttle buses. 

Vehicle for hire administrator means the City Administrator or his/her designee. 

ARTICLE II. - COMPANY PERMIT 

Sec. 86-31. - Application; contents. 

(a) No taxicab company, transportation service, or TNC company shall operate or engage in the 
business of operating vehicles for hire or operating a TNC within the city without having first 
obtained a company permit from the vehicle for hire administrator or designee. An application shall 
be submitted on forms furnished by the vehicles for hire administrator or designee containing 
appropriate information which is reasonably related to the business of operating vehicles for hire. 

(b) In order to secure or renew a company permit, the company applicant shall file an application with 
the vehicles for hire administrator or designee, and such application shall be verified under oath and 
shall furnish the following information: 

(1) The name and address of the company. If the company is a corporation or partnership, the name 
and address of all officers, shareholders, partners or any principals or owners with an interest 
greater than five twenty percent of the company must be listed. 

(2) The color scheme and insignia to be used to designate the vehicles of any taxicab company. 

(3) No company permit shall be granted to a taxicab company operating less than five vehicles. 
The vehicles must be currently operating, licensed, and inspected as required by this chapter. 
Each vehicle must conform to the United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) 
maximum passenger standards allowed for the vehicle to operate. 

(4) Proof of proper amount of insurance coverage as provided in section 86-93, with the insurance 
coverage being filed with vehicle for hire administrator and approved by the City. 

(5) Such other information as the vehicle for hire administrator may require. 

(c) Payment of an annual company permit fee of $250.00. 

Sec. 86-32. - Maintaining a company permit. 

(a) In order to maintain a company permit to operate or engage in the business of operating vehicles for 
hire or operating a TNC, the company must: 

(1) Obtain and hold a current business tax receipt from the city as required by chapter 74, if 
applicable. 

(2) Maintain a telephone number that is monitored 24 hours a day for emergency contact by the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee or law enforcement, and an e-mail address for citizen 
complaints or concerns. 

332



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 4 of 16 

 
(3) Maintain the name, home address, and telephone number of each driver affiliated with the 

company. 

(4) Maintain a log listing the year, make, model, license plate number , and vehicle identification 
number (serial number) and ownership status of all vehicles in the company's fleet or that 
operate on a company's platform. 

(5) Maintain proper amount of insurance as provided in section 86-93. 

(6) Maintain records available for inspection, upon request by the vehicle for hire administrator or 
designee, pursuant to a complaint received or if the vehicle for hire administrator has a 
reasonable basis to suspect that a company or driver is violating the requirements of this chapter. 
The records shall include, but not be limited to, records pertaining to permitted/certified drivers, 
vehicle inspection records, daily logs, and that the maximum rate charged in compliance with 
section 86-95. Unless otherwise agreed to by the company and the vehicle for hire 
administrator, such records shall be made available for inspection to the vehicle for hire 
administrator at a permit holder's place of business or a mutually agreed location in the city. 

(7) Each company shall implement a zero-tolerance policy on the use of drugs or alcohol applicable 
to all drivers, and provide notice of the policy to all company drivers and to the public through 
its website, if applicable. In addition, the company shall provide notice to the public on the 
procedure for reporting a driver the passenger reasonably suspects was under the influence of 
drugs or alcohol during the course of the ride. The company shall cooperate with the vehicle 
for hire administrator or designee during the pendency of the investigation pursuant to 
subsection 86-63(b)(3). 

(8) The vehicle for hire administrator or police chief is authorized to conduct annual audits of any 
company authorized to operate under this chapter. The company shall provide to the vehicle for 
hire administrator, on request, up to 250 unique identification numbers, each of which has been 
assigned to an individual driver affiliated with the company. The vehicle for hire administrator 
may send to the company a list of up to ten driver identification numbers and request copies of 
records held by the company for those ten drivers. Within five business days of receiving a 
request seeking records, the company shall make available to the vehicle for hire administrator 
at a company's place of business or a mutually agreed setting in the city, records to verify that 
the company has properly screened drivers in accordance with section 86-61; provided, that the 
company may redact any records it provides access to in order to protect the privacy and 
identifying information of the driver. 

Sec. 86-33. - Revocation or suspension of a company permit; grounds; right of appeal. 

(a) Revocation or suspension of company permit; grounds. Upon a finding of due cause, as defined in 
subsection (b) of this section, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee shall have the authority 
to revoke or suspend any company permit which has been granted or which may hereinafter be 
granted by the city. Prior to suspension or revocation, the company shall be served notice by certified 
mail or hand delivery of the proposed action to be taken and shall have an opportunity to present to 
the vehicle for hire administrator or designee evidence as to why the company permit should not be 
revoked or suspended. 

(b) Causes for revocation or suspension. Due cause for revocation or suspension of a company permit 
shall include but shall not be limited to the following: 

(1) The failure of the company to maintain any of the general qualifications applicable to the initial 
granting of the company permit as set forth in section 86-31 or maintaining a company permit 
as set forth in section 86-32. 

(2) Obtaining a company permit by providing false information. 

333



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 5 of 16 

 

(3) Conviction by a court of competent jurisdiction of any shareholder, officer, partner, member, 
principal or owner of any corporation, partnership, firm or association holding a five percent 
interest or more in the entity, of any of the following: criminal homicide, rape, sexual battery, 
aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, kidnapping, robbery, child molestation, lewd 
and lascivious acts, armed trespassing, carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to 
commit any of the above, criminal attempt to commit any of the above, or possession, sale or 
distribution of narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivatives and/or central nervous system 
stimulants if such violation or violations are related to operation of the company, or violation 
of any ordinance of the city governing the conduct of a company. 

(4) Allowing any person to operate a company's designated vehicle for hire, or operate on the 
company's digital platform, without an active driver permit or credential, or when said person's 
permit or credential has been suspended or revoked because of a positive drug test pursuant to 
section 86-63. 

(c) Right of appeal. Any company whose permit is revoked or suspended by the vehicle for hire 
administrator or designee may appeal such decision to the City Council. Such appeal shall be taken 
by filing written notice thereof, in duplicate, with the city administrator's office within five days 
after the decision of the vehicles for hire administrator or designee. The notice of the appeal shall 
contain the grounds for the appeal and shall contain information that either the finding is contrary 
to the law or is not supported by competent substantial evidence. The vehicle for hire administrator 
or designee shall forthwith transmit copies of the appeal to the City Council along with all papers 
constituting the record upon which the action appealed from is based. The filing of a notice of appeal 
will not delay the effectiveness of any suspension or revocation. 

ARTICLE III. - VEHICLE FOR HIRE DRIVERS 

Sec. 86-60. - Prohibition against unauthorized operation. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate on behalf of a taxicab company, transportation 
service, or other vehicle for hire for the transportation of passengers within the city, or on a TNC's 
digital platform, or to cause or permit any other person to drive or operate a vehicle for hire: 

(1) Without first obtaining a written permit for the operation of a motor vehicle for hire from the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee; 

(2) Without having been certified to operate a motor vehicle for hire on behalf of a company or on 
the company's digital platform; or 

(3) When the company permit has previously been revoked pursuant to section 86-33. 

(b) Any person found to have violated this section shall be punished by the following: 

(1) A fine $150.00 for the first citation; 

(2) A fine of $250.00 for the second citation; and 

(3) A fine of $500.00 for the third or subsequent citation. 

Sec. 86-61. - Application for driver's permit. 

(a) In order to secure a driver permit or to obtain certification from a company, an applicant must: 

(1) Be at least 18 years of age; 

(2) Possess a valid state driver's license; 

(3) For a period of three years prior to the date of application not have been convicted of: 

a. Driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs; or 

334



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 6 of 16 

 
b. Violation of any ordinance or law, other than minor traffic offenses, in connection with the 

operation of a motor vehicle. 

(4) For a period of three years prior to the date of application not have more than three moving 
violations; 

(5) Not have been convicted within the seven years previous to the date of application for the 
violation of any of the following criminal offenses of the state or any other state or of the United 
States: aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, kidnapping, robbery, lewd and 
lascivious acts, armed trespassing, carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to commit 
any of the above, criminal attempt to commit any of the offenses listed in this subsection, or 
been convicted within the last seven years of any felony in the commission of which a motor 
vehicle was used, perjury or false swearing in making any statement under oath in connection 
with application for a driver's permit, any felony involving theft, or possession, sale or 
distribution of narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivative and/or central nervous system 
stimulants. Applicants who have been convicted or served any time, probation, or parole for a 
criminal offense of homicide, rape, sexual battery, or child molestation must have their 
complete criminal history reviewed and approved by the vehicle for hire administrator; 

(0) Be able to communicate in the English language. 

(c)(b) An applicant may apply for a permit or credential by completing a form provided by the vehicle 
for hire administrator establishing that the applicant meets the requirements of subsection. 

(d)(c) Upon approval by the vehicle for hire administrator or designee, or certification by the taxicab 
company, transportation service, or TNC company, the driver shall be issued: 

(1) A permit from the vehicle for hire administrator or designee; or 

(2) Credentials from the taxicab company, transportation service, or TNC company, which may be 
digital credentials, indicating that the driver was certified by the company, and the credential 
shall include the following information: 

a. The name or logo of the company; 

b. The name of the driver; 

c. The license plate number associated with the vehicle that the driver has been authorized to 
use. 

(3) The driver shall display the permit or credential in a manner that it is visible to the passengers 
of the vehicle while the vehicle is operating, or make available at a minimum the driver's first 
name, photograph, and make, model, and license plate number to the passenger through the 
company's digital platform. The driver shall present the permit or credential upon request to a 
law enforcement officer, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee, or designated airport 
personnel upon request. If the driver maintains a digital credential, upon a traffic stop, a driver 
shall provide law enforcement with access to a device containing the information required to 
be maintained as part of the driver's digital credential and an electronic record sufficient to 
establish that the trip in question was prearranged through a digital platform. 

 An applicant must pay an annual driver application fee of $100.00. 

Sec. 86-62. - Maintaining driver's permit. 

In order to maintain a valid permit or credential to drive a taxicab, transportation service, or other 
vehicle for hire, a driver must: 

(4) Wear proper dress while operating a vehicle for hire. 

(5) Maintain a neat appearance. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.38",  No bullets or

numbering

335



8 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 7 of 16 
 

(6) Not smoke while carrying passengers. 

(7) Maintain a log upon which are recorded all trips made each day, showing time and place of 
origin and destination of each trip and amount of fare. Such logs must be maintained by the 
company or the vehicle owner, if not maintained by the driver, and shall be made available to 
the vehicle for hire administrator or designee for a compliance inquiry if the administrator has 
a reasonable basis to suspect that a company or driver is violating the requirements of this 
chapter. 

(8) Renew his driver's permit or credential during the month of the driver's permit or credential 
expiration date. 

(9) Wear a seatbelt at all times while operating a vehicle for hire or providing transportation 
network services. 

Sec. 86-63. - Revocation or suspension of driver's permits; grounds; right of appeal. 

(a) Revocation or suspension of driver's permits or credential. Upon a finding of due cause, as defined 
in subsection (b) of this section, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee shall have the 
authority to revoke or suspend any driver's permit or credential which has been issued or which may 
hereinafter be issued by the city. Before a driver's permit or credential shall be denied, suspended 
or revoked, notice of intention thereof shall be served upon the driver either by registered mail or 
personal service; however, such notice shall not be necessary for a denial of an original permit or 
credential. However, any such applicant or driver shall be given an opportunity to be heard by the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee. 

(b) Causes for revocation or suspension. Due cause for revocation or suspension of a driver's permit or 
credential shall include but shall not be limited to the following: 

(1) The failure of the driver to maintain any and all of the general qualifications as applicable to 
the initial issuance of a permit as set forth in section 86-61; 

(2) Obtaining a permit or credential by providing false information; 

(3) Violation by a driver of any of the following offenses: 

a. Driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs. A driver shall be required 
to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test at the request of the vehicle for hire administrator or 
designee, upon receipt of a passenger complaint, : 

b.a. Where reasonable suspicion exists that a driver is suspected of abusing alcohol or misusing 
prescription drugs or controlled substances; or. 

0. Where a driver has been involved in a crash with serious injury or serious property 
damage while operating a vehicle for hire or providing transportation network 
services. "Serious injury" is defined as a physical condition that creates a substantial 
risk of death, serious personal disfigurement, or protracted loss or impairment of the 
function of any bodily member or organ. "Serious property damage" is defined as one 
or more of the motor vehicles involved in the crash is "totaled", or one or more of the 
vehicles sustains significant disabling damage to public and/or private property which 
equals or exceeds an apparent damage of $5,000.00 or more as estimated by the law 
enforcement officer who conducts the investigation at the scene of the traffic crash; or 

d.b. Refusing or failing to submit to a drug test at the request of the vehicle for hire administrator 
or designee shall be due cause for revocation of the driver's permit or credential with no 
reapplication for one year. Failing a drug or alcohol test shall be due cause for revocation 
of the driver's permit or credential with no reapplication for one year. 

e.c. Criminal homicide, rape, sexual battery, aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, 

336



9 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

kidnapping,  robbery,  child  molestation,  lewd  and  lascivious  acts,  armed  trespassing, 
carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to commit any of the above, criminal 
attempt to commit any of the above, or possession, sale or distribution of narcotic drugs, 
barbituric acid derivatives and/or central nervous system stimulants, violation of any 
ordinance of the city governing the conduct of drivers of a vehicle for hire. 

(4) Charging a fare contrary to any fares established and approved by the city commission pursuant 
to section 86-95; 

(5) Violation of any ordinances or law, other than minor traffic offenses, in connection with the 
operation of a taxicab, transportation service, TNC company, or other vehicle for hire; 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 8 of 16 

 

(6) Whenever it shall appearUpon receipt of a passenger complaint alleging that a driver has 
disorders characterized by lapses of consciousness or other mental or physical disabilities 
affecting his or her ability to drive safely; 

(7) Accumulating nine or more points within a six-month period as outlined in F.S. § 322.27(3)d. 

(8) Violating the requirements of section 86-96. 

Sec. 86-64. - Duration of driver permit. 

Each driver permit or credential issued pursuant to section 86-61 above shall be valid for one year 
from the date of issuance. 

ARTICLE IV. - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

Sec. 86-91. - Identifying signs, monograms and insignias. 

(a) Taxicabs. 

Each taxicab shall be readily identifiable as a taxicab and shall bear on the outside of each rear or 
front door, in letters not less than two inches in height, the name of the person or corporation to 
whom the franchise is issued. Each such taxicab shall also be numbered consecutively, with such 
numbers being placed conspicuously on each vehicle, with such numerals being not less than four 
and one-half inches nor more than six inches in height. 

(b) Transportation services. 

(1) Each vehicle operated by a transportation service shall be readily identifiable as a transportation 
service and shall bear on the outside of each rear or front door, in letters not less than two inches 
in height, the name of the person or corporation to whom the vehicle is owned or operated by. 

(2) No transportation service shall have any insignia or sign that identifies itself as a "taxi" or "cab" 
or otherwise gives the impression that it is a taxicab. 

(c) Transportation network application (TNC) company/transportation network operator. 

(1) Each vehicle operated by a TNC company or transportation network operator shall bear on the 
outside of each rear or front door, in letters not less than two inches in height, the name of the 
person or corporation to whom the vehicle is owned or operated by, or any symbol or insignia 
approved by the vehicle for hire administratordisplay a consistent signage or emblem on the 
transportation network operator’s personal vehicle at all times while the transportation network 
operator is active on the TNC company’s network.  The signage or emblem shall be sufficiently 
large or color-contrasted to be readable during daylight hours from a distance of 50 feet, 
reflective, illuminated, or otherwise visible in darkness, and capable of sufficiently identifying 
a personal vehicle as being associated with the TNC company. 

337



10 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

(2) No transportation network operator vehicle shall have any insignia or sign that identifies itself 
as a "taxi" or "cab" or otherwise gives the impression that it is a taxicab, or otherwise give the 
impression that the operator is available to solicit passengers other than through the digital 
platform. 

(3) No transportation network operator vehicle shall place any type or form of light device or other 
device on the roof, commonly known as a top light or top hat, whether or not permanently or 
temporarily affixed to the vehicle, or have within the interior of the vehicle. 

 

Sec. 86-92. - Taximeter. 

a. All taxicabs operated under the authority of this chapter shall be equipped with taximeters fastened 
in a manner so that the face thereof shall be visible and readable to passengers at all times both  

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 9 of 16 

day and night. The face of the taximeter shall be set so that it will register and compute on a 
mileage basis while such taxicab is moving and on a time basis while such taxicab is standing and 
while the service is being rendered the fare to be charged. Such taximeter shall be operated 
mechanically by a mechanism of standard design and construction, driven either from the 
transmission or from one of the front wheels by a flexible and permanently attached driving 
mechanism. 

a. No vehicle for hire other than a taxicab is authorized to install or be equipped with a taximeter. 

Sec. 86-93. - Liability insurance required. 

No vehicle for hire shall be placed in service unless such vehicle is in compliance with Florida law 
for liability insurance purposes. Proof of such insurance coverage, which may be provided on a blanket 
basis, shall be filed annually with and approved by the vehicle for hire administrator or designee for the 
carriage of passengers. 

Sec. 86-94. - Seat belts required. 

All vehicles for hire covered by this chapter shall be equipped with operational seat belts for each 
passenger. 

Sec. 86-95. - Authority of city commission to establish rates and charges; displaying rate cards. 

(a) Taxicabs. 

(1) The city commission may by ordinance establish maximum rates and charges for the 
transportation of persons and their baggage within the corporate limits of the city and suburban 
territory adjacent thereto. Any ordinance establishing rates as provided by this section shall 
become effective 24 hours after its adoption. 

(2) Every taxicab operating under this chapter shall have posted in a conspicuous place therein a 
schedule of rates for the transportation of person within the corporate limits of the city, and no 
charges shall be made in excess of the rates so posted. 

(3) There is hereby established a schedule of the maximum rates which can be charged by all 
taxicab drivers operating taxicabs within the city. A taximeter may be set so that it will register 
and compute on a mileage or other basis at less than the maximum rates set forth in this section. 

(b) Transportation service. 

(1) All fares as agreed to between any transportation service operator and any passenger must be 
agreed upon prior to leaving the point of origin. No transportation service operator may increase 
the agreed upon fare after leaving the point of origin. 

(2) No transportation service shall be authorized to charge for wait time, or to charge any other 

Commented [A1]: Double check on insurance provision. 

338



11 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

rates or fees except for mileage. 

(3) Every transportation service vehicle shall have cards displayed visibly from the outside of the 
vehicle on the passenger side and on the inside of the right rear window at the eye level of a 
seated passenger that state the following: "RATE OF TRANSPORT IS BY FLAT FEE ONLY". 

(c) Transportation network application (TNC) company or transportation network operator. 

(1) All TNC companies shall disclose the fare calculation method, the applicable rates being 
charged, and the option for an estimated fare to a passenger before the passenger arranges or 
books a trip with the transportation network application company or transportation network 
operator. 

339



12 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 10 of 16 

 

(2) Upon completion of the trip, a TNC company shall transmit an electronic receipt to the 
passenger's e-mail or mobile application that lists the: origin and destination of the trip; the total 
time and distance of the trip; and a breakdown of the total fare paid, if any. 

Sec. 86-96. - Miscellaneous regulations and other penalties. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any driver or operator of a vehicle for hire to drive or operate or be on duty 
or on call for the operation of a vehicle for hire for more than 12 hours within any 24-hour period. 

(b) A driver shall take the most direct route to a passenger's destination unless otherwise authorized or 
directed by the passenger. 

(c) No driver shall refuse to accept a passenger unless the passenger is obviously disorderly, dangerous, 
or otherwise a threat to the safety or welfare of the driver. 

(d) It shall be unlawful for the driver operating in the city to permit any person to accompany or use 
such vehicle for hire for the purpose of prostitution, or to direct, take or transport any other person 
with knowledge or reasonable cause to believe that the purpose of such directing, taking or 
transporting is for the purpose of prostitution. 

(e) No vehicle for hire shall be permitted to carry nonpaying passengers while transporting a paying 
passenger or passengers except for the purpose of driver training. 

(f) No vehicle for hire shall solicit or carry a paying passenger while in the process of carrying another 
paying passenger except when requested to do so by the latter passenger. 

(g) Transportation network operators shall exclusively accept passengers booked through a 
transportation network company's digital platform, and shall not solicit or accept street-hails. 

(h) No TNC company may provide personal information about a passenger to a transportation network 
operator, including a passenger's full name, e-mail address, or telephone number. 

Sec. 86-97. - Enforcement. 

The city police department and the vehicles for hire administrator shall be authorized to enforce the 
regulations contained in this chapter, including the promulgation of rules consistent with this chapter 
and the setting of fees. 

SECTION 2. CODIFICATION. It is the intention of the City Council that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka; and 

the City Clerk is directed to take the necessary steps to effect codification into the Code, and Sections 

of this ordinance may be numbered or renumbered or lettered or re-lettered and the word “ordinance" 

may be changed to " chapter ", "section ", "article", or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to 

accomplish such codification. Typographical errors which do not affect the intent may be authorized by 

the Mayor, without need of public hearing, by filing a corrected or re-codified copy of same with the 

City Clerk. 

SECTION 3. CONFLICTS. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase of this 

ordinance, or the particular application thereof shall be held invalid by any court, administrative agency, 

or other body with appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining section, subsection, sentences, clauses, or 

phrases under application shall not be affected thereby. 

340



13 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 11 of 16 

 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, 

requirements, orders and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force 

and effect immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016  
 

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: September 21, 2016  
 

 

 

 
 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 
 

Linda G. Goff, City Clerk 
 

 

APPROVED as to form and legality for 

use and reliance by the City of Apopka, 

Florida. 
 

 

 

 
 

Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 
 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:   August 19, 2016 

September 9, 2016 

341



14 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 12 of 16 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Sec. 86-39. - Liability insurance. 
 

(a) It shall be unlawful for the owner, operator, driver or chauffeur of any taxicab to drive or operate 

the taxicab or to permit the taxicab to be driven or operated upon the public streets, unless such 

owner, operator, driver or chauffeur shall have first procured and filed with the city clerk a liability 

insurance policy issued by a good and responsible surety company, which insurance company or 

surety company must have authority to do business as such in the state and must be acceptable to 

and approved by the city council. The amount of liability insurance or surety bond for each taxicab 

shall be the minimum required by the state for liability insurance, or, if liability insurance is not 

required by state law, the minimum financial responsibility requirements of the Financial 

Responsibility Law, F.S. ch. 324. 

(b) Such policy of insurance or surety bond may be in the form of a separate policy or separate surety 

bond for each taxicab, or may be in the form of a fleet policy covering all taxicabs operated by such 

owner, operator, driver or chauffeur, in which latter event such policy of insurance or surety bond 

shall provide the same liability for each taxicab operated in service as specified in subsection (a) of 

this section. Every taxicab hired in service shall have conspicuously displayed therein or thereon 

some sign evidencing the fact that the provisions of this section have been complied with, with the 

form thereof to be prescribed by the chief of police. 

(c) No policy of insurance or surety bond as provided for in this section shall be cancelled until the 

expiration of five days after notice of intended cancellation thereof has been given in writing to the 

city clerk by registered mail or personal delivery of such notice, and a provision therefor shall be 

embodied in the policy or surety bond. 

Sec. 86-40. - Use of streets for transacting business. 
 

Except as provided in this article, no taxicab shall occupy space on the streets for the transaction of 

business other than the picking up of passengers. All places of business of taxicabs shall be maintained 

off the streets. 

Sec. 86-41. - Use of improper vehicles. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person to operate or drive, as a taxicab, in or upon any street, any motor- 

driven vehicle, unless the vehicle is a taxicab as defined in this article. 

Sec. 86-42. - Name of owner or operator to be displayed on vehicle. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any taxicab to be driven upon the streets unless the name of the person either 

owning or operating such taxicab, or the trade name under which such taxicab is operated, is 

conspicuously painted on such taxicab in letters not less than two inches in height. 

Sec. 86-43. - Meters. 
 

(a) All taxicabs shall be equipped with mechanical devices, commonly called taxicab meters, for 

registering the fare to be charged. 

342



15 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 13 of 16 

 

(b) Every meter in use shall be placed in such taxicabs at a location that will be plainly visible at all 

times to the occupants of such taxicabs. Between the hours of sunset and sunrise, the dial of the 

meter shall be illuminated whenever it is in use. 

(c) Whenever a taxicab is not in service, the meter shall show no fare and the flag shall be in the upright 

position. When a taxicab is in service, the flag or indicator on the meter shall be lowered and the 

meter shall be in the calculating position. 

(d) Upon the completion of service by a taxicab, the flag or indicator on the meter shall be raised and 

the meter shall be returned to the noncalculating position and its dials cleared. 

(e) It shall be unlawful for the operator or driver of any taxicab to operate the taxicab on the streets of 

the city with any occupant in such taxicab other than the driver when the flag or indicator on the 

taxicab meter is upright and in the noncalculating position, except when operating on an hourly or 

trip rate. 

(f) When the hourly rate or the special trip rate is used, an appropriate sign indicating that the cab is on 

a trip or hourly rate shall be exhibited. 

(g) It shall be the duty of the person owning and operating taxicabs to have the meter in good working 

condition and operating accurately as to the registration of mileage and fare. Such meters shall be 

sealed in a manner that will prevent any person from tampering with or changing the adjustment of 

the meter. It shall be unlawful for any person to tamper with or change the adjustment of a meter, 

except the owner operating the taxicab to which such meter is affixed, or a person duly designated 

by the owner, or a meter mechanic. 

(h) It shall be unlawful for any person owning and operating taxicabs with meters affixed thereto to 

permit the taxicabs to be operated on the streets of the city when such meters do not accurately 

register the mileage and the rate as set forth by the ordinances of the city. All meters shall be subject 

to inspection and test by any police officer at all times when cabs are not carrying passengers. 

Sec. 86-44. - Rates and charges. 
 

(a) Posting. Each taxicab shall have posted in a conspicuous place therein a schedule of rates for the 

transportation of persons within the corporate limits of the city, and no charges shall be made in 

excess of the rates so posted. 

(b) Determination. All rate charges or fees for the use of taxicabs using meters shall be determined by 

a meter rate, hourly rate or special trip rate and by no other method. All charges are for the exclusive 

use of the taxicab, and shall apply regardless of the number of passengers transported. 

Sec. 86-45. - Fare receipts; right to demand payment of fare in advance. 
 

If demanded by the passenger, the driver in charge of a taxicab shall deliver to the person paying 

for the hiring of the taxicab, at the time of such payment, a receipt therefor in legible writing, containing 

the name of the owner and the city license or permit number, showing upon such receipt all items for 

which a charge is made, the total amount paid and the date of payment. Every driver of any such taxicab 

shall have the right to demand payment of the legal fare in advance, and may refuse employment unless 

so prepaid. 

Sec. 86-46. - Soliciting passengers near intersection. 

343



16 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 14 of 16 

 

It shall be unlawful for any person owning or operating one or more vehicles for hire in the city to 

operate such motor vehicles over and upon the streets of the city for the purpose of soliciting patronage, 

picking up passengers or delivering passengers at any point within 100 feet of any intersecting street 

corner along such street. It is the purpose and intent of this section to prohibit such practice within 100 

feet in all directions from such intersections. Such distance in all cases shall be measured from the center 

of the intersection. Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as prohibiting the driver of any taxicab 

or vehicle operated for hire from responding to any specific request for passage from any person seeking 

the services offered by such taxi or motor vehicle or from stopping at any point within the city for the 

purpose of delivering a passenger who has been picked up at any part of the city in a manner not 

prohibited by law. This section shall not apply to any buses or motor vehicles owned or operated by any 

bus or transit company under an exclusive franchise from the city. 

Sec. 86-47. - Soliciting passengers by preceding or following scheduled bus. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person operating motor vehicles for hire in the city to operate such motor 

vehicle over and upon the streets of the city for the purpose of soliciting the patronage of passengers by 

immediately preceding or following any duly scheduled bus or motor vehicle operated for such purpose 

by any bus or transit company under an exclusive franchise from the city along the streets of the city. 

Nothing contained in this section shall be construed as prohibiting the driver of any duly licensed taxi 

from responding to any specific request for passage from any patron seeking the services offered by such 

duly licensed taxi. 

Sec. 86-48. - Smoking by driver. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any driver, operator or chauffeur of any taxicab to smoke while the taxicab 

is occupied by a passenger. 

Sec. 86-49. - Use for immoral purposes. 
 

It shall be unlawful for the driver of a taxicab to permit any person to accompany or use such taxicab 

for the purpose of prostitution, lewdness or assignation, or to direct, take or transport, or to offer or agree 

to direct, take or transport, any other person, with knowledge or reasonable cause to believe that the 

purpose of such directing, taking or transporting is for the purpose of prostitution, lewdness or 

assignation. 

Sec. 86-50. - Display of political advertisements. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person licensed by the city to operate or drive a taxicab upon any street 

within the city with a political ad displayed for anyone seeking public office at any time. 

DIVISION 2. - BUSINESS PERMIT 
 

Sec. 86-66. - Required. 
 

It shall be unlawful to operate or cause to be operated any taxicab business unless a permit for the 

operation thereof shall have been first issued by the city council in the manner provided in this division. 

Sec. 86-67. - Application and investigation. 
 

(a) An application for the permit required by this division shall be made in writing to the city council. 
Such application shall set forth the name, residence address, and address of place of business of the 

344



17 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 15 of 16 

 
 applicant and the kind, make and model of the vehicle to be used in the business. If the applicant is  
a copartnership, the application shall give the nmes and residence addresses of the copartners. If the 

application is a corporation, the application shall set forth the name of the corporation and the residence 

address of its officers and board of directors. The application shall set forth the trade name, if any, under which 

the applicant does or proposes to do business. 

(b) Upon the filing of an application, the city clerk shall make an investigation, including any hearing 

deemed necessary, as to each application for a permit for the operation of taxicabs. In determining 

whether a permit shall be issued, the city council shall investigate the fitness of the applicant to 

engage in the business of operating taxicabs and the fitness of the equipment to be used, and shall 

also consider and determine whether the demands of public convenience, necessity and safety justify 

the issuance of such permit. 

Sec. 86-68. - Issuance or denial. 
 

If the city council finds favorably to the applicant and decides to grant a permit for the operation of 

taxicabs, a permit as provided in this division shall be issued to the applicant. If the city council finds 

against the applicant and decides that the public convenience, necessity and safety do not justify the 

issuance of such permit or that the applicant is not fit to conduct the taxicab business or the equipment 

is not fit for such business, then no permit shall be issued, and notice of the action of the city council 

shall be given to the applicant, setting forth the reason for the refusal of such permit. 

Sec. 86-69. - Occupational license required. 
 

Prior to the issuance of a permit for the operation of taxicabs, the applicant shall obtain an 

occupational license. 

Sec. 86-70. - Transfer. 
 

A permit for the operation of taxicabs shall not be transferable, except upon application to and 

consent of the city council. 

Sec. 86-71. - Suspension or revocation. 
 

Whenever any person engaged in the taxicab business is found to be in violation of the provisions 

of this article or the traffic ordinances of the city or of any of the laws of the state, the city council may, 

upon complaint or upon its own motion, issue an order to such person to appear at a fixed time and place 

for investigation. If the city council is satisfied, after such hearing, that such person is guilty of the 

violations charged, it may, in its discretion, suspend for a fixed period or revoke entirely the permit 

issued to such person. 

DIVISION 3. - DRIVER'S PERMIT 
 

Sec. 86-91. - Required. 
 

No person shall operate or drive a taxicab upon any street unless he has obtained a permit pursuant 
to the provisions of this division. 

Sec. 86-92. - Application and investigation. 
 

Any person having resided continuously in the state for not less than six months immediately 

preceding the making of application for a permit to operate a taxicab and being 18 years of age or over 

may make application to the city clerk for a permit to operate a taxicab. A verbal or written examination, 

345



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 16 of 16 

 

or both, may be given by the chief of police to each applicant to determine knowledge of city streets, locations 

and environs. 

Sec. 86-93. - Issuance; contents. 
 

It shall be the duty of the chief of police, if the applicant for a permit under this division is knowledgeable 

of the provisions of this article and of the traffic ordinance of the city, and the applicant pays the required fee 

and otherwise complies with this division for the initial year, to issue such person a written permit, which permit 

shall be signed by the city clerk and sealed with the corporate seal of the city, and shall bear the name, address, 

sex, age, signature, photograph and fingerprints of the applicant. The chief of police shall procure the fingerprints 

and a photograph of the applicant and shall keep the fingerprints and photograph on permanent file in his office. 

The fingerprints and photograph shall be voluntarily furnished by the applicant at the time of filing his 

application. 

Sec. 86-94. - State commercial license required. 
 

No person shall be issued a taxicab driver's permit unless he holds a commercial license issued by the state. 

Sec. 86-95. - Alteration or destruction prohibited. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person holding a taxicab driver's permit to wilfully alter, deface, obliterate or 

destroy the permit, or to cause the permit to be defaced, obliterated or destroyed. 

Sec. 86-96. - Display. 
 

Every driver or operator of any taxicab operated shall have his driver's permit displayed in such taxicab in a 

conspicuous place so as to be easily observed by any person occupying such taxicab. 

Sec. 86-97. - Suspension or revocation. 
 

Whenever any operator or driver of a taxicab is found to be violating the provisions of this article, or the 

traffic ordinances of the city, or any of the laws of the state, the city council may, upon complaint or upon its own 

motion, issue an order to such operator or driver to appear at a fixed time and place for investigation. If the city 

council shall be satisfied after such hearing of the violation as charged, it may, in its discretion, suspend for a 

fixed period, or revoke entirely, the driver's permit issued. 

Sec. 86-98. - Appeals. 
 

Any person whose taxicab driver's permit is refused, suspended or revoked by the chief of police may appeal, 

by filing notice thereof with the city clerk within 30 days from the time of such refusal, revocation or suspension. 

Such appeal as filed shall not act as a supersedeas until such time as the city council shall take final action on 

such appeal. 
 

 

346



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2518 – Second Reading – Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan – Quasi-Judicial  David 
Moon 

  

347



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: October 5, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER:  Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning/Use Maps 
    Amended Master Plan/PDP 
    Amended Building Elevations 
    Current Approved Master Plan/PDP 
    Ordinance 2355\Approved PUD 
    Ordinance 2518 

  
SUBJECT:    AMENDMENT TO DUNN/DIXIE MANOR PUD MASTER PLAN/ 

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
REQUEST:  SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2518 – 

AMENDING THE DUNN/DIXIE MANOR PUD MASTER 
PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

  
SUMMARY:  

         
OWNER\APPLICANT: Robert K. Dunn, et al 
 
ENGINEER:   Haskell Company    
 
LOCATION: North of Old Dixie Highway, east of Richard L. Mark Drive, and south of Errol 

Parkway 
  
EXISTING USE:  Vacant Land 
 
CURRENT ZONING: PUD  
 
PROPOSED  
DEVELOPMENT: Assisted Living Facility (ALF) with maximum 125-bed facility within a two and 

one story building with a maximum floor area ratio of .030 
 
PROPOSED  
AMENDMENT:  Increase maximum floor area ratio from 0.25 to 0.30. 
 
TRACT SIZE:   6.99 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  Current: 76,121 
    Proposed: 91,345 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

348



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
DUNN/DIXIE MANOR – PUD MASTER PLAN/PDP AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   On April 14, 2014 through Ordinance 2355, City Council adopted a Planned 
Unit Development zoning and a Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan for the Robert K. Dunn et.al. 
property.  The PUD master plan establishes a maximum floor area ratio of 0.25, which allows for building (s) 
with a maximum floor area of 76,121 square feet, for a proposed Assisted Living Facility (ALF) with up to 
125 beds.  A proposed ALF is similar to uses allowed with the Professional Office\Institutional zoning district, 
which allows a maximum floor area ratio of 0.30 for buildings.  The original building proposed for the 
applicant was only 76,000 sq. ft., which represents a floor area ratio of 0.25 for this property.  Thus, the 
applicant requested a 0.25 FAR instead of a 0.30 floor area ratio allowed by the Professional 
Office\Institutional zoning district.  The building proposed by the applicant, as presented in architectural 
renderings and within the proposed Master Plan, contains approximately 87,000 sq. ft. floor area.  Although 
the proposed building has more floor area than the previously approved Master Plan, the maximum number of 
beds – 125 beds – does not change.  All the other development standards approved within the current PUD 
zoning and Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan remain the same. 
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  Planning staff finds the proposed amendment to the Planned 
Unit Development to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code. 
  
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The amendment to the Planned Unit Development will not impact 
capacity at affected public schools.  If the property owner proposes residential development, then school 
capacity review will be required as part of the PUD amendment application. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The property is surrounded by properties that are within the City 
limits of Apopka; therefore the notice requirements in the JPA do not apply. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 13, 2016 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 
September 21, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 
October 5, 2016 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 26, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 
September 23, 2016 – Ordinance Heading Ad    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment to the Dunn\Dixie Manor PUD zoning 
and Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land 
Development Code recommends approval of the amendment to the Planned Unit Development zoning and 
Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on September 13, 2016, unanimously found the proposed 
amendment to the Dunn\Dixie Manor PUD zoning and Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan to be 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and recommended approval of the 
amendment to the Planned Unit Development zoning and Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on September 21, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2518 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on October 5, 2016 
 
Adopt Ordinance 2518. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting.  

349



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
DUNN/DIXIE MANOR – PUD MASTER PLAN/PDP AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 

 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) PUD Parkside at Errol, Ph. 3 

East (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) PUD Parkside at Errol, Ph. 3  

South (City) Commercial C-1 Lowes Home Retail Center 

West (City) Parks/Recreation\Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) PR/PUD Vacant wooded parcel; Villa Capri  

North (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) PUD Parkside at Errol, Ph. 3 

 

LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY:  
 
South: Old Dixie Highway, a two-lane collector road, lies to the south of the subject property and the 

Lowes Home Retail Center.  The land south of Old Dixie Highway is assigned a Commercial 
future land use designation and a zoning category of C-1. 

 
West: Across Richard L. Mark Drive is a 1.4 acre heavily wooded parcel covered by oak trees.  This 

parcel is owned by the City of Apopka and assigned a Park\Recreation future land use and zoning 
category that serves as open space.  At the northwest corner of the subject property is the Villa 
Capri residential community.  Villa Capri is assigned PUD zoning as part of the Errol Estate 
community. The typical lot is 51 feet wide with a typical area of about 5,700 sq. ft.  Along the 
east side of Villa Capri is a ten-foot wide five to six foot high masonry wall.  The right-of-way 
for Richard L. Marks Drive is 100 foot wide with landscaping and mature oak trees bordering the 
road. There is a twenty (20) foot wide landscaped median that contains mature oak trees.    

 
North: To the north of the subject property, a 1.76 acre retention pond separates the subject property from 

most of the residential homes to the north within the Parkside at Errol Phase 3 residential 
subdivision.  With the exception of one single family lot at the subject property’s northwest corner 
and one single family lot at the northeast corner.  Residential lots to the north range from 300 feet 
to zero feet from the subject property.  Lots typically are 80 to 85 feet wide with a typical lot size 
ranging from 9,200 sq. ft. to 11,050 sq. ft.   

 
East: There is a ten foot wide landscape buffer that runs along the eastern parcel line of the subject 

property that is adjacent to residential lots within another section of Parkside at Errol Phase 3.  
Single family lots adjacent to the eastern side of the subject property have typical lots with a 75 
foot minimum width and a lot size ranging from 9,200 sq. ft. to 11,000 sq. ft. 

      
Summary: The property owner requests assignment of a zoning category that is consistent with the proposed 

Residential Medium Future Land Use Designation.  Planning staff finds the zoning category to 
be consistent a Residential Low-Medium Future Land Use Designation subject to the PUD master 
site plan/preliminary development plan and the recommended PUD development standards. 

 
 
 
 
 

350



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
DUNN/DIXIE MANOR – PUD MASTER PLAN/PDP AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-3) zoning is not consistent 

with the City’s Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac) Future Land Use designation.   
However, Planning staff finds the proposed zoning to be compatible with a Low-
Medium (0-7.5 du/ac) Future Land Use designation. Development Plans shall 
not exceed the intensity or density allowed for the adopted Future Land Use 
Designation. 

 
PUD  
RECOMMENDATIONS: The PUD recommendation is to assign a zoning classification of Planned Unit 

Development (PUD) for the described subject property with the following 
Master Plan provisions is subject to the following zoning provisions: 

 
A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be:   

 
1. A maximum of one-hundred twenty-five Assisted Living Facility (ALF) 

beds or 38 permanent residential.  For any Assisted Living Facility, such 
use shall meet the State of Florida definition for an Assisted Living 
Facility, at least eight (80) percent of the beds shall be occupied by those 
age 55 of over, and the ALF  shall follow a policy that demonstrates an 
intent to provide residential care for those aged 55 or older.  A nursing 
home, group home facility, foster home, drug or alcohol detox center or 
rehabilitation center or similar emergency shelter are not permissible 
uses under this PUD zoning ordinance unless as otherwise superseded 
by Florida Statutes. 

 
2. Any building other than single family residential shall be setback a 

minimum of one hundred (100) feet from the northern and eastern 
property line, units and fifty (50) feet from the western property line. 

 
3. Outdoor storage shall not be allowed. 
 
4. No recreation or similar outdoor activities (walking path, gathering 

places etc.) shall occur within twenty (20) feet of the property line 
excepting any public sidewalk along Old Dixie Highway. 

 
5. No outdoor activities shall occur after 9:00 PM or before 7:00 AM.  

Delivery services for shall be limited to similar hours. 
 
6. Regular visitor hours shall be limited to no earlier than 7:00 AM and not 

later than 11:00 PM except for emergency purposes. 
 
7. Any use or activity allowed within the R-3 residential zoning category 

exception as otherwise noted herein.  Duplex residential units shall not 
be allowed.  

 
B.  Development Standards: 
 

1. Development standards and setbacks shall comply with those established 
for the R-3 zoning category unless otherwise approved herein or within 
the Master Site Plan. 

 
2. Maximum number of stories: two (2) 
 

351



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
DUNN/DIXIE MANOR – PUD MASTER PLAN/PDP AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 

 
3. A thirty (30) foot landscape buffer shall occur along the northern and 

eastern property lines, and a fifteen (15) foot landscape buffer along the 
western property line. 

 
4. Monument sign (identification sign) shall be limited to no more than 24 

square feet and no electronic reader board will be allowed. The 
monument sign may be placed within the front yard along Old Dixie 
Highway near the site driveway entrance.  No signage shall be allowed 
along Richard L. Mark Drive. No wall sign or other signage will be 
allowed except for on-site directional signage, unless otherwise allowed 
by the City’s sign codes for special event or grand opening. 

 
5. No outdoor illumination shall spillover into residential areas. 
 
6. All trees and landscaping within the perimeter buffers shall be  allowed 

to grow and will be maintained to a height to screen the ALF building  
from adjacent residential areas. 

 
7. Architectural design of the building shall be generally consistent with 

that approved with the PUD ordinance unless otherwise approved by the 
City Council. 

 
8. Changes to the Master Site Plan\Preliminary Development Plan or 

architectural design considered to be insignificant may be approved by 
the Community Development Director. 

 
9. Employee parking shall occur at the southwest parking area and visitor 

parking directed to the southeast parking area.  On-site direction signage 
shall be posted to direct visitor parking as such. 

 
10. Driveway access to Richard L. Mark Drive will not be allowed. 
   

C. The Master Plan Site\Preliminary Development Plan is hereby approved and 
is part of the PUD zoning ordinance. 

 
D.   The R-3 zoning standards shall apply to the development of the subject 

property unless as otherwise addressed within the PUD ordinance. 
 

COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed City PUD zoning is not consistent with the City’s Residential 

Medium (0-10 du/ac) Future Land Use designation.  However, DRC finds that 
the proposed PUD zoning is consistent with the residential Low-Medium (0-7.5 
un/ac) Future Land Use designation. Development Plans shall not exceed the 
density and intensity allowed in the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

 
 

  

352



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
DUNN/DIXIE MANOR – PUD MASTER PLAN/PDP AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 

 

Robert K. Dunn et al 

6.99 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development: .25 FAR 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: .30 FAR 
Request: Amendment to an Existing PUD Master Plan 

     Parcel ID #s:  05-21-28-0000-00-019, 05-21-28-0000-00-034, 
  05-21-28-0000-00-035, 05-21-28-0000-00-041 

 

          

VICINITY MAP 
 
           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject Property 

353



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
DUNN/DIXIE MANOR – PUD MASTER PLAN/PDP AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

  

Subject Property 

354



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
DUNN/DIXIE MANOR – PUD MASTER PLAN/PDP AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 
  

355



ORDINANCE NO. 2518 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2355, CHANGING MAXIMUM FLOOR AREA 
RATIO FROM 0.25 TO 0.30 AND AMENDING THE APPROVED MASTER 
PLAN\PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF OLD DIXIE HIGHWAY, 
EAST OF RICHARD L. MARK DRIVE, AND SOUTH OF ERROL 
PARKWAY, COMPRISING 6.99 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY 
ROBERT K. DUNN ET. AL.; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 
of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the property owner has requested to amend Ordinance No. 2355, adopted on 
April 2, 2014, to amend the maximum floor area ratio from 0.25 to .030 and to amend the Master 
Plan. 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed amendment to Ordinance No. 2355 has been found to be consistent 
with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 SECTION I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being 
situated in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), 
as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code  with the following Master Plan zoning and 
development standards provisions and, and amendments to Ordinance No. 2355 denoted with an 
underscore: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be:   
 

1.  A maximum of one-hundred twenty-five (125) Assisted Living Facility (ALF) beds or 
a maximum of fifty-one (51) permanent residential units.  For any Assisted Living 
Facility, such use shall meet the State of Florida definition for an Assisted Living 
Facility, at least eighty (80) percent of the beds shall be occupied by those age 55 of 
over, and the ALF  shall follow a policy that demonstrates an intent to provide 
residential care for those aged 55 or older.  A nursing home, group home facility, foster 
home, drug or alcohol detox center or rehabilitation center or similar emergency 
shelter are not permissible uses under this PUD zoning ordinance unless as otherwise 
superseded by Florida Statutes. 

 
2.  Any use or activity allowed within the R-3 residential zoning category exception as 

otherwise noted herein the PUD ordinance.  Duplex residential units shall not be 
allowed. 

 
3. Any building other than single family residential shall be setback a minimum of one 

hundred (100) feet from the northern and eastern property line, and at minimum of 
fifty (50) feet from the western property line. 

 
4. Outdoor storage shall not be allowed (including donation bins). 
 

356



ORDINANCE NO. 2518 

PAGE 2 

 

5. No recreation or similar outdoor activities (walking path, gathering places etc.) shall 
occur within twenty (20) feet of the property line excepting any public sidewalk along 
Old Dixie Highway. 

 
6. No outdoor activities shall occur after 9:00 PM or before 7:00 AM.  Delivery services 

for shall be limited to similar hours. 
 
7. Regular visitor hours shall be limited to no earlier than 7:00 AM and not later than 

11:00 PM except for emergency purposes. 
 
8.  Consistent with Section 2.02.02B.5.e. (3)(b), Apopka Land Development Code, no 

ALF shall be occupied by any person who has been convicted of, entered a plea of 
guilty or nolo contender to, or has been found guilty by reason of insanity of a forcible 
felony under Florida Statutes, a felony of the second degree under Florida Statutes, or 
any of the sex offenses set forth under Florida Statutes, regardless of whether an 
adjudication of guilt imposition of sentence was suspended, deferred or withheld. 

 
B.  Development Standards: 

 
1. Development standards and setbacks shall comply with those established for the R-3 

zoning category, as set forth under Section 2.02.07 of the Land Development Code, 
unless otherwise approved herein or within the Master Site Plan, or unless the City 
Council finds, based on substantial competent evidence, a proposed alternative 
development guideline is adequate to protect the public health safety and welfare, 
development within the PUD district. 

 
2. Maximum number of stories: two (2). 
 
3. A thirty (30) foot landscape buffer with a six foot high masonry wall shall occur along 

the northern and eastern property lines, and a fifteen (15) foot landscape buffer along 
the western property line.   Location of the wall and landscaping shall be setback from 
the northwest property line to accommodate sufficient line-of-sight along Richard L. 
Mark Drive and to place open space next to the abutting residential lot.   

 
4. If the site is developed as an ALF, monument sign (identification sign) shall be limited 

to no more than twenty-four (24) square feet, and no electronic reader board will be 
allowed. The monument sign may be placed within the front yard along Old Dixie 
Highway near the site driveway entrance.  No signage shall be allowed along Richard 
L. Mark Drive. No wall sign or other signage will be allowed except for on-site 
directional signage, unless otherwise allowed by the City’s sign codes for special event 
or grand opening. 

 
5. No outdoor illumination shall spillover into abutting residential areas. 
 
6. All trees and landscaping within the perimeter buffers shall be  allowed to grow and 

will be maintained to a height to screen the ALF building  from adjacent residential 
areas. 

 
7. Architectural design of the building shall be generally consistent with that approved 

with the PUD ordinance unless otherwise approved by the City Council. 
 
8. Changes to the Master Site Plan\Preliminary Development Plan or architectural design 

considered to be insignificant may be approved by the Community Development 
Director or as approved by the City through the Final Development Plan. 357



ORDINANCE NO. 2518 

PAGE 3 

 

 
9. Employee parking shall be directed to the southwest parking area and visitor parking 

directed to the southeast parking area.  On-site direction signage shall be posted to 
direct visitor parking as such. 

 
10. Driveway access to Richard L. Mark Drive shall not be allowed unless needed for 

emergency access. 
 
11.  Maximum floor area ratio is 0.30 FAR. 

   
C. The Master Site Plan\Preliminary Development Plan, Exhibit “A”, is hereby approved and 

is part of the PUD zoning ordinance.  Any requisite development standards not addressed 
within the Master Site Plan\Preliminary Development Plan shall be addressed within the 
Final Development Plan. 

 
D.   If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by 

the City within three years after the effective date of this ordinance, the approval of the 
Master Plan provisions will expire. At such time, the City Council may: 

 
1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development 

Plan; 
 
2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of 

new Master Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 
 
3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 
 Section II.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated 
in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-3) As defined in the 
Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

The East 100 Feet of the North ½ of the West ½ of the Southwest ¼, lying north of 
Old Brick Road, in Section 5, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, Orange County, 
Florida 
Parcel I.D. # 05-21-28-0000-00-019 
1.38 +/- acres 
 
The North ½ of the East ½ of the West ½ of the Southwest ¼ of Section 5, Township 
21 South, Range 28 East, lying north of Road, LESS the North 100.00 feet thereof, 
and also LESS the East 106.00 feet thereof, Orange County, Florida. 
Parcel I.D. # 05-21-28-0000-00-034 
4.23 +/- acres 
 
The West 6 feet of the East 106 feet of the Northeast ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of the 
Southwest ¼ lying north of Old Brick Road in Section 5, Township 21 South, Range 
28 East, Orange County, Florida. 
Parcel I.D. # 05-21-28-0000-00-035 
0.80 +/- acre 
 
South 21.69 feet of the North 100.00 feet of the North ½ of the East ½ of the West ½ 
of the Southwest ¼ of Section 5, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, LESS the East 
106.00 feet thereof, Orange County, Florida. 358



ORDINANCE NO. 2518 

PAGE 4 

 

Parcel I.D. # 05-21-28-0000-00-041 
1.27 +/- acres 
 
Total Combined Acreage: 6.99 +/- Acres 

 
 Section III.  That the amendment to Ordinance No. 2355 is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan of the City of Apopka, Florida. 
 
 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 
authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 
include said designation. 
 
 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 
to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 
force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed.   
 
 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption.  
 
 

                       

 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Cliff Shepard, City Attorney 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR TRANSMITTAL HEARING: August 26, 2016 
        September 23, 2016 

READ FIRST TIME:  September 21, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
October 5, 2016 

 
 
 
Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



  

368



 

  

369



 

  

370



 

  

371



 

372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2519 – First Reading – Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan – Quasi-Judicial   David 
Moon 

  

382



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: October 5, 2016 

 PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

 OTHER:   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2519 

    Ordinance No. 2519 Exhibit “B” 
  
SUBJECT:    AMENDMENT TO THE ORCHID ESTATES PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING AND MASTER PLAN\PRLIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2519 - AN AMENDMENT TO THE ORCHID 

ESTATES PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMNET ZONING AND MASTER PLAN; 
AMENDING ORDINANCE NO.  2170; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING 
AND AOPTION (PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 18-20-28-0000-00-055 & 18-20-28-0000-00-059; 
18-20-28-0000-117 PORTION) 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: JTD Land at Orchid Estates, LLC 
 
ENGINEER:   Engineering & Environmental Design, Inc., c/o Larry T. Ray P.E. 
 
LOCATION: South of Kelly Park Road, west of Jason Dwelley Parkway 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:  Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  Planned Unit Development  
 
PROPOSED AMENDMENT: Ownership of Tract “B” and “F” will change from the City of Apopka to the 

Orchid Estates Homeowners Association.  Tract “B” will change from a City 
“fire station site” to aN “Open Space\Tot Lot” that will serve the 112 lots within 
the Orchid Estates PUD.  No other changes are proposed to the Master Plan. 

 
TRACT SIZE:   Combined total Acreage: 60.82 +/- Total Acres 
     
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 112 Dwelling Units (as approved with existing PUD zoning 

ordinance; plans expired) 
    PROPOSED: 112 Dwelling Units 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

383



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 

ORCHID ESTATES – PUD AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   The applicant requests to change the future ownership of Tracts “B” and 

“F” from the City of Apopka to the Homeowners Association.  City staff notified JTD Land at Apopka, 

LLC several months ago that a fire station site within the project boundaries was not needed because an 

alternative site was identified, and that the City does not need the 17.2 acre site for open space purposes.  

JTD Land agreed to amend the PUD Master Plan to change the owner ship of two parcels from City 

ownership to HOA ownership.  Tract “B” was originally proposed to serve as a site for a new City fire 

station.  However, the City has made a decision to locate this new fire station at a more strategic location at 

a site along the east side of Jason Dwelley Parkway, across from the Northwest Regional Recreation Facility.  

The City of Apopka owns this preferred site.  Orchid Estates is currently under construction, and model 

homes are proposed to begin construction within a few months.  Approval of the amendment to the PUD 

Master Plan will allow administrative amendment of the Final Development Plan to address the same 

change in ownership of Tract “B” and Tract “F”. 

 

The City’s Development Review Committee supports the change in the ownership of Tract “B” and Tract 

“F” to the homeowners association.  Dedication of Tract “F” will require the City to pay for the cost to 

maintain 17.2 acres of open space that is internal to a residential community.   A different site along Jason 

Dwelley Parkway has been selected for a future fire station.  Tract “B” will not be needed for this purpose. 
 
PUD DESCRIPTION:  A single family residential community with a total of 112 lots.  The minimum lot 
size is 70’ x 115’ (8,050 sq. ft.) with a minimum living area of 1,500 square feet as allow by the Land 
Development Code.  
 
 Minimum Site Area:  7,500 sq. ft. 
 Minimum Lot Width:  70’ 
 Setbacks: Front:  25’ 
   Side:  10’ 
   Rear:  20’ 
   Corner: 20’ 
 Minimum Living Area: 1,500 sq. ft. 
 
ALLOWABLE USES:  Single Family Residential homes and their associated uses. 
 
ACCESS:  The subdivision has two access points off of Jason Dwelley Parkway.  The property owner has 
control over the lands adjacent to the north.  An ingress/egress easement in favor of the applicant for legal 
access to the project runs along the southern property line of the Ever Meadow LLC parcel to reach the  
 
STORMWATER:  The stormwater management system includes two on-site retention areas.  The 
stormwater design meets the City’s Land Development Code requirements. 
 
BUFFER/PARK:  The applicant is proposing landscaped buffer areas adjacent to the agricultural uses 
located to the north and south of the property.  This residential community will include a 17.17 acre 
woodland park and a two-acre tot lot. 
 
TREE PROGRAM:   The applicant has proposed reserved 17.17 acres of land for open space within Tract 

“F” in lieu of going through the tree mitigation process.  This will preserve the mostly wooded area on the 

site as a City Park. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed amendment to the Orchid Estates PUD 
zoning and Master Plan are consistent with the City’s proposed Future Land Use designation.  Site 
development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 
 

384



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 

ORCHID ESTATES – PUD AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  This PUD Master Plan is located on a site with a previously approved 
Final Development Plan.  This final development plan is exempt from school concurrency because it was 
approved by the City prior to the effective date of school concurrency.  School impact fees will be paid with 
each building permit application for a single family home. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on August 12, 2016. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 13, 2016 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
October 5, 2016 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 
October 19, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 26, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 
October 7, 2016 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of Amendment to the Orchid Estates Planned 
Unit Development and the Master Plan. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting held September 13, 2016, found the Amendment to the Orchid 
Estates Planned Unit Development Zoning and the Master Plan to be consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and Land Development Code, and recommend to approve. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2519 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 
October 19, 2016. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. Role of the Planning Commission in this 
case is advisory to the City Council. 

  

385



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 

ORCHID ESTATES – PUD AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural (1 du/10 ac) A-1 Vacant 

East (City) Res. Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) PUD Vacant 

South (City) Res. Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) PUD SFR (4) 

West (City) Res. Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) PUD Oak Ridge Subdivision 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY:  A transportation study was prepared with the adopted Orchid Estates 

PUD, and the number of residential units has not increased.  No 
additional transportation study is needed.  The amendment to the PUD 
zoning and Master Plan does not changes the subdivision design and 
stormwater management plan, but no increase in residential units or 
density is proposed.   

 
BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS:   No changes to the buffers are proposed with the PUD amendment.     
  
ALLOWABLE USES:    Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures 

and uses in accordance with article VII of this code. Supporting 
infrastructure and public facilities of less than five acres as defined 
in this code and in accordance with Section 2.02.01 of the LDC. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
386



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 

ORCHID ESTATES – PUD AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

 
JTD Land at Orchid Estates, c/o Larry Fant 

60.82 +/- Total Acres 
Existing Zoning Maximum Allowable Development: 112 Dwelling Units 

Proposed Zoning Maximum Allowable Development: up to 112 Dwelling Units 
Proposed Zoning Change: Amendment to the PUD and Master Plan\Final Development Plan  

To: “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/Residential) 
Parcel ID #s: 18-20-28-0000-00-055 & 18-20-28-0000-00-059 

 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 
 

SUBJECT  

PROPERTIES 

387



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 

ORCHID ESTATES – PUD AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

388



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 

ORCHID ESTATES – PUD AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

EXHIBIT “D” 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 
 

389



ORDINANCE NO. 2519 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2170, CHANGING THE ASSIGNMENT OF 
OWNERSHIP FOR TRACT “B” AND “F” AND AMENDING THE 
APPROVED ORCHID ESTATES MASTER PLAN\PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF JASON DWELLEY PARKWAY AND 
NORTH OF APPLY LANE, AND OWNED BY JTD LAND AT ORCHID 
ESTATES, LLC., PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 
of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the property owner has requested to amend Ordinance No. 2170 and its 
associated Master Plan to change the assignment of ownership for Tract “B” and “Tract F” from 
the City of Apopka to the designated Homeowners Association. 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed amendment to Ordinance No. 2170 has been found to be 
consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 SECTION I.  That the Orchid Estates Planned Unit Development Master Plan\Preliminary 
Development Plan, which property is described in Exhibit “A”, is amended to change assignment 
of ownership of Tract “B” from the City of Apopka to the Orchid Estates Homeowners 
Association, and the land use of Tract “B” changed from “Fire Station” to “Open Space\Tot Lot 
Park”, as denoted in Exhibit “A”; and that the assignment of ownership of Tract “F” is changed 
from the City of Apopka to the Orchid Estates Homeowners Association and its use changed from 
“Open Space” to “Open Space\Recreation Area”, as provided in Exhibit “B”.  
  
 SECTION II.  Except for the amendments described in Section I, all other zoning and 
development standards set forth in Ordinance 2170 and its associated Master Plan\Preliminary 
Development Plan remain in effect and applicable to the property described in Exhibit “A”. 
 
 Section III.  That this amendment to Ordinance No. 2170 is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan of the City of Apopka, Florida. 
 
 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 
hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, to include said designation. 
 
 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 
to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 
force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed.   

390



ORDINANCE NO. 2519 

PAGE 2 

 

 
 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption.  
 
 

                       

 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Cliff Shepard, City Attorney 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR TRANSMITTAL HEARING:  August 26, 2016  
         October 7, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

READ FIRST TIME:  October 5, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
October 19, 2016 

 
 
 
Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

391



ORDINANCE NO. 2519 

PAGE 3 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 

(Information purposes: Parcel Nos.: 18-20-28-0000-00-055, 18-20-28-0000-00-059, and portion of 18-20-28-0000-00-117.) 

392



393



394



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Ordinance No. 2520 – First Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Legislative   Kyle 
Wilkes 

  

395



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: October 5, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Use Map 

    Existing Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2520 
  

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2520 – SMALL SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT – EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC 

   

REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2520 – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE 

LAND USE AMENDMENT – EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC, FROM 

“COUNTY” RURAL (1 DU/ 10 AC)) TO “CITY” MIXED USE; (PARCEL I.D. 

NO. 19-21-28-0000-00-011); AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING AND 

ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Equity Waters Edge, LLC – David Shapiro 
 
LOCATION:  1850 S. Binion Road 
 
EXISTING USE:   Vacant Land 
 
CURRENT ZONING:   “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED  
ZONING DESIGNATION: “City” Mixed-EC (Mixed Use) (Note: this Future Land Use Map 

amendment request is being processed along with a request to change 
the Zoning Map designation from “County”A-1 to “City” Mixed-EC 
[Mixed Use]) 

 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: City has received a Preliminary Development Plan for a single family 

residential development. 
 
TRACT SIZE:    5.6 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:   EXISTING: 1 dwelling units 
     PROPOSED: Residential Development 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

396



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 

 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” Future 

Land Use Designation or a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a future 

land use designation of Mixed Use to the property.  

 

The subject property has been annexed into the City of Apopka. The annexation occurred on June 5, 2013, 

through the adoption of Ordinance No. 2303.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is 

being requested by the owner/applicant.  Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres 

are eligible to be processed as a small-scale amendment.  Such process does not require review by State 

planning agencies. 

 

A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Mixed Use is compatible with the designations 

assigned to abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 5.6 acres.   

 

The parcel owner – Equity Waters Edge, LLC – also owns abutting parcels to the south, combining these 

for a future development site of approximately 75 acres.   A Preliminary Development Plan is under 

review by the City’s Development Review Committee for a single family residential community 

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is 

consistent with the Mixed Use Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed Mixed Use Zoning. 

Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies.   

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  No more than nine residential homes will be constructed on the 5.6 

acre site.  Pursuant to the School Planning Agreement, nine or less residential units is considered a 

deminimus impact on schools.  Therefore, this 5.6 acre site is exempt from School Capacity Enhancement 

review.  However, school concurrency review will occur at the time of a preliminary or final development 

plan. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on August 12, 2016. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

September 13, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

October 5, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

October 19, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

August 26, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

October 7, 2016 – ¼ Page w/Map Ordinance Heading Ad  

397



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

  

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends approval of the change 

in Future Land Use from “County” Rural (1 du/ 10 ac) to “City” Mixed Use for the property owned by 

Equity Waters Edge, LLC and located at 1850 S. Binion Road. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on September 13, 2016, found that the proposed Small Scale 

Future Land Use Amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and 

recommended adoption of the Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment from “County” Rural (1 du/ 10 

ac) to “City” Mixed Use for the property owned by Equity Waters Edge, LLC and located at 1850 S. 

Binion Road. 

 

Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2520 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 

October 19, 2016. 

 

Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

398



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

 
I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Mixed Use  Mixed-EC Green House 

East (City) Mixed Use  A-1(ZIP) Vacant \Binion Road 

South (City) Mixed Use  Mixed-EC Vacant 

West (County) Rural/Agricultural (1 du/ 10 ac) A-2 SJRWMD\conservation 

 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 

The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is compatible with the 
development of mixed uses.  The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (S. Binion 
Rd.) and has access to Harmon Rd. 
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement 
on October 26, 2004.  The subject property is not located within “Core Area” of the JPA.   
 
 Redevelopment:   Policy 3.13. No non-conforming structure shall be substantially expanded. 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin 
Study Area, the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is 
consistent with the adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) 
amendment has been reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater 
resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater 
run-off through the following policies: 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection shows that there are no karst features on this property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The property fronts S. Binion Rd.  The vegetative 
communities present are urban; the soils present are Candler fine sand, Canova sand, and Tavares sand; 
and no wetlands occur on the site, and the terrain has a 0-12 percent slope. 
 
 The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.r. 
Mixed-Use Future Land Use designation. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future 
land use designation for the Property is Mixed Use.  Based on the housing element of the City's 
Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population.   
 
 

399



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 

 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED (County designation): 1 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 2.659 persons 
PROPOSED (City designation): 15 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 223 persons 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment may negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This 
site is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will be required at the time of a development plan application.   
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 
3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Potable Water, Reclaimed Water & Sanitary Sewer Analysis: The subject property is located within the 
City of Apopka Utilities service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.    

 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;   81 GPD/Capita; 
 81 GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka                  
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  196  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  53,054  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 
 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 177 GPD/Capita; 
 177 GPD/Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka   
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  210  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  66,427  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes           

 
 

 

400



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 

 
 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None  
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  12  lbs./person/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  1380  lbs./day/1000 sf 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 

Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21.981 GPD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696 GPD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property:  Yes 
 
 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 25 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 25 hour design storm  
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  
 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 
 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.009  AC 
 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.669  AC 
 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment: None 

 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 
approval. 

401



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 

 
 

 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC   

1850 S. Binion Rd. 
5.6 +/- acres  

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling unit/ac 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 15 dwelling unit/ac 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Rural/Agricultural (1 du/10 ac) 

To: “City” Mixed Use  
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: “County”A-1 
To: “City” Mixed-EC 

Parcel ID #: 19-21-28-0000-00-011 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

Subject 

Property 

402



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 

 

 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 
 

 

 

403



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

404



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

405



ORDINANCE NO. 2520 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” RURAL (1 DU/ 
10 AC) TO “CITY” MIXED USE, FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 1850 S. BINION RD., COMPRISING 5.6 ACRES MORE OR 
LESS, AND OWNED BY EQUITY WATERS EDGE LLC; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka Comprehensive 
Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes 
and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2500 on July 20, 2016; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the authority 
set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 
  
 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2500, is amended in its entirety 
to change the land use from “County” Rural (1 du/10 ac) to “City” Mixed Use (N/A DU/AC), for 
certain real property located at 1850 S. Binion Rd., comprising 5.6 acres more or less, (Parcel No. 
19-21-28-0000-00-011); as further described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 
 
 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as provided 
by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, 
Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability. 
 
 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
 
 
 

406



 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2520 
PAGE 2 
 
 
 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 
Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI. Effective Date. 
 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 
        day of                , 2016. 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
October 5, 2016 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:  

 
 
October 19, 2016 

 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: August 26, 2016 

      October 7, 2016 

 

407



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC   

1850 S. Binion Rd. 
5.6 +/- acres  

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling unit 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development:  15 dwelling units 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Rural/Agricultural (1 du/10 ac) 

To: “City” Mixed Use  
Parcel ID #: 19-21-28-0000-00-011 

 

408



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. Ordinance No. 2521 – First Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial     
 Kyle Wilkes  

  

409



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: October 5, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Use Map 

    Existing Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2521 
  

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2521 – CHANGE OF ZONING – EQUITY WATERS 

EDGE, LLC 

   

REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2521 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 

EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC, FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (RURAL) TO 

“CITY” MIXED EC (MIXED USE); (PARCEL I.D. NO. 19-21-28-0000-00-

011); AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING AND ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Equity Waters Edge, LLC – David Shapiro 
 
LOCATION: 1850 S. Binion Road 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant Land 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED  
FLUM DESIGNATION: Mixed Use (NOTE: This change of zoning application is being processed in 

conjunction with a small scale FLUM amendment requesting Mixed Use.)  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  City has received a Preliminary Development Plan for a single family 

residential development. 
 
TRACT SIZE:   5.6 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 1 dwelling units 

PROPOSED: single family residential development consistent with the 
Mixed-EC zoning district 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

410



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” Future 
Land Use Designation or a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a future 
land use designation of Mixed Use to the property.  
 
Applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of Mixed-EC (Mixed Use) to the 

property, consistent with the proposed Mixed Use future land use designation. The parcel owner – Equity 

Waters Edge, LLC – also owns abutting parcels to the south, combining these for a future development 

site of approximately 75 acres.   A Preliminary Development Plan is under review by the City’s 

Development Review Committee for a single family residential community 
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to Mixed-EC (Mixed Use) is compatible to the adjacent zoning 
classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  The property 
owner is requesting the Mixed-EC (Mixed Use) zoning classification to accommodate the use of the 
property to have the potential to be single family residential. The subject property abuts nurseries along S. 
Binion Rd. that have a zoning of Mixed-EC.  City staff supports this change of zoning request due to the 
Ocoee Apopka Road Small Area Study. This change of zoning application is being processed in 
conjunction with a small scale future land use amendment for Mixed Use.  The proposed use is consistent 
with the proposed future land use, proposed zoning district and compatible with the general character of 
surrounding zoning and uses.      
  
The change of zoning application covers approximately 5.6 acres.  
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is 

consistent with the Mixed Use Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed Mixed Use Zoning. 

Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies.   

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  No more than nine residential homes will be constructed on the 5.6 

acre site.  Pursuant to the School Planning Agreement, nine or less residential units is considered a 

deminimus impact on schools.  Therefore, this 5.6 acre site is exempt from School Capacity Enhancement 

review.  However, school concurrency review will occur at the time of a preliminary or final development 

plan. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on August 12, 2016. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

September 13, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

October 5, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

October 19, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

August 26, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

October 7, 2016 – ¼ Page w/Map Ordinance Heading Ad  

411



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends approval of the change 

in zoning from County A-1(Agriculture) to Mixed-EC (Mixed Use)  for the property owned by Equity 

Waters Edge, LLC. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on September 13, 2016, found that the proposed Change of 

Zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and recommended 

adoption of the Change of Zoning from “County” A-1(Agriculture) to “City” Mixed-EC (Mixed Use) for 

the property owned by Equity Waters Edge, LLC and located at 1850 S. Binion Road. 

 

Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2520 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 

October 19, 2016. 

 

Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

412



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 
ZONING REPORT 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Mixed Use  Mixed-EC Green House 

East (City) Mixed Use  A-1(ZIP) Vacant  

South (City) Mixed Use  Mixed-EC Vacant 

West (County) Rural/Agricultural (1 du/ 10 ac) A-2 SJRWMD property\conservation 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC 

COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (S. 

Binion Rd.) and has access to Harmon Rd.  

 

COMPREHENSIVE  

PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed Mixed-EC (Mixed Use) zoning is consistent with the 

City’s Mixed Use (15 DU/AC) Future Land Use designation and with 

the character of the surrounding area. The Mixed-EC (Mixed Use) 

zoning classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories 

allowed within the proposed Mixed Use Future Land Use 

Designation.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density 

allowed in the adopted Future Land Use Designation.   
MIXED USE-EC DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Floor Area Ratio (%): 25 min. 100 max. 

Minimum Site Area: N/A 

Minimum Lot Width Varies; based on master plan 

Setbacks: Front: 15 ft. (From property line) 

 Rear: 10 ft.  

 Side: 0 ft. 

 Corner 10 ft.  

 
Based on the above zoning standards, the subject parcels do meet 
code requirements for the Mixed-EC (Mixed Use) district. 
 

BUFFERYARD   

REQUIREMENTS: 

 Buffer yards shall be consistent with the zoning district for the 

proposed use, unless otherwise noted herein. For example, single-

family developments shall follow the buffer requirements of the 

single-family zoning districts, commercial uses shall follow the 

buffering of the applicable commercial zoning district, etc. Buffers 

may be waived or varied in mixed-use buildings and projects when 

compatible uses and appropriate building/parking relationships are 

demonstrated and strong pedestrian connectivity and well-planned 

vehicular connectivity are provided. 

 

413



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 

ALLOWABLE  

USES: Single-Family detached residential development; duplex; multi-

family residential; commercial, office, industrial, and institutional 

uses subject to the intensities,  development standards, and land use 

mix criteria set forth of the Mixed-EC zoning district. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

414



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC   

Property Owner 
5.6 +/- acres  

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Rural/Agricultural (1 du/10 ac) 

To: “City” Mixed Use  
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County”A-1 
To: “City” Mixed-EC  

Parcel ID #s:   19-21-28-0000-00-011 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 
 

Subject 

Property 

415



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 
 

 

 

416



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

417



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

418



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2521 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 TO “CITY” MIXED-EC FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED AT 1850 S. BINION RD., COMPRISING 5.6 

ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY EQUITY WATERS EDGE LLC; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 
public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified in 
Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed Mixed-EC (Employment Center) (up to 15 du/ac) zoning has been found 
to be consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development 
Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, as 
follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in the 
City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Mixed-EC (Employment Center) (up to 15 du/ac), as defined in the 
Apopka Land Development Code.  
 
 Legal Description: South 147.85 feet of north 563.64 feet of northwest 1/4 of northeast 1/4 west of 
road and south 147.85 feet of north 563.64 feet gov lot 1 (AKA the south 147.85 feet of north 563.64 feet 
of east 1187.22feet of northeast 1/4 of northwest/4) of Section 19-21-28. 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Parcel I.D.: 19-21-28-0000-00-011 

Contains: 5.6 +/- Acres 

  

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City of 

Apopka, Florida. 

 

419



ORDINANCE NO. 2521 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

include said designation.   

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to be 

invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or effect 

of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the effective date of adoption of Ordinance 

No. 2520. 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: August 26, 2016 

    October 7, 2016  

READ FIRST TIME:  October 5, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
October 19, 2016 

420



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

7. Ordinance No. 2522 – First Reading – Vacate – Right-of-Way - Quasi-Judicial     
 Rogers Beckett 

  

421



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: October 5 , 2016 

X  PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Map 

X  OTHER: Vacate   Utility Letters 

    Ordinance No. 2522 

    Survey/Legal Description 
  
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 2522   - COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS, INC. - 

VACATING A PORTION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 

REQUEST:  ACCEPT THE FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO.  2522 – 

COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS, INC. - VACATING AN 

ALLEYWAY; AND HOLD IT OVER FOR SECOND READING AND 

ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
APPLICANT:              Community Health Centers, Inc. 
 
LOCATION:              South of East 6th St., west of South Highland Ave and north of East 7th St. 
 
LAND USE:              Right of Way 
 
ZONING:   Right of Way 
 
EXISTING USE:  Unimproved Alleyway 
 
AREA TO  
BE VACATED:     0.203 +/- Acre (8,850 +/- Sq. Ft.) 
      
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Land Use Zoning Present Use 
North - City Office PO/I - R-3 Church/ SFR (3) 
East - City Right of Way ROW Right of Way 

South - City Office PO/I – R-3 Office Building/ SFR (3) 
West - City Office PO/I West Orange Trail 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

 422



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 

COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS, INC. - VACATE 

PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The applicant is seeking to vacate a 15’ X 590’ section of unimproved 

alleyway located south of East 6th Street, west of South Highland Avenue and north of East 7th Street.  The 

portion of the right-of-way that will be vacated is described in the legal description.  The vacation of this 

section of alleyway is being requested to accommodate redevelopment of site.  Vacating this section of the 

alleyway will not affect any abutting property owners. 

 

Our Public Services department, including DRC, has evaluated the site and has agreed to the vacate request. 

Additionally, all local utility providers have been contacted by the applicant and have provided the letters 

received from each utility provider indicating no objection to this vacate request. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

October 5, 2016 - City Council - 1st Reading (1:30 p.m.) 

October 19, 2016 - City Council - 2nd Reading (7:00 p.m.) 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

September 16, 2016 - Public Hearing Notice 

October 7, 2016 - Ordinance Heading Ad 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the request to vacate a section of alleyway 
as described in the legal description. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2522 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 
October 19, 2016. 
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 423



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 

COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS, INC. - VACATE 

PAGE 3 

 

Community Health Centers, Inc. 
Proposed Vacate of Alleyway 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

                                        

 
  Vacate Area 
   
    

424



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 

COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS, INC. - VACATE 

PAGE 4 

        

                       425



426



427



428



429



430



ORDINANCE NO. 2522 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO VACATE A 
PORTION OF RIGHT OF WAY(ALLEYWAY); LOCATED SOUTH OF 
EAST 6TH  STREET AND WEST OF SOUTH HIGHLAND AVENUE; IN 
SECTION 09, TOWNSHIP 21, RANGE 28 OF ORANGE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, FOR 
SEVERABILITY, FOR CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to provisions of Florida Statutes, Section 336.10, a Petition has been 
filed by Community Health Centers, Inc., to vacate, abandon, discontinue, renounce and disclaim 
a section of alleyway, as shown in Exhibit “A”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Century Link (f/k/a Embarq), Bright House Network (f/k/a Time Warner 
Cable), Duke Energy (f/k/a Progress Energy), and Lake Apopka Natural Gas District have no 
objection to the abandonment of a portion of the existing utility easement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that under the proposed circumstances there 
exists no public need for this existing easement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice in accordance with Florida Statute 336.10, the City 
Council has determined that it is not contrary to public interest to vacate and abandon said existing 
easement. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the following lands, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit “A,” 
shall be officially closed, discontinued, and vacated: 
 
 LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 

That 15.00’ alleyway adjoining the North lot lines of lots 110 through and including 

121 and adjoining the South lot lines of Lots 98 through and including 109 Block 

“F” Champney’s portion of Apopka, according to the plat thereof as recorded in 

Plat Book A, at Page 87 and 109, of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida; 

more fully described as follows:  

 

Begin at the Northwest corner of said lot 110, thence run North 90 degrees 00 

minutes 00 seconds east, along said North line of lots 110 thru lot 121, 590.50 feet 

to the Northeast corner of Lot 121, said point also being on the Westerly right of 

way line for S. Highland Avenue; Thence run North 03 degrees 26 minutes 01 

seconds west, along said westerly right of way line 15.03 feet to the Southeast 

corner of said lot 98; thence run north 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West, 

along the South line of said lots 98 thru lot 109, 589.60 feet to the Southwest corner 

of said lot 109, said point also being on the Easterly right of way line to the West 

Orange Trail; thence run south 00 degrees 00 minutes and 00 seconds East along 

said Easterly right of way, 15.00 feet to the Point of Beginning.   

 

CONTAINING: 8,850 SQUARE FEET, (0.203 ACRE) MORE OR LESS 
 

 
431



ORDINANCE NO.  2522 

PAGE 2 

 
 Section II.  NOTICE.  That notice of the adoption of this Ordinance be published and the 
Ordinance be filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Orange County, Florida, and duly 
recorded among the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 
 

            Section III. SEVERABILITY. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of 

this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate 

or impair the validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or 

part of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section IV.  CONFLICT. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 
are hereby repealed. 
 
 Section V.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of 
adoption. 
 
      READ FIRST TIME:  October 5, 2016 
 
      READ SECOND TIME 
      AND ADOPTED:  October 19, 2016 
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Cliff Shepard, Esq., City Attorney 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  September 16, 2016 
        October 7, 2016 
         
 

 

 

G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Vacate\Community Health Centers 2016– Ordinance-2522  

 

432



ORDINANCE NO: 2522 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

433



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

8. Ordinance No. 2523 – First Reading – Vacate – Right-of-Way - Quasi-Judicial      
 Rogers Beckett 

  

434



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: October 5 , 2016 

X  PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Map 

X  OTHER: Vacate   Utility Letters 

    Ordinance No. 2523 

    Survey/Legal Description 
  
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO.  2523  - GK MAUDEHELEN, LLLP AND 

MAUDEHELEN HOMEOWNER’S ASSOCIATION, INC. - VACATING A 
PORTION OF JOHNS ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 

REQUEST:  ACCEPT THE FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2523 - GK 

MAUDEHELEN, LLLP AND MAUDEHELEN HOMEOWNER’S 

ASSOCIATION, INC. - VACATING A PORTION OF JOHNS ROAD 

RIGHT-OF-WAY; AND HOLD IT OVER FOR SECOND READING AND 

ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
APPLICANT:              GK Maudehelen, LLLP and Maudehelen Homeowner’s Association, Inc. 
 
LOCATION:              Johns Road 
 
LAND USE:              Right of Way 
 
ZONING:   Right of Way 
 
EXISTING USE:  Unimproved Right of Way 
 
AREA TO  
BE VACATED:     1.22 +/- Acres (53,129 +/- Sq. Ft.) 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Land Use Zoning Present Use 
North - City Residential Low R-2 Residential Subdivision 
East - City Residential Low       R-2 Residential Subdivision 

South - County Rural A-1 SFR (2) 
South - City Residential Low R-2 Vacant Land 
West - City Right of Way (Binion Road) ROW Vacant Land 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 435



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 

GK MAUDEHELEN, LLLP AND MAUDEHELEN H.O.A. INC. - VACATE 

PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The applicant is seeking to vacate a 60’ x 988’ portion of unimproved 

Johns Road right-of-way located east of Binion Road and south of Beardsley Drive.  The portion of the 

right-of-way that will be vacated is described in the legal description.  The vacation of this portion of the 

right of way is being requested to accommodate a proposed residential development.  Vacating this portion 

of the road right-of-way will not affect any abutting property owners. 

 

Our Public Services department has evaluated the site and has agreed to the vacate request. Additionally, 

all local utility providers have been contacted by the applicant and have provided the letters received from 

each utility provider indicating no objection to this vacate request. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

October 5, 2016 - City Council - 1st Reading (1:30 p.m.) 

October 19, 2016 - City Council - 2nd Reading (7:00 p.m.) 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

September 16, 2016 - Public Hearing Notice 

October 7, 2016 - Ordinance Heading Ad 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the request to vacate a portion of Johns 
Road right-of-way as described in the legal description. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2523 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 
October 19, 2016. 
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
  

436



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 

GK MAUDEHELEN, LLLP AND MAUDEHELEN H.O.A. INC. - VACATE 

PAGE 3 

 
 

GK Maudehelen, LLLP and Maudehelen Homeowner’s Association, Inc. 
Proposed Vacate of Johns Road Right-Of-Way 

 

JOHNS ROAD 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
                                                                                                                                                                           

 
  Vacate Area 
   
    

437



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 5, 2016 

GK MAUDEHELEN, LLLP AND MAUDEHELEN H.O.A. INC. - VACATE 

PAGE 4 

  

438



439



440



441



442



443



ORDINANCE NO. 2523 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO VACATE A 
PORTION OF JOHNS ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY; LOCATED EAST OF 
BINION ROAD AND SOUTH OF BEARDSLEY DRIVE; IN SECTION 07, 
TOWNSHIP 21, RANGE 28 OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; 
PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, FOR 
SEVERABILITY, FOR CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to provisions of Florida Statutes, Section 336.10, a Petition has been 
filed by GK Maudehelen, LLLP and Maudehelen Homeowner’s Association Inc., to vacate, 
abandon, discontinue, renounce and disclaim a portion of Johns Road, as shown in Exhibit “A”; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Century Link (f/k/a Embarq), Bright House Network (f/k/a Time Warner 
Cable), Duke Energy (f/k/a Progress Energy), and Lake Apopka Natural Gas District have no 
objection to the abandonment of a portion of the existing utility easement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that under the proposed circumstances there 
exists no public need for this existing easement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice in accordance with Florida Statute 336.10, the City 
Council has determined that it is not contrary to public interest to vacate and abandon said existing 
easement. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the following lands, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit “A,” 
shall be officially closed, discontinued, and vacated: 
 
 LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 

A portion of Johns Road, as recorded in Deed Book 971, pages 41 and 42 of the 
Public Records of Orange County, Florida, situated in Section 7, Township 21 
South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida, being more particulary described 
as follows: Beginning at a point of intersection of the Southerly right of way line 
of Johns Road, as recorded in Deed Book 971, Page 42 of the Public Records of 
Orange County, Florida, with the East line of the Southwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ 
of Section 7, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, Orange County Florida; thence 
run North 89°18’03” West, along said Southerly right of way line of Johns Road, 
for a distance of 758.88 feet to the Easterly line of the West 560.00 feet of the said 
Southwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of the Section 7; thence departing said Southerly 
right of way line, run North 00°07’00” East, along said Easterly line, for a distance 
of 30.00 feet to a point on the North line of the aforesaid Southwest ¼ of the 
Southeast ¼ of Section 7; thence departing said East line, run North 89°18’03” 
West, along said North line, for a distance of 275.61 feet to a point on the 
Southeasterly right of way line of Binion Road, as recorded in State Road Book, 1, 
Page 40 of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida, said point also being a 
point on a curve, concave Southeasterly, having a radius of 532.96 feet, a chord 
bearing of North 57°35’33” East and a chord distance of 54.92 feet; thence 
departing said North line, run Northeasterly along the arc of said curve through a 
central angle of 5°54’26” for an arc distance of 54.94 feet to a point on the Northerly 
right of way line of said Johns Road, as recorded in Deed Book 971, Page 41 of the 

444



ORDINANCE NO.  2523 

PAGE 2 

 
aforesaid Public Records of Orange County, Florida; thencedeparting said 
Southeasterly right of way line of Binion Road, run South 89°18’03” East, along 
said Northerly right of way line, for a distance of 988.04 feet to a point on the East 
line of the Northwest ¼ of Southeast ¼ of said Section 7; thence departing said 
Northerly right of way line, run South 00°00’39” East, along the East line of the 
Northwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼, and the East line of the Southwest ¼ of the 
Southeast ¼ of Section 7, for a distance of 60.00 feet to the Point of Beginning.  
 
Containing: 53,128 square feet, or 1.22 acres, more or less.  

 
 Section II.  NOTICE.  That notice of the adoption of this Ordinance be published and the 
Ordinance be filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Orange County, Florida, and duly 
recorded among the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 
 
            Section III. SEVERABILITY. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of 
this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate 
or impair the validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or 
part of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section IV.  CONFLICT. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 
are hereby repealed. 
 
 Section V.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of 
adoption. 
 
      READ FIRST TIME:  October 5, 2016 
 
      READ SECOND TIME 
      AND ADOPTED:  October 19, 2016 
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Cliff Shepard, Esq., City Attorney 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  September 16, 2016 
        October 7, 2016 
     
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Vacate\GK Maudehelen, LLLP 2016– Ordinance-2523  

445



ORDINANCE NO.  2523 

PAGE 2 

 
ORDINANCE NO: 2523 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

446



ORDINANCE NO.  2523 

PAGE 2 

 
 

 

 

 

 

447



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

9. Resolution 2016-31 – Amend Capital Improvement Plan on improvements to the Apopka Athletic Complex. David Burgoon 
  

448



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: October 5, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER 
  

 

SUBJECT: FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (FDEP) 

FLORIDA RECREATION DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (FRDAP) 
  

REQUEST: ADOPT RESOLUTION TO AMEND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) 

REFLECTING IMPROVEMENTS TO APOPKA ATHLETIC COMPLEX (AAC). 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The FRDAP is a competitive grant program, providing funds for the acquisition or development of land for 

outdoor public recreation.  The administering agency is the FDEP; the funding is available to municipalities, 

counties and other entities with the legal responsibility of providing public outdoor recreation.  Applications 

are submitted to FDEP no later than October 28, 2016 for evaluation, and assigned a score.  Based on those 

scores, a priority list is prepared and submitted to the Florida Legislature for funding consideration.   

 

Amendments to the CIP will include $25,500 in renovations and $24,500 in new construction for the 

Apopka Athletic Complex (AAC). 

Renovations: 

 Rest Rooms      $7,000 

 Playground – Additional Surface Materials   $2,000 

 Baseball – Dugouts     $12,000 

 Support Facilities – Replace Drinking Fountain $2,500 

 Picnic Facilities – Tables    $2,000 

New Construction: 

 Playground – Additional Equipment   $20,000 

 Support Facilities – Bike Rack   $2,500 

 Picnic Facilities     $2,000 

The City is requesting $50,000 in no-match grant funding, for renovations and new construction of facilities 

at the AAC. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 

N/A     
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

City Council approve the proposed Resolution 2016-31. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

Resolution 2016-31 

449



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-31 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF AN 

APPLICATION FOR THE FLORIDA RECREATION 

DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (FRDAP) TO THE 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

FOR FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Apopka desires to submit an application to the Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection for a Florida Recreation Development Assistance Program Grant to 

benefit the local residents.   

 

WHEREAS, there is a present and growing need for outdoor recreation opportunities among 

persons of all ages within the City of Apopka, Florida corporate limits and among those visiting 

the area; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City recognizes this need for additional recreational opportunities; and  

 

WHEREAS, meeting the increasing demand for recreation opportunities can best be met with the 

improvements to the Apopka Athletic Complex (AAC) as detailed in the application for funding in 

which the City is submitting an application in the October 28, 2016 application cycle requesting 

$50,000.00 in grant funds. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Apopka as follows: 

 

1. That the City of Apopka hereby authorizes the filing of an application for a Florida 

Recreation Development Assistance Program Grant; and 

 

2. That the Mayor of the City of Apopka is hereby authorized to execute all documents 

required in connection with the filing of said application to be submitted on October 

28, 2016. 

 

3. That as part of the application for the Florida Recreational Development Assistance 

Program grant, the Capital Improvements Element of the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida will be amended to include the improvements to the Apopka 

Athletic Complex in the City of Apopka, if the project is funded in the 2017 – 2018 

application cycle. 

 

Approved by the City Council, of the City of Apopka, Florida, on this 5th day of October, 2016. 

 

 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, CMC, City Clerk 

 

450



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Letter from the Family of Mayor John H. Land regarding the proposed statue for City Hall.  
  

451



452



453



454



455



456


	Top
	1. 10-05-16 - CC - Approval of Minutes 7/26/16 Budget Workshop
	07-26-16 Budget WS Draft.pdf

	2. 10-05-16 - CC - Approval of Minutes 8/16/16 Budget Workshop
	08-16-16 Budget WS Draft.pdf

	3. 10-05-16 - CC - Approval of Minutes 8/23/16 Special Meeting
	08-23-16 Sp Mtg.pdf

	4. 10-05-16 - CC - Approval of Minutes 9/21/16
	09-21-16 Draft.pdf

	1. 10-05-16 - CC - Presentations - AHS Check 
	2. 10-05-16 - CC - Presentations - APD Promotions to Lieutenant
	3. 10-05-16 - CC - Presentations - APD Promotions to Sergeant
	1. 10-05-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Disbursement Report August 2016
	August 2016_Redacted.pdf

	2. 10-05-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Motorolla Contract 
	PD - Motorolla.pdf
	PD - Motorolla Svc. Agreement.pdf

	3. 10-05-16 - CC - Consent Agenda PS Inmate
	Inmate 3 S1084 new.pdf
	Inmate Contract WS1084.pdf

	4. 10-05-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Lobbysit RFP Award
	Glenn - Lobbyist RFP Award.pdf
	Glenn - Lobyist RFP Award - Evalution Summary.pdf
	Glenn - Lobbyist RFO Award - Gray Robinson Submittal.pdf

	5. 10-05-16 - CC - Consent Agenda-Authorize Mayor or Designee to Execute Service Agreement with Shepherd + Wolfe
	Agenda - 2016-10-05 CC Authorize Mayor or Designee to execute Service Agreement with Shepherd and Wolfe.pdf
	Agenda - 2016-10-05 CC AttachmentService Agreement S+W City of Apopka 9 26 16.pdf

	6. 10-05-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Event Service Agreement with Roar Music, LLC. 
	David - Service Agreement with Roar Music LLC Staff Report.pdf
	David - Service Agreement with Roar Music, LLC.pdf

	7. 10-05-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Event Service Agreement Birchmore
	David - Service Agreement with Birchmore Group Staff Report.pdf
	Birchmore Service Agreement.pdf

	1. 10-05-16 - CC - Business (Action) - Preliminary Development Plan - Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park
	1 Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park PDP - CC 10-05-16.pdf
	2 Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park - PDP.pdf
	3 Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park - Landscape Plan.pdf
	4 Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park - Entire PDP.pdf

	2. 10-05-16 - CC - Business (Action) - Grading Plan - Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park
	1 Wekiva Parkway Industrial- Grading Plan CC 10-05-16.pdf
	2 Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park - Mass Grading-Site.pdf
	3 Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park - Haul Route.pdf
	4 Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park - Mass Grading.pdf
	5 Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park Dev Agree.pdf

	3. 10-05-16 - CC - Business (Action) - MMI 2nd Amendment PLACEHOLDER
	Glenn - Marden Road Cost Share Agreement Amendment II Staff Report.pdf
	Glenn - Marden Road Cost Share Agreement Amendment II.pdf

	4. 10-05-16 - CC - Business (Action) - Dove Hunt - PLACEHOLDER
	Glenn - Charity Dove Hunt Staff Report.pdf
	Glenn - Charity Dove Hunt Agreement.pdf
	Glenn - Charity Dove Hunt NWTF Info.pdf

	1. 10-05-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2510 - 2nd Rd - COO, Ch 74 - Business Tax Receipts
	1 Ch 74 - Business Tax Receipt - VFH - CC 10-05-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord No 2510 - BTR - Vehicles for Hire.pdf
	3 Lyft Comments and Amendments to Apopka 09-21-16 CC mtg.pdf

	2. 10-05-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2511 - 2nd Rd - COO, Ch. 86 - Vehicle for Hire
	Ordinance No 2511 - Ch 86 - Vehicle for Hire staff rpt CC 10-05-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	Ord No 2511  - Vehicles for Hire - FINAL.pdf
	3 Lyft Comments and Amendments to Apopka 09-21-16 CC mtg.pdf

	3. 10-05-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2518 - 2nd Rd - Master Plan/PDP - Dunn/Dixie Manor
	1 Robert K Dunn ZON AMEND CC 10 05 16.pdf
	2 Ord 2518 Robert K Dunn ZON.pdf
	3 Exhibit A Canterwood Manor Master Plan-PDP.pdf
	4 Proposed Canterwood Manor at Apopka - Elevations.pdf
	5 Current Approved Master Site Plan_Preliminary Dev Plan - Dixie Manor.pdf
	6 Ord 2355 - ZON - Robert Dunn - ZON - Signed.pdf

	4. 10-05-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2519 - 1st Rd - PUD Master Plan/PDP - Orchid Estates
	1 Orchid Estates - PUD Amend - CC 10-05-16.pdf
	2 Ord 2519 Orchid Estates PUD Amendment.pdf
	3 Exhibit B Orched Estates Amended PUD Master Plan.pdf

	5. 10-05-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2520 - 1st Rd - FLUM Amendment
	1 Equity Waters Edge, LLC - 1850 S Binion Rd - FLU - CC 10-5-16 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2520  - Equity Waters Edge LLC - Binion Rd - FLU.pdf

	6. 10-05-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2521 - 1st Rd - Change of Zoning
	1 Equity Waters Edge, LLC - 1850 S Binion Rd - ZON - CC 10-5-16 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord  - Equity Waters Edge LLC ZON.pdf

	7. 10-05-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2522 - 1st Rd - Vacate ROW
	1 Community Health Centers, Inc. - Vacate CC 10-05-16 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2522 - Utility Letters.pdf
	3 Ord 2522 - Community Health Centers  - Vacate - Alleyway.pdf

	8. 10-05-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2523 - 1st Rd - Vacate ROW
	1 GK Maudehelen- HOA - Vacate CC 10-05-16 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2523 Utility Letters.pdf
	3 Ord 2523 - GK Maudehelen-HOA  - Vacate - Johns Road.pdf

	9. 10-05-16 - CC - Resolution 2016-31 - FDEP FRDAP
	FRDAP .pdf
	FRDAP AAC Reso 2016 31.pdf

	1. 10-05-16 - CC - Mayor&apos;s Report - Letter from Mayor Land&apos;s Family
	2016-09-26 Family of John Land.Update on Statues.pdf
	Mayor Land Statue Rendition.pdf

	Bottom

